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7.2 CONDITION AND USE OF THE PROPERTY – REPORT NO. AR19/56339 

CONSIDERATION FOR EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Economic and Environment 
Committee orders that all members of the public, except Mayor L Martin OAM, Councillors C 
Greco, K Amoroso, M Bruins, B Hood, P Jenner, S Mezinec, F Morello, S Perryman and Council 
Officers A Meddle, N Serle, B Cernovskis, J Nagy, J Zwijnenburg, M McCarthy, M Telford and E 
Solly be excluded from attendance at the meeting for the receipt, discussion and consideration in 
confidence of Agenda Item 7.2 AR19/56339 Condition and use of the Property. 

The Economic and Environment Committee is satisfied that, pursuant to section 90(3) (g), (h) and 
(i) of the Act, the information to be received, discussed or considered in relation to the Agenda Item 
is: 

 information concerning matters that must be considered in confidence in order to 
ensure that the Council does not:  

­ breach any law, order or direction of a court or tribunal constituted by law,  

­ breach any duty of confidence, or  

­ breach any other legal obligation or duty 

 legal advice 

 information relating to:  

­ actual litigation, or  

­ litigation that the Council or Council committee believes on reasonable grounds 
will take place,  

­ involving the Council or an employee of the Council 

The Economic and Environment Committee is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be 
conducted in a place open to the public has been outweighed in the circumstances because This 
matter may result in legal action before the Environment, Resources and Development Court. 
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7.2 CONDITION AND USE OF THE PROPERTY – REPORT NO. AR19/56339 

Committee: Economic and Environment Committee 

Meeting Date: 4 November 2019 

Report No.: AR19/56339 

CM9 Reference: AF19/331 

Author: Tracy Tzioutziouklaris, Manager Development Services 

Authoriser: Andrew Meddle, Chief Executive Officer  

Summary: This property is being used for purposes not envisaged within the 
Residential Zone. When considering the appearance and amenity of the 
subject area, this property is considered to be out of conformity with the 
general appearance of the neighbouring premises. Concerns have been 
raised under the Development Act 1993, the Local Nuisance and Litter 
Control Act, 2016 and South Australian Public Health Act 2011.  

Community Plan 
Reference: 

 

Goal 1: Our People 

Goal 2: Our Location 

Goal 3: Our Diverse Economy 

Goal 4: Our Climate, Natural Resources, Arts, Culture and Heritage 

The Committee is satisfied that, pursuant to Section 90(2) & (3) of the Local Government Act 1999, 
the information to be received, discussed or considered in relation to this agenda item is: 

(g) information concerning matters that must be considered in confidence in order to 
ensure that the Council does not: breach any law, order or direction of a court or 
tribunal constituted by law, breach any duty of confidence, or breach any other legal 
obligation or duty 

(h) legal advice 

(i) information relating to: actual litigation, or litigation that the Council or Council 
committee believes on reasonable grounds will take place, involving the Council or an 
employee of the Council.  

REPORT RECOMMENDATION 

1. That Economic and Environment Committee Report No. AR19/56339 titled ‘Condition and 
use of the Property’ as presented on 04 November 2019 be noted. 

2. That Council note that Officer’s will continue to work with the property owner and occupier to 
address the matters as raised, but will proceed with enforcement action to address the 
condition of the subject property should the property owner and occupier not undertake 
appropriate action to improve the condition of the subject property in a timely manner. 
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BACKGROUND 

The subject property is owned by Mr Kingsley Wallace of PMB 44, Mount Gambier. Two semi -
detached units are located on the property, with the property address being 1 and 2/47 Kurrajong 
Street. 

This property was first drawn to the attention of Council in early September 2019 with a number of 
complaints including: 

 Unsafe building 

 Nuisance - derelict or unsightly property with rubbish and rats 

 Noise - repeated banging from unsecured corrugated iron 

DISCUSSION 

Council Officers have undertaken a number of inspections of the subject property. As the result of 
these inspections a Notice has been issued pursuant to Section 92 of the South Australian Public 
Health Act, 2011 as the condition of the property was considered to constitute a risk to public 
health. 

Neither the owner nor the other person live at this property, however both parties use this property 
for the storage of numerous items. 

A further inspection was undertaken on this property on 9 October, 2019 with the Council’s 
Environmental Health Officer and Manager - Development Services. The person enabled to store 
items at this property was also in attendance at this inspection. A file note identifying what was 
observed on the property and photographs is attached to this report for Elected Member 
information and perusal. 

The rear of the building was in a poor condition with corrugated iron placed over the roof and the 
rear wall to create some sort of weather proofing/seal. The condition of the structure is 
questionable. However, it was unable to be inspected so as to determine its structural soundness, 
given the placement of the corrugated iron. 

The subject property is no longer used for residential purposes with no one living on the subject 
site. Both dwellings and the rear yard area are clearly being used for storage. This could be 
considered to be a change in land use which requires Development Approval to be obtained prior 
to the building and property being used for storage purposes. The use of the property for storage 
purposes without first obtaining Development Approval is a breach of the Development Act. 

The appearance of the subject property is poor, in particular as there are a number of vehicles 
being stored within the yard area which are in poor condition and the storage of various items in 
the rear yard area, and immediately next to the building. The building itself is also in a poor 
condition, in particular when considering the placement of corrugated iron on the rear of the 
dwelling. Two tyres have also been placed on the roof of the building which is understood to be for 
the purpose to stop the iron banging when it is windy. 

It could be considered that the condition of the property has an adverse effect on the amenity value 
of the area and causes the premises to be significantly out of conformity with the general 
appearance of the neighbouring premises. 

The poor appearance of the subject property could be considered to be unsightly pursuant to the 
Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act 2016. 
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The Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act 2016 also defines local nuisance as: 

“17(1)(b) Insanitary conditions on premises that unreasonably interfere with or are 
likely to interfere unreasonably with the enjoyment of premises occupied by 
persons in the vicinity. 

For the purpose of subsection (1)(b), conditions on premises will be taken to be 
insanitary if an authorised officer reasonably believes that there is a risk of infestation 
by rodents or other pests.” 

The storage of plastic bags, papers/books and carpet rolls within the vehicles and in the building of 
the subject property provide the perfect habitat and environment for the breeding of rats and mice. 
This is clearly evident by the abundance of rat/mice faeces observed within the vehicles and the 
dwelling. 

Council Officers are currently working with the owner and the occupier of the subject property to 
address the condition of the subject property. This process has been difficult and untimely as the 
property owner does not respond to the Council’s enquiries and correspondence. Council Officers 
have had limited success in communications with the person using the property for storage 
purposes. 

CONCLUSION 

The use and the condition of the subject property is able to be addressed using enforcement action 
pursuant to both the Development Act 1993 and the Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act, 2016 in 
addition to the Notice recently issued pursuant to the South Australian Public Health Act 2011. 

Council Officers continue to work with the property owner and occupier to address the matters as 
raised. 

Council will proceed to engage legal assistance and proceed with enforcement action to address 
the condition of the subject property should the property owner and occupier not undertake 
appropriate action to improve the condition of the subject property in a timely manner. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Illegal Development - Unsightly premises - 47 Kurrajong Street - File note of inspection on 9 
10 2019, by Tracy Tzioutziouklaris ⇩    

 

EEC_20191104_AGN_2336_AT_CLOSED_files/EEC_20191104_AGN_2336_AT_CLOSED_Attachment_10025_1.PDF
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CONSIDERATION FOR KEEPING ITEMS CONFIDENTIAL 

1. In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council 
orders that the report 7.2 AR19/56339 Condition and use of the Property and its 
attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report, having 
been considered by the Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (g), (h) and (i) be 
kept confidential and not available for public inspection until At the satisfactory resolution of 
the matter. 

2. Further that Council delegates the power to review, revoke, but not extension of the 
confidential order to the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91(9)(c) of the Local Government Act 1999. 
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   MINUTES OF CONFIDENTIAL ECONOMIC AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC CENTRE, 10 WATSON TERRACE,                

MOUNT GAMBIER ON MONDAY, 4 NOVEMBER 2019 AT 7.40 P.M. 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Lynette Martin (OAM), Cr Christian Greco, Cr Kate Amoroso, Cr Max 
Bruins, Cr Ben Hood, Cr Paul Jenner, Cr Sonya Mezinec and Cr Frank 
Morello 

 
OFFICERS IN  Chief Executive Officer  -  Mr A Meddle 
ATTENDANCE:  General Manager Community Wellbeing  -  Ms B Cernovskis  
 General Manager City Infrastructure  -  Mr N Serle  

 Manager Development Services  -  Mrs T Tzioutziouklaris 
 Executive Administration Officer -  Mrs M Telford  
  -  Mrs E Solly  

7 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

7.1 REVIEW OF COUNCIL KERBSIDE WASTE SERVICE – REPORT NO. AR19/48838 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION   

Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins 

CONSIDERATION FOR EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Economic and Environment 
Committee orders that all members of the public, except Mayor L Martin, Councillors C Greco, K 
Amoroso, M Bruins, B Hood, P Jenner, S Mezinec, F Morello and S Perryman and Council Officers 
A Meddle, B Cernovskis, N Serle, T Tzioutziouklaris, M Telford and E Solly be excluded from 
attendance at the meeting for the receipt, discussion and consideration in confidence of Agenda 
Item 7.1 AR19/48838 Review of Council kerbside waste service. 

The Economic and Environment Committee is satisfied that, pursuant to section 90(3) (b) of the 
Act, the information to be received, discussed or considered in relation to the Agenda Item is: 

 information the disclosure of which could reasonably be expected to confer a 
commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is  

- conducting business; or  

- proposing to conduct business; or  

- to prejudice the commercial position of the Council 

The Economic and Environment Committee is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be 
conducted in a place open to the public has been outweighed in the circumstances because To 
ensure that information that would prejudice the ability of the Council to make a future commercial 
decision is not released prematurely.. 

CARRIED
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MOTION 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION   

Moved: Cr Sonya Mezinec 
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso 

CONSIDERATION FOR KEEPING ITEMS CONFIDENTIAL 

1. In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council 
orders that the costs contained in the report to Council having been considered by the 
Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (b) be kept confidential and not available for 
public inspection until 30 June 2021.   

2. Further that Council delegates the power to review, revoke, but not extension of the 
confidential order to the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91(9)(c) of the Local Government Act 1999. 

CARRIED

 

7.2 CONDITION AND USE OF THE PROPERTY – REPORT NO. AR19/56339 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION   

Moved: Cr Max Bruins 
Seconded: Cr Frank Morello 

CONSIDERATION FOR EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Economic and Environment 
Committee orders that all members of the public, except Mayor L Martin, Councillors C Greco, K 
Amoroso, M Bruins, B Hood, P Jenner, S Mezinec, F Morello and S Perryman and Council Officers 
A Meddle, B Cernovskis, N Serle, T Tzioutziouklaris, M Telford and E Solly be excluded from 
attendance at the meeting for the receipt, discussion and consideration in confidence of Agenda 
Item 7.2 AR19/56339 Condition and use of the Property. 
The Economic and Environment Committee is satisfied that, pursuant to section 90(3) (g), (h) and 
(i) of the Act, the information to be received, discussed or considered in relation to the Agenda Item 
is: 

 information concerning matters that must be considered in confidence in order to 
ensure that the Council does not:  
- breach any law, order or direction of a court or tribunal constituted by law,  
- breach any duty of confidence, or  
- breach any other legal obligation or duty 

 legal advice 
 information relating to:  

- actual litigation, or  
- litigation that the Council or Council committee believes on reasonable grounds 

will take place,  
- involving the Council or an employee of the Council 

The Economic and Environment Committee is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be 
conducted in a place open to the public has been outweighed in the circumstances because This 
matter may result in legal action before the Environment, Resources and Development Court. 
 

CARRIED
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COMMITTEE RESOLUTION   

Moved: Cr Max Bruins 
Seconded: Cr Christian Greco 

1. That Economic and Environment Committee Report No. AR19/56339 titled ‘Condition and 
use of the Property’ as presented on 04 November 2019 be noted. 

2. That Council note that Officer’s will continue to work with the property owner and occupier to 
address the matters as raised, but will proceed with enforcement action to address the 
condition of the subject property should the property owner and occupier not undertake 
appropriate action to improve the condition of the subject property in a timely manner. 

CARRIED

 

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION   

Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins 

CONSIDERATION FOR KEEPING ITEMS CONFIDENTIAL 

1. In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council 
orders that the report 7.2 AR19/56339 Condition and use of the Property and its 
attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report, having 
been considered by the Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (g), (h) and (i) be 
kept confidential and not available for public inspection until At the satisfactory resolution of 
the matter. 

2. Further that Council delegates the power to review, revoke, but not extension of the 
confidential order to the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91(9)(c) of the Local Government Act 1999. 

CARRIED
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I hereby give notice that a Confidential Council Meeting will be held on: 

Date: Tuesday, 19 November 2019 

Time: 6.00 p.m. 

Location: Council Chamber 

Civic Centre 

10 Watson Terrace 

Mount Gambier 

AGENDA 

  

Confidential Council Meeting 

19 November 2019 

Andrew Meddle 

Chief Executive Officer 

15 November 2019 
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25.3 CONDITION AND USE OF THE PROPERTY – REPORT NO. AR19/56339 

CONSIDERATION FOR EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council orders that all members of 
the public, except Mayor L Martin, Councillors S Mezinec, K Amoroso, M Bruins, C Greco, B Hood, 
P Jenner, F Morello and S Perryman and Council Officers A Meddle, B Cernovskis, J Zwijnenburg, 
N Serle, A Watson, and F McGregor be excluded from attendance at the meeting for the receipt, 
discussion and consideration in confidence of Agenda Item 25.3 AR19/56339 Condition and use of 
the Property. 

The Council is satisfied that, pursuant to section 90(3) (g), (h) and (i) of the Act, the information to 
be received, discussed or considered in relation to the Agenda Item is: 

 information concerning matters that must be considered in confidence in order to 
ensure that the Council does not:  

­ breach any law, order or direction of a court or tribunal constituted by law,  

­ breach any duty of confidence, or  

­ breach any other legal obligation or duty 

 legal advice 

 information relating to:  

­ actual litigation, or  

­ litigation that the Council or Council committee believes on reasonable grounds 
will take place,  

­ involving the Council or an employee of the Council 

The Council is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be conducted in a place open to the 
public has been outweighed in the circumstances because This matter may result in legal action 
before the Environment, Resources and Development Court. 
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25.3 CONDITION AND USE OF THE PROPERTY – REPORT NO. AR19/56339 

Committee: Economic and Environment Committee 

Meeting Date: 4 November 2019 

Report No.: AR19/56339 

CM9 Reference: AF19/331 

Author: Tracy Tzioutziouklaris, Manager Development Services 

Authoriser: Andrew Meddle, Chief Executive Officer  

Summary: This property is being used for purposes not envisaged within the 
Residential Zone. When considering the appearance and amenity of the 
subject area, this property is considered to be out of conformity with the 
general appearance of the neighbouring premises. Concerns have been 
raised under the Development Act 1993, the Local Nuisance and Litter 
Control Act, 2016 and South Australian Public Health Act 2011.  

Community Plan 
Reference: 

 

Goal 1: Our People 

Goal 2: Our Location 

Goal 3: Our Diverse Economy 

Goal 4: Our Climate, Natural Resources, Arts, Culture and Heritage 

The Committee is satisfied that, pursuant to Section 90(2) & (3) of the Local Government Act 1999, 
the information to be received, discussed or considered in relation to this agenda item is: 

(g) information concerning matters that must be considered in confidence in order to 
ensure that the Council does not: breach any law, order or direction of a court or 
tribunal constituted by law, breach any duty of confidence, or breach any other legal 
obligation or duty 

(h) legal advice 

(i) information relating to: actual litigation, or litigation that the Council or Council 
committee believes on reasonable grounds will take place, involving the Council or an 
employee of the Council.  

REPORT RECOMMENDATION 

1. That Economic and Environment Committee Report No. AR19/56339 titled ‘Condition and 
use of the Property’ as presented on 04 November 2019 be noted. 

2. That Council note that Officer’s will continue to work with the property owner and occupier to 
address the matters as raised, but will proceed with enforcement action to address the 
condition of the subject property should the property owner and occupier not undertake 
appropriate action to improve the condition of the subject property in a timely manner. 
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BACKGROUND 

The subject property is owned by Mr Kingsley Wallace of PMB 44, Mount Gambier. Two semi -
detached units are located on the property, with the property address being 1 and 2/47 Kurrajong 
Street. 

This property was first drawn to the attention of Council in early September 2019 with a number of 
complaints including: 

 Unsafe building 

 Nuisance - derelict or unsightly property with rubbish and rats 

 Noise - repeated banging from unsecured corrugated iron 

DISCUSSION 

Council Officers have undertaken a number of inspections of the subject property. As the result of 
these inspections a Notice has been issued pursuant to Section 92 of the South Australian Public 
Health Act, 2011 as the condition of the property was considered to constitute a risk to public 
health. 

Neither the owner nor the other person live at this property, however both parties use this property 
for the storage of numerous items. 

A further inspection was undertaken on this property on 9 October, 2019 with the Council’s 
Environmental Health Officer and Manager - Development Services. The person enabled to store 
items at this property was also in attendance at this inspection. A file note identifying what was 
observed on the property and photographs is attached to this report for Elected Member 
information and perusal. 

The rear of the building was in a poor condition with corrugated iron placed over the roof and the 
rear wall to create some sort of weather proofing/seal. The condition of the structure is 
questionable. However, it was unable to be inspected so as to determine its structural soundness, 
given the placement of the corrugated iron. 

The subject property is no longer used for residential purposes with no one living on the subject 
site. Both dwellings and the rear yard area are clearly being used for storage. This could be 
considered to be a change in land use which requires Development Approval to be obtained prior 
to the building and property being used for storage purposes. The use of the property for storage 
purposes without first obtaining Development Approval is a breach of the Development Act. 

The appearance of the subject property is poor, in particular as there are a number of vehicles 
being stored within the yard area which are in poor condition and the storage of various items in 
the rear yard area, and immediately next to the building. The building itself is also in a poor 
condition, in particular when considering the placement of corrugated iron on the rear of the 
dwelling. Two tyres have also been placed on the roof of the building which is understood to be for 
the purpose to stop the iron banging when it is windy. 

It could be considered that the condition of the property has an adverse effect on the amenity value 
of the area and causes the premises to be significantly out of conformity with the general 
appearance of the neighbouring premises. 

The poor appearance of the subject property could be considered to be unsightly pursuant to the 
Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act 2016. 
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The Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act 2016 also defines local nuisance as: 

“17(1)(b) Insanitary conditions on premises that unreasonably interfere with or are 
likely to interfere unreasonably with the enjoyment of premises occupied by 
persons in the vicinity. 

For the purpose of subsection (1)(b), conditions on premises will be taken to be 
insanitary if an authorised officer reasonably believes that there is a risk of infestation 
by rodents or other pests.” 

The storage of plastic bags, papers/books and carpet rolls within the vehicles and in the building of 
the subject property provide the perfect habitat and environment for the breeding of rats and mice. 
This is clearly evident by the abundance of rat/mice faeces observed within the vehicles and the 
dwelling. 

Council Officers are currently working with the owner and the occupier of the subject property to 
address the condition of the subject property. This process has been difficult and untimely as the 
property owner does not respond to the Council’s enquiries and correspondence. Council Officers 
have had limited success in communications with the person using the property for storage 
purposes. 

CONCLUSION 

The use and the condition of the subject property is able to be addressed using enforcement action 
pursuant to both the Development Act 1993 and the Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act, 2016 in 
addition to the Notice recently issued pursuant to the South Australian Public Health Act 2011. 

Council Officers continue to work with the property owner and occupier to address the matters as 
raised. 

Council will proceed to engage legal assistance and proceed with enforcement action to address 
the condition of the subject property should the property owner and occupier not undertake 
appropriate action to improve the condition of the subject property in a timely manner. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Illegal Development - Unsightly premises - 47 Kurrajong Street - File note of inspection on 9 
10 2019, by Tracy Tzioutziouklaris ⇩    
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CONSIDERATION FOR KEEPING ITEMS CONFIDENTIAL 

1. In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council 
orders that the report 7.2 AR19/56339 Condition and use of the Property and its attachments, 
the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report, having been 
considered by the Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (g), (h) and (i) be kept 
confidential and not available for public inspection until At the satisfactory resolution of the 
matter. 

2. Further that Council delegates the power to review, revoke, but not extension of the 
confidential order to the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91(9)(c) of the Local Government Act 1999. 
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   MINUTES OF CONFIDENTIAL COUNCIL MEETING 
HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC CENTRE, 10 WATSON TERRACE, MOUNT 

GAMBIER 
ON TUESDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2019 AT 6.00 P.M. 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Lynette Martin (OAM), Cr Kate Amoroso, Cr Max Bruins, Cr Christian 
Greco, Cr Paul Jenner, Cr Ben Hood, Cr Frank Morello, Cr Steven Perryman 

 

OFFICERS IN  Chief Executive Officer  -  Mr A Meddle 
ATTENDANCE:  General Manager Community Wellbeing  -  Ms B Cernovskis  
 General Manager City Infrastructure  -  Mr N Serle  
 General Manager City Growth  -  Dr J Nagy  
 Acting General Manager Council Business Services - Mr J Zwijnenburg 

 Manager Development Services  -  Mrs T Tzioutziouklaris 
 Media and Communications - Mrs A Watson  

  Executive Administration Officer -  Mrs F McGregor 

 

25 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS OF COMMITTEES 

Cr Amoroso left the Chamber at 9.59 p.m. 

25.1 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS OF THE ECONOMIC AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE HELD 
ON 4 NOVEMBER 2019 

 

MOTION 

MOTION   

Moved: Cr Steven Perryman 
Seconded: Cr Paul Jenner 

That Item 25.2 be discussed in open session. 

TIED VOTE 

Mayor Martin exercised her right to a casting vote                                                                  LOST  

 

 

Cr Amoroso returned the meeting at 10.07 p.m. 

Cr Perryman made a personal statement – Cr Perryman was ambivalent as to whether this should 
be in confidence. Cr Perryman felt Cr Amoroso wanted to vote. 
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25.3 CONDITION AND USE OF THE PROPERTY – REPORT NO. AR19/56339 

RESOLUTION  2019/350 

Moved: Cr Ben Hood 
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins 

CONSIDERATION FOR EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council orders that all members of 
the public, except Mayor L Martin, Councillors S Mezinec, K Amoroso, M Bruins, C Greco, B Hood, 
P Jenner, F Morello and S Perryman and Council Officers A Meddle, B Cernovskis, J Nagy, N 
Serle, J Zwijnenburg, A Watson, T Tzioutziouklaris and F McGregor be excluded from attendance 
at the meeting for the receipt, discussion and consideration in confidence of Agenda Item 25.3 
AR19/56339 Condition and use of the Property. 

The Council is satisfied that, pursuant to section 90(3) (g), (h) and (i) of the Act, the information to 
be received, discussed or considered in relation to the Agenda Item is: 

• information concerning matters that must be considered in confidence in order to 
ensure that the Council does not:  

- breach any law, order or direction of a court or tribunal constituted by law,  

- breach any duty of confidence, or  

- breach any other legal obligation or duty 

• legal advice 

• information relating to:  

- actual litigation, or  

- litigation that the Council or Council committee believes on reasonable grounds 
will take place,  

- involving the Council or an employee of the Council 

The Council is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be conducted in a place open to the 
public has been outweighed in the circumstances because This matter may result in legal action 
before the Environment, Resources and Development Court. 

CARRIED 

 

RESOLUTION  2019/351 

Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Ben Hood 

1. That Economic and Environment Committee Report No. AR19/56339 titled ‘Condition and 
use of the Property’ as presented on 04 November 2019 be noted. 

2. That Council note that Officer’s will continue to work with the property owner and occupier to 
address the matters as raised, but will proceed with enforcement action to address the 
condition of the subject property should the property owner and occupier not undertake 
appropriate action to improve the condition of the subject property in a timely manner. 

CARRIED 
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RESOLUTION  2019/352 

Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Ben Hood 

CONSIDERATION FOR KEEPING ITEMS CONFIDENTIAL 

1. In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council 
orders that the report 7.2 AR19/56339 Condition and use of the Property and its 
attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report, having 
been considered by the Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (g), (h) and (i) be 
kept confidential and not available for public inspection until At the satisfactory resolution of 
the matter. 

2. Further that Council delegates the power to review, revoke, but not extension of the 
confidential order to the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91(9)(c) of the Local Government Act 1999. 

CARRIED 

 

25.4 APPEAL TO THE ENVIRONMENT RESOURCES AND DEVELOPMENT COURT - 
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 381/053/2019 116 JUBILEE HIGHWAY WEST, 
MOUNT GAMBIER – REPORT NO. AR19/56264 

RESOLUTION  2019/353 

Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins 

CONSIDERATION FOR EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council orders that all members of 
the public, except Mayor L Martin, Councillors S Mezinec, K Amoroso, M Bruins, C Greco, B Hood, 
P Jenner, F Morello and S Perryman and Council Officers A Meddle, B Cernovskis, J Nagy, N 
Serle, J Zwijnenburg, A Watson, T Tzioutziouklaris and F McGregor be excluded from attendance 
at the meeting for the receipt, discussion and consideration in confidence of Agenda Item 25.4 
AR19/56264 Appeal to the Environment Resources and Development Court - Development 
Application 381/053/2019 116 Jubilee Highway West, Mount Gambier. 

The Council is satisfied that, pursuant to section 90(3) (i) of the Act, the information to be received, 
discussed or considered in relation to the Agenda Item is: 

• information relating to:  

- actual litigation, or  

- litigation that the Council or Council committee believes on reasonable grounds 
will take place,  

- involving the Council or an employee of the Council 

The Council is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be conducted in a place open to the 
public has been outweighed in the circumstances because impending legal action. 

CARRIED 

 





DESIGNATED INFORMAL GATHERING  
BRIEFING WITH STATE MEMBER FOR MOUNT GAMBIER 


MR TROY BELL MP 
5.30 PM, TUESDAY 22 OCTOBER 2019 


RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
5.30 pm, Tuesday 22 October 2019 


Level 4, Committee Room, Civic Centre, 
10 Watson Terrace, Mount Gambier 


GUESTS:- 


Mr Troy Bell MP 


MEMBERS PRESENT:- STAFF PRESENT:- 


Mayor Martin Chief Executive Officer 


Cr Morello General Manager City Growth 


Cr Mezinec General Manager Community Wellbeing 


Cr Bruins General Manager City Infrastructure 


Cr Jenner Acting General Manager Council Business Services 


Cr Perryman 


Cr Hood (by phone) 


MEMBERS APOLOGIES:- LEAVE OF ABSENCE:- 


Cr Amoroso Nil 


Cr Greco 


DISCUSSION:  Mr Troy Bell MP gave a talk to Elected Members: 


 Local Government review/reform


 Solid Waste Levy and coastal issues


 Sex Work Decriminalisation Bill (copy of letter requested)


 Impacts of speeding on Freeway  that were not intended


 Public Works Committee on 31/10/2019


 Shacks at Donovans


 MFS review of equipment


 Free camping


Discussion closed at 6.25 p.m. 







DESIGNATED INFORMAL GATHERING  
ELECTED MEMBER BRIEFING ON THE COMMUNITY AND RECREATION HUB 


6.30 PM, TUESDAY 22 OCTOBER 2019 


RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
6.30 pm, Tuesday 22 October 2019 


Level 4, Committee Room, Civic Centre, 
10 Watson Terrace, Mount Gambier 


GUESTS:- 


Richard Stafford 


MEMBERS PRESENT:- STAFF PRESENT:- 


Mayor Martin Chief Executive Officer 


Cr Morello General Manager City Growth 


Cr Mezinec General Manager Community Wellbeing 


Cr Bruins General Manager City Infrastructure 


Cr Jenner Acting General Manager Council Business Services 


Cr Perryman Community Development Officer 


Cr Hood (via telephone) 


Cr Greco (left at 7.50 p.m.) 


MEMBERS APOLOGIES:- LEAVE OF ABSENCE:- 


Cr Amoroso Nil 


DISCUSSION: 


Richard Stafford and staff covered: 


 The AV concepts and scope;


 CCTV layout and coverage;


 Costs


 Variations


 Inclusions/exclusions


 Project governance and delegations


 Timelines


Discussion closed at 9.30 p.m. 







DESIGNATED INFORMAL GATHERING 
SIGNAGE STRATEGY 


5.30 PM, MONDAY 28 OCTOBER 2019 


RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
5.30 pm, Monday 28 October 2019 


Level 4, Committee Room, Civic Centre, 
10 Watson Terrace, Mount Gambier 


MEMBERS PRESENT:- STAFF PRESENT:- 


Mayor Martin Chief Executive Officer 


Cr Jenner General Manager City Growth 


Cr Mezinec General Manager Community Wellbeing 


Cr Bruins General Manager City Infrastructure 


MEMBERS APOLOGIES:- LEAVE OF ABSENCE:- 


Cr Amoroso Nil 


Cr Greco 


Cr Morello 


Cr Perryman 


Cr Hood 


DISCUSSION: 


The briefing covered elements of the signage strategy including: 


 Current status of the strategy


 Budget allocation and priority


 Quick wins for implementation


 Delivery of wayfinding and signage across city on 2019/20


Discussion closed at 6.20 p.m. 







DESIGNATED INFORMAL GATHERING  
BRIEFING WITH FEDERAL MEMBER FOR BARKER 


MR TONY PASIN MP 
5.30 PM, MONDAY 4 NOVEMBER 2019 


RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
5.30 pm, Monday 4 November 2019 


Level 4, Committee Room, Civic Centre, 
10 Watson Terrace, Mount Gambier 


GUESTS:- 


Tony Pasin MP 


Nikki Petersen  


MEMBERS PRESENT:- STAFF PRESENT:- 


Cr Mezinec  Chief Executive Officer 


Cr Hood  General Manager Community Wellbeing 


Cr Bruins  General Manager City Infrastructure 


Cr Greco  


Cr Amoroso  


Mayor Martin 


Cr Morello  


Cr Jenner  


Cr Perryman  


MEMBERS APOLOGIES:- LEAVE OF ABSENCE:- 


Nil Nil 


DISCUSSION: 


 History of these discussions


 Future opportunities


 BBRF rounds coming, including Community Investment Stream


 Stronger Communities Fund


 Road funding


 Safer communities


 Solar for sporting groups


 Female sports


 Volunteers


 Waste and recycling


Discussion closed at 6.25 p.m. 







DESIGNATED INFORMAL GATHERING  
STRATEGIC PLAN THEMES AND DATES 
5.30 PM, MONDAY 11 NOVEMBER 2019 


RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
5.30 pm, Monday 11 November 2019 


Level 4, Committee Room, Civic Centre, 
10 Watson Terrace, Mount Gambier 


MEMBERS PRESENT:- STAFF PRESENT:- 


Mayor Martin Chief Executive Officer 


Cr Morello General Manager City Growth 


Cr Mezinec General Manager Community Wellbeing 


Cr Bruins General Manager City Infrastructure 


Cr Hood (via telephone) Acting General Manager Council Business Services 


Cr Amoroso 


Cr Perryman 


Cr Jenner 


MEMBERS APOLOGIES:- LEAVE OF ABSENCE:- 


Cr Greco Nil 


DISCUSSION: 


 Recap on workshop in March


 Context


 Vision and strategic themes


 Current environment and constraints


 Current projects


 Aspirations


 Priorities


 Resourcing


 Next steps and timeline


Discussion closed at 7.30 p.m. 








Outstanding/Finalised 
 


Division:    
Committee:   
Officer:    


Date From: 15/10/2019 
Date To:  13/11/2019 


Action Sheets Report  Printed: 13 November 2019 11:34 AM 
 


Infocouncil Page 1 of 14 


Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Meddle, Andrew Reports Proposed Meeting Dates for the People and Place Committee for 2019/20 
 Meddle, Andrew   


RESOLUTION  2019/266 


Moved: Cr Frank Morello 
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec 


1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/51179 titled ‘Proposed Meeting Dates for the People and Place Committee for 2019/20’ as 
presented on 08 October 2019 be noted. 


2. That its meeting schedule for 2019/20, be as set out in Attachment 1 to this report. 


CARRIED 
 


23 Oct 2019 - 11:28 AM - Andrew Meddle 
Action completed by: Meddle, Andrew 
Meeting dates diarised and e-calendar invites sent. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Meddle, Andrew Reports Work Program for the People and Place Committee for 2019/20 
 Meddle, Andrew   
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RESOLUTION  2019/267 


Moved: Cr Frank Morello 
Seconded: Cr Paul Jenner 


1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/51178 titled ‘Work Program for the People and Place Committee for 2019/20’ as presented on 08 
October 2019 be noted. 


2. That the following items comprise the Committee’s work program for the remainder of the 2019/20 municipal year: 


(a) Community events 
(b) Visual arts 
(c) Public art 
(d) CBD activation and enhancement 
(e) Tourism (strategy as opposed to assets) 
(f) Place making and shaping 
(g) Land use or transport planning policy matters 
(h) Joint Planning Board matters 
(i)  Sports facilities and participation 


Carried 


 


24 Oct 2019 - 9:26 AM - Andrew Meddle 
Action completed by: Meddle, Andrew 
Work underway to prepare items for the next agenda (for the meeting in December 2019) resulting from this work program. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Meddle, Andrew Reports Terms of Reference of the People and Place Committee 
 Meddle, Andrew   
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RESOLUTION  2019/268 


Moved: Cr Frank Morello 
Seconded: Cr Ben Hood 


 


1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/51185 titled ‘Terms of Reference of the People and Place Committee’ as presented on 08 October 
2019 be noted. 


2. That this is a prescribed Committee for the purposes of payments as required by the SA Remuneration Tribunal. 


CARRIED 
 


24 Oct 2019 - 9:23 AM - Andrew Meddle 
Action completed by: Meddle, Andrew 
No further action required at this time. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 McCarthy, Michael Reports Policy Review - C410 Conduct of Meetings and M265 Member Complaints Handling Procedure 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 


  


RESOLUTION  2019/269 


Moved: Cr Frank Morello 
Seconded: Cr Christian Greco 


1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/47797 titled ‘Policy Review - C410 Conduct of Meetings and M265 Member Complaints Handling 
Procedure’ as presented on 08 October 2019 be noted. 


 


2. Having reviewed the policy provisions Council re-adopts the following policies as attached to People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/47797: 


(a) Policy C410 Conduct of Meetings 


(b) Policy M265 Member Complaints Handling Procedure 


CARRIED 
 


21 Oct 2019 - 5:04 PM - Michael McCarthy 
Action completed by: McCarthy, Michael 
referred to EXATeam to update EDRMS and Website 
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Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Nagy, Judy Reports Mount Gambier Gift Sponsorship Request 
 Meddle, Andrew   


RESOLUTION  2019/270 


Moved: Cr Frank Morello 
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso 


1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/51127 titled ‘Mount Gambier Gift Sponsorship Request’ as presented on 08 October 2019 be 
noted. 


2. That Council endorse sponsorship for the Mount Gambier Gift to the value of $7,500 cash and $1,000 in kind,  for the 2019/2020 financial year only.  


CARRIED 
 


29 Oct 2019 - 1:03 PM - Judy Nagy 
Action completed by: Nagy, Judy 
Events team advised of funding endorsement and passed onto Gift organiser. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Meddle, Andrew Reports Employment Engagement Survey 2019 Update 
 Meddle, Andrew   


RESOLUTION  2019/271 


Moved: Cr Frank Morello 
Seconded: Cr Christian Greco 


1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/45340 titled ‘Employment Engagement Survey 2019 Update’ as presented on 08 October 2019 be 
noted. 


CARRIED 
 


24 Oct 2019 - 9:23 AM - Andrew Meddle 
Action completed by: Meddle, Andrew 
No further action required at this time. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Meddle, Andrew Reports Administrative Principles relating to the Enforcement of Unlawful Development and Unsightly Premises 
 Meddle, Andrew   
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RESOLUTION  2019/272 


Moved: Cr Frank Morello 
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec 


1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/52752 titled ‘Administrative Principles relating to the Enforcement of Unlawful Development and 
Unsightly Premises’ as presented on 08 October 2019 be noted. 


CARRIED 
 


24 Oct 2019 - 9:22 AM - Andrew Meddle 


Action completed by: Meddle, Andrew 
Documents publicly available and staff briefed. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 McCarthy, Michael Reports Reforming Local Government in South Australia - Discussion Paper 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 
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RESOLUTION  2019/273 


Moved: Cr Frank Morello 
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec 


1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/47773 titled ‘Reforming Local Government in South Australia - Discussion Paper’ as presented on 
08 October 2019 be noted. 


2. That Council generally supports the position of the Local Government Association on each of the 72 local government reform proposals and further 
supports the additional 12 reform proposals contained in the August 2019 Discussion Paper. 


3. That the establishment of a new (member) conduct management framework as a combination of Models 1 & 2 presented in the August 2019 Discussion 
Paper is supported. 


 Model 1 – the clarification of current legislation 


 Model 2 – using governance committees 
 
Council does not support the establishment of another body to oversight local government, unless established and managed for the sector by the Local 
Government Association. 


4. That Council implore the State Government in progressing local government reform to focus on outcomes that: 


 provide community benefit without increasing administrative burden; 


 are not so prescriptive, but adaptable to suit needs of different communities; 


 are simple to understand and administer without the need for legal interpretation; 
 
and consistent with Reform Area 4 – Simpler Regulation, contribute toward cutting rather than creating red-tape which diverts Council resources from 
beneficial community services. 


5. That Council seek further engagement on a Draft Amendment Bill, with an explanatory paper if necessary, prior to any of the proposed reforms 
becoming law. 


CARRIED 
 


23 Oct 2019 - 11:35 AM - Michael McCarthy 


Action completed by: McCarthy, Michael 
Submission sent 23/10/2019 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Meddle, Andrew Reports Council Assessment Panel Recruitment and Training 
 Meddle, Andrew   
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RESOLUTION  2019/274 


Moved: Cr Frank Morello 
Seconded: Cr Christian Greco 


1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR19/53262 titled ‘Council Assessment Panel Recruitment and Training’ as presented on 08 October 
2019 be noted. 


2. That Council authorise the Chief Executive Officer to undertake a recruitment process to seek interest in filling an independent member role on the 
Council Assessment Panel, with a report brought back to Council to consider any nominations. 


3. That, at that time, Council consider whether to appoint a proxy Elected Member to the Council Assessment Panel and whether to appoint a further 
independent member to act as a proxy. 


4. That Council authorise the Chief Executive Officer to formulate and deliver a training program for the Council Assessment Panel and staff to meet some 
or all of the needs of those affected by the Accredited Professionals elements of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 and for this to 
be offered to other councils in the region. 


CARRIED 
 


13 Nov 2019 - 8:14 AM - Andrew Meddle 
Action completed by: Meddle, Andrew 
Request made to Local Government Association Commercial Services to provide details for CAP trainers. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 McGregor, Fiona Council Assessment Panel Minutes Minutes of the Council Assessment Panel held on 19 September 2019 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 


  


RESOLUTION  2019/275 


Moved: Cr Paul Jenner 
Seconded: Cr Christian Greco 


That the Minutes of the Council Assessment Panel meeting held on 19 September 2019 as previously circulated be noted. 


CARRIED 


 


18 Oct 2019 - 8:43 AM - Fiona McGregor 
Action completed by: McGregor, Fiona 
No action - noting only 
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Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 McGregor, Fiona 
Junior Sports Assistance (Section 41) 
Committee Mi 


Minutes of the Junior Sports Assistance Fund held on 9 October 2019 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 


  


RESOLUTION  2019/276 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso 


That the Minutes of the Junior Sports Assistance Fund Annual General Meeting held on 9 October 2019 as attached be noted. 


CARRIED 


 


18 Oct 2019 - 8:44 AM - Fiona McGregor 
Action completed by: McGregor, Fiona 
No action - noting only 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Telford, Melissa Reports Statement of Revenue and Expenditure - Year Ended 30/06/2019 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 


  


RESOLUTION  2019/277 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso 


1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR19/42151 titled ‘Statement of Revenue and Expenditure - Year Ended 30/06/2019 ’ as presented on 
09 October 2019 be noted. 


2. The Statement of Income and Expenditure for period ended 30 June, 2019 detailing payments to or payments from the Fund with a 30 June 2019 cash 
balance of $95,240.74 be received. 


CARRIED 
 


28 Oct 2019 - 11:15 AM - Melissa Telford 
Action completed by: Telford, Melissa 
No action 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Telford, Melissa Reports General Developments of the Fund Since the Thirty-Third Annual General Meeting 
 Zwijnenburg,   
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Jeroen 


RESOLUTION  2019/278 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Paul Jenner 


1. That Council Report No. AR19/42177 titled ‘General Developments of the Fund Since the Thirty-Third Annual General Meeting’ as presented on 09 
October 2019 be noted. 


CARRIED 
 


28 Oct 2019 - 11:17 AM - Melissa Telford 
Action completed by: Telford, Melissa 
No action required 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Telford, Melissa Reports Member Organisation Contributions 2019/2020 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 


  


RESOLUTION  2019/279 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso 


1. That Council Report No. AR19/42209 titled ‘Member Organisation Contributions 2019/2020 ’ as presented on 09 October 2019 be noted. 


2. The Member Organisation contributions for the 2019/2020 financial year continue to be based on the funding formula as adopted at the Annual Meeting 
of Members held on 2nd August 2005 and as attached to this agenda. 


3. The “previous five (5) year annual average” be interpreted and calculated on a rolling basis i.e. the previous five (5) year annual average include the 
then financial year just ended so that the Member Organisation contributions reflect the most current figures and the minimum payment of $400 and the 
maximum payment of $800 apply for the 2019/2020 financial year.  


CARRIED 
 


28 Oct 2019 - 11:19 AM - Melissa Telford 
Action completed by: Telford, Melissa 
Member contributions calculated and invoices sent. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Telford, Melissa Reports Committee Appointments 
 Zwijnenburg,   
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Jeroen 


RESOLUTION  2019/280 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec 


1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR19/42226 titled ‘Committee Appointments’ as presented on 09 October 2019 be noted. 


CARRIED 
 


28 Oct 2019 - 11:16 AM - Melissa Telford 


Action completed by: Telford, Melissa 
No action required 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 McGregor, Fiona 
Junior Sports Assistance (Section 41) 
Committee Mi 


Minutes of the Junior Sports Assistance Fund held on 9 October 2019 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 


  


RESOLUTION  2019/281 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Paul Jenner 


That the Minutes of the Junior Sports Assistance Fund ordinary meeting held on 9 October 2019 as attached be noted. 


CARRIED 


 


18 Oct 2019 - 8:44 AM - Fiona McGregor 
Action completed by: McGregor, Fiona 
no action - noting only 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Telford, Melissa Reports Guidelines - Junior Sports Assistance Fund 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 
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RESOLUTION  2019/282 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec 


1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR19/42128 titled ‘Guidelines - Junior Sports Assistance Fund ’ as presented on 09 October 2019 be 
noted. 


2. The Committee endorse the Guidelines as a reference document to assist with decision making.  


CARRIED 
 


28 Oct 2019 - 11:18 AM - Melissa Telford 
Action completed by: Telford, Melissa 
No action required 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Telford, Melissa Reports Junior Sports Assistance Fund - Membership 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 


  


RESOLUTION  2019/283 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso 


1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR19/49200 titled ‘Junior Sports Assistance Fund - Membership ’ as presented on 09 October 2019 be 
noted. 


CARRIED 
 


28 Oct 2019 - 11:16 AM - Melissa Telford 
Action completed by: Telford, Melissa 
No action required 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Telford, Melissa Reports 
Applications for Financial Assistance for Juniors and Payments from the Fund from 22/06/2019 to 31 
August 2019 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 
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RESOLUTION  2019/284 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso 


1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR19/45969 titled ‘Applications for Financial Assistance for Juniors and Payments from the Fund from 
22/06/2019 to 31 August 2019’ as presented on 09 October 2019 be noted. 


CARRIED 
 


28 Oct 2019 - 11:19 AM - Melissa Telford 


Action completed by: Telford, Melissa 
No aciton required. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Telford, Melissa Reports Statement of Revenue and Expenses - 1/6/2019 to 30/09/2019 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 


  


RESOLUTION  2019/285 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec 


1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR19/45971 titled ‘Statement of Revenue and Expenses - 1/6/2019 to 30/09/2019 as presented on 09 
October 2019 be noted. 


2. The financial statement of the Fund as at 30 September, 2019 be received noting a cash balance of $86,530.78.  


Carried 


 


28 Oct 2019 - 11:17 AM - Melissa Telford 
Action completed by: Telford, Melissa 
No action required 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Telford, Melissa Reports Coaching Clinic Funding 2019/2020 


 
Zwijnenburg, 
Jeroen 
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RESOLUTION  2019/286 


Moved: Cr Christian Greco 
Seconded: Cr Ben Hood 


1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR19/45978 titled ‘Coaching Clinic Funding 2019/2020 ’ as presented on 09 October 2019 be noted; 


2. The Junior Sports Assistance Fund provide $5,000 to enable the 2019/2020 Coaching Clinic Program to proceed; and 


3. The Secretary and a Member of the Committee Cr Greco endeavour to commence work to source a new funding partner for the 2020/2021 Coaching 
Clinic Program. 


CARRIED 
 


28 Oct 2019 - 11:19 AM - Melissa Telford 
Action completed by: Telford, Melissa 
No action required 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Meddle, Andrew Council Reports Freedom of Information Application - release of inmates from Mount Gambier Prison 
 Meddle, Andrew   


RESOLUTION  2019/287 


Moved: Cr Paul Jenner 
Seconded: Cr Ben Hood 


1. That Council Report No. AR19/52969 titled ‘Freedom of Information Application - release of inmates from Mount Gambier Prison’ as presented on 15 
October 2019 be noted. 


2. Council accept and thank Minister Wingard for his response to Council’s concerns regarding the processes for release of inmates from Mount Gambier 
Prison 


3. Council revoke resolution part (3) associated with Resolution 2019/197 of 20 August 2019 instructing the Chief Executive Officer to lodge a Freedom of 
Information request. 


4.      Keep on engaging with local State Member Troy Bell MP to keep the pressure on the Minister and the Department for Correctional Services. 


CARRIED 


 


22 Oct 2019 - 9:25 AM - Michael McCarthy 
Action reassigned to Meddle, Andrew by: McCarthy, Michael for the reason: Andrew 
4 Nov 2019 - 5:19 PM - Andrew Meddle 
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Action completed by: Meddle, Andrew 
Freedom of Information Act request withdrawn. Letter sent to Troy Bell MP seeking to continue close working on this matter. 


 
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject 


Council 15/10/2019 Meddle, Andrew Motions with Notice Notice of Motion - WINTV Non-Exclusive Licence and Right of Way 
 Meddle, Andrew   


RESOLUTION  2019/288 


Moved: Cr Ben Hood 
Seconded: Cr Steven Perryman 


1. That Council Report No. AR19/54129 titled ‘Notice of Motion - WINTV Non-Exclusive Licence and Right of Way’ as presented on 15 October 2019 be 
noted. 


2. That Council instruct the Chief Executive Officer to reopen discussions with WINTV, with the intent to: 


(a) Request a non-exclusive licence from WINTV, at no cost to the City of Mount Gambier, to utilise any footage that is archived at the NFSA in 
perpetuity (or set time to be reviewed periodically);  


(b) Grant of a long form right of way in favour of WINTV to their site, over a portion of the Lake Terrace Cemetery (being Section 78, Hundred 420200 
contained in Certificate of Title Volume 5836 Folio 64) at no cost to the City of Mount Gambier. 


CARRIED 


 


13 Nov 2019 - 8:13 AM - Andrew Meddle 
Action completed by: Meddle, Andrew 
Letter sent to WINTV and, at the time of writing, a response is awaited. 


 













FY BR1 


2020


FY 


Budget 


2020


2019 


Actual


$'000 $'000 $'000


INCOME


Rates 2     22,433    22,435   21,433 


Statutory charges 2          439         402        426 


User charges 2       5,511      5,269     5,021 


Grants, subsidies and contributions 2       4,102      3,909     4,435 


Investment income 2            64           48          86 


Reimbursements 2          109         101          19 


Other income 2          251         249        417 


Total Income     32,910    32,414   31,837 


EXPENSES


Employee costs 3     12,545    12,589   11,800 


Materials, contracts & other expenses 3     12,802    12,709   11,972 


Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 3       7,447      7,331     7,424 


Finance costs 3          164         152        203 


Total Expenses     32,959    32,781   31,399 


OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)          (48)       (367)        437 


Asset disposal & fair value adjustments 4              -         349      (595)


Amounts received for new or upgraded assets 2          205         175        105 


Physical resources received free of charge 2              -              -        159 


NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)


          transferred to Equity Statement
         157         157        107 


Other Comprehensive Income
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to 


operating result


Changes in revaluation surplus - 


infrastructure, property, plant & equipment
         56 


Impairment (expense) / recoupments offset 


to asset revaluation reserve
           - 


Total Other Comprehensive Income          
             -              -          56 


TOTAL  COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME          157         157        163 


Budget Review 1 FY2020, Budget FY2020 and Actual FY2019


Proforma Statement of Comprehensive Income


City of Mount Gambier







FY BR1 


2020


FY Budget 


2020


2019 


Actual
ASSETS Notes $'000 $'000 $'000


Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,133 431 6,069 


Trade & other receivables 5 1,861 1,524 1,849 


Inventories 5 816 304 816 


Total current assets 5,810 2,259 8,734 


Non-current assets


Financial assets 6 18 - 18 


Added for rounding Infrastructure, property, plant & equipment 7 247,915 252,201 244,752 


Total non-current assets 247,933 252,201 244,770 


Total assets 253,743 254,460 253,504 


LIABILITIES


Current liabilities


Trade & other payables 8 3,065 2,609 3,017 


Borrowings 8 206 206 195 


Provisions 8 2,407 2,332 2,338 


Total current liabilities 5,679 5,147 5,550 


Non-current liabilities


Borrowings 8 2,171 2,170 2,377 


Provisions 8 3,809 3,768 3,649 


Total non-current Liabilities 5,980 5,938 6,027 


Total liabilities 11,658 11,085 11,576 


NET ASSETS 242,084 243,375 241,927 


EQUITY


Accumulated surplus 65,766 65,908 65,609 


Asset revaluation reserves 9 175,458 176,619 175,458 


Other reserves 9 860 848 860 


TOTAL EQUITY 242,084 243,375 241,927 


This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes.


City of Mount Gambier


Proforma Statement of Financial Position


Budget Review 1 FY2020, Budget FY2020 and Actual FY2019







City of Mount Gambier


Accumulated


surplus


Asset 


revaluation 


reserve


Other 


reserves


Total equity


2020 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Balance at end of previous reporting period 65,609 175,458 860 241,928 


Restated opening balance 65,609 175,458 860 241,928 


Net surplus / (deficit) for the year 157 - - 157 


Other Comprehensive Income


Transfers between reserves - - - - 


Balance at end of period 65,766 175,458 860 242,085 


2019 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Balance at end of previous reporting period 65,515 175,402 847 241,764 


Net surplus / (deficit) for the year 107 - - 107 


Other Comprehensive Income


Gain on revaluation of infrastructure, property, 


plant & equipment
- 56 - 56 


Transfers between reserves (13) - 13 - 


Balance at end of period 65,609 175,458 860 241,927 


Proforma Statement of Changes in Equity


Budget Review 1 FY2020 and Actual FY2019







FY BR1 


2020


FY Budget 


2020


2019 


Actual
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes $'000 $'000 $'000


Receipts


Rates - general & other 21,278       21,280       21,388   


Fees & other charges 439            402            426        


User charges 5,481         5,238         5,459     


Investment receipts 64              -                 86          


Grants utilised for operating purposes 4,102         3,909         4,435     


Reimbursements 109            101            21          


Other revenues 251            187            446        


Payments


Employee costs (12,344)      (13,013)      (11,629)  


Materials, contracts & other expenses (11,781)      (10,665)      (12,981)  


Finance payments (152)           (152)           (161)       


Net cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities 7,447         7,287         7,490     


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES


Receipts


Amounts received for new or upgraded assets 205            175            105        


Sale of replaced assets -                 349            359        


Sale of surplus assets -                 -                 -             


Repayments of loans by community groups -                 18              17          


Payments


Expenditure on renewal/replacement of assets (8,018)        (7,493)        (4,006)    


Expenditure on new/upgraded assets (2,376)        (2,953)        (2,265)    


Net cash provided by (or used in) Investing Activities (10,189)      (9,904)        (5,790)    


CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Payments


   Repayments of borrowings (195)           (195)           (218)       


Net cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities (195)           (195)           (218)       


Net increase / (decrease) in cash held (2,937)        (2,812)        1,482     


Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period 10 6,069         3,243         4,587     


Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 10 3,132         431            6,069     


City of Mount Gambier


Proforma Statement of Cash Flows
Budget Review 1 FY2020, Budget FY2020 and Actual FY2019







FY BR1 


2020


FY Budget 


2020


2019 Actual


Operating surplus ratio


     Operating surplus      


 Total operating revenue (0.1%) (1.1%) 1.40%


Net financial liabilities ratio


  Net financial liabilities    


 Total operating revenue 35% 36% 11%


Adjustments to ratios


Adjusted operating surplus ratio (0.1%) (1.5%) (0.7%)


Adjusted financial liabilities ratio 10%


Asset renewal funding ratio


                                 Net asset renewals                                    


 Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan required expenditure 86% 86% 68%


Net financial liabilities are defined as total liabilities less financial assets. These are expressed as a percentage of total operating revenue.


In recent years the Federal Government has made advance payments prior to 30th June from future year allocations of financial assistance grants, as 


explained in Note 1.  The adjusted operating surplus ratio adjusts for the resulting distortion in the disclosed operating result for each year.


Net asset renewals expenditure is defined as net capital expenditure on the renewal and replacement of existing assets, and excludes new capital 


expenditure on the acquisition of additional assets.


Proforma Notes


Budget Review 1 FY2020, Budget FY2020 and Actual FY2019


These financial indicators have been calculated in accordance with Information Paper 9 - Local Government Financial Indicators  prepared as part of 


the LGA Financial Sustainability Program for the Local Government Association of South Australia.  Detailed methods of calculation are set out in the 


SA Model Statements.


This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of total operating revenue.


City of Mount Gambier







Income 32,910 32,362 31,836


Expenses 32,959 32,604 (31,399)


Operating surplus / (deficit) (48) (242) 437


Net outlays on existing assets


Capital expenditure on renewal and replacement of 


existing assets
8,018 7,493 5,346


Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (7,447) (7,331) (7,424)


Proceeds from sale of replaced assets - (349) (359)


571 (187) (2,437)


Net outlays on new and upgraded assets


Capital expenditure on new and upgraded assets
(including investment property & real estate developments)


2,376 2,953 566


Amounts received specifically for new and upgraded 


assets
(205) (175) (105)


Proceeds from sale of surplus assets
(including investment property and real estate developments and 


non-current assets held for resale)


- - 359


2,171 2,778 820


Net lending / (borrowing) for financial year (2,790) (2,833) 2,054


The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment activities of the Council prepared on a 


simplified Uniform Presentation Framework basis.      


All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets and long-term financial plans on the same basis. 


The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common 'core' of financial information, which enables meaningful 


comparisons of each Council's finances.


Proforma Notes


Budget Review 1 FY2020, Budget FY2020 and Actual FY2019


2019 Actual


$'000


FY Budget 2020


$'000


FY BR1 2020


$'000


City of Mount Gambier


Note 14 - Uniform presentation of finances
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Thanks for the further information and assessment of the access routes Richard.
 
It appears that there are a number of options for deliveries to the proposed site to which there are only relatively
minor concerns.  As you mentioned, the Wehl St – Margaret St – Bay Rd route is already a gazetted route for B
doubles, and whilst there is some encroachment across the centre line, given this currently occurs and there are
only likely to be between 1 to 2 delivery movements per day to the proposed site, then this is seen as an
acceptable route.
 
The route via Wehl St – Helen St etc also sees a minor encroachment across the centre line at the Wehl St – Helen
St junction when using the autoturn assessment, however this is the current route for semi-trailer deliveries to the
Coles supermarket which has been occurring for many years without any safety concerns.  Council may be able to
setback the “hold line” at the Helen St leg of the traffic signals at Whel St to lessen the conflict with vehicles
encroaching across the centreline although it is acknowledged that it is only a minor encroachment.
 
Whilst a number of these routes are proposing to enter Commercial St (which carries between 10,000 to 12,000)
vehicles per day, Council would suggest that any vehicles intending on using this road as part of the route for
deliveries, that movements occur outside of peak times if possible so as to minimise traffic congestion and
disruption.
 
On balance, I am satisfied that this information provides a number of practical and safe access routes to the
proposed ALDI development without the need to undertake major alterations to public infrastructure.
 
Regards
 
Daryl Morgan


Manager Engineering Design & Contracts


 


Civic Centre 10 Watson Terrace Mount Gambier


D  08 8721 2524 / T  08 8721 2555 / M  0418 810 523


PO Box 56 Mount Gambier SA 5290


 
 


From: Richard Frimpong [mailto:Richard.Frimpong@gta.com.au] 
Sent: Tuesday, 17 April 2018 3:38 PM
To: Daryl Morgan <DMorgan@mountgambier.sa.gov.au>
Cc: trent@nielsenarchitects.com.au; Kerri.McCard@aldi.com.au; Nigel.Uren@aldi.com.au; Paul Morris
<Paul.Morris@gta.com.au>; Karl.Sampson@aldi.com.au; rgage�@ekis�cs.com.au; Simon Wiseman
<SWiseman@mountgambier.sa.gov.au>
Subject: RE: 58 Commercial St East proposed development - Engineering assessment of preliminary Plans
CRM:0103497
 
Hi Daryl
 
In light of our discussion this morning, I have presented our findings for each of the entry routes for your perusal.  With
the information below, can you comment on which of the options below you support and consider the most
appropriate?  ALDI are seeking a simplified route in lieu of modifying the roundabout.  For each of the options, I have
highlighted the conflicts for each. 
 
Our turn paths are based on a 20.0 metre Semi Trailer, and I note that the vehicle used by ALDI will turn better than
we’ve shown given the conservative nature of autoturn. 
 
Entry Route 01 - Jubilee Hwy West – Wehl St South – Margaret St – Bay Rd – Sturt St – left turn into Compton St
We have explored this route, however we considered the truck continuing through the Bay Rd/Sturt Street
intersection and turning right onto Commercial Street East.  From there, the truck can then turn right onto Compton
Street from Commercial Street East using the signals.  See insert below for more details. 
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I’ve also attached a summary for the route, highlighting the turns at the following key intersections


o    Wehl St S / Margaret St
o    Margaret St / Bay Rd
o    Bay Rd / Commercial St E
o    Commercial St E


 
In particular, the only conflicts are the left turn from Wehl Street S onto Margaret Street and the left turn from
Margaret Street onto Bay Road.  In both cases, our turn paths show the Semi-Trailer crossing the centreline, however
the intersection is unsignalised so the likelihood of conflict is lower. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, Wehl Street S, Margaret St and Bay Rd are already B-Double gazetted, which suggests
larger trucks travel this route.  Furthermore, deliveries by ALDI Trucks will typically be 1-2 movements per day. 
 
Entry Route 02 – Jubilee Hwy West – Penola Rd – Commercial St – right turn into Compton St
While this route is simplified, our turn path shows the truck will cross the centreline when turning left from Penola Rd
onto Commercial St.  I note this intersection is also controlled by signals.  See below:
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Entry Route 03 – Jubilee Hwy West – Penola Rd – Bay Rd – Sturt St – left turn into Compton St
Similar to the above, the left turn shows the truck encroaching into the opposite travel lane when turning from Bay Rd
onto Sturt Street.  See below:
 


 
Entry Route 04 – Wehl St South – Helen Street – Sturt Street – left turn into Compton St
At the Wehl St South/Helen Street intersection our turn path shows the Semi-Trailer turning from the right side of Wehl
Street South and crossing the centreline when turning left into Helen Street.  However it is our understanding that
Coles trucks use this route.  If the Coles trucks are also 19.0 metre Semi Trailers, then the outcome of ALDI trucks using
this route will be the same as the Coles trucks.   
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Naturally if you have any further questions, don’t hesitate to give me a call and I would be happy to discuss further. 
 
Kind Regards
 


Richard Frimpong
Consultant
GTA Consultants
P  08 8334 3600  D  08 8334 3601  M  0433 310 641
Level 5, 75 Hindmarsh Square, Adelaide, SA 5000
Richard.Frimpong@gta.com.au
www.gta.com.au


 


The information contained in this email is confidential and is the subject of professional privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any use, disclosure


or copying of this email or its attachments is unauthorised. If you have received this document in error, please notify GTA Consultants by return email. 


Please consider the environment before printing.


From: Daryl Morgan 
Sent: Monday, 16 April 2018 10:28 AM
To: Simon Wiseman <SWiseman@mountgambier.sa.gov.au>
Subject: 58 Commercial St East proposed development DA18/96 PR18/2777 - Engineering assessment of
preliminary Plans
 
Simon,
I have undertaken an assessment on the preliminary plans for the Fidler and Webb site for the proposed ALDI
development.
 
My summary comments on the plans at this stage are as follows;
 


Carpark has generally been designed in accordance with relevant standards and accommodates required
vehicle movements with minimal conflict points


 
The 19m semi-trailer is the design delivery vehicle for the ALDI store and the largest vehicle required to
enter the site for stock delivery. The vehicle will enter the site from a designated entrance for delivery
vehicles from Compton St in a forward direction and will reverse into the loading bay from within the site from
a designated loading area which is separated from the public car parking area.  This avoids conflict with
other vehicles onsite.  The access to Compton St is via the Sturt Street roundabout whereby the semi-trailer
undertakes a right hand turn movement at the roundabout. In order for this movement to occur, the
developer has suggested that the existing roundabout centre island will need to be altered to be fully
mountable.  Although this is yet to be determined by Council, there are however a number of other
alternative routes to the proposed Compton St that can accommodate a semi-trailer and avoid the need to
alter the roundabout.  These routes are as follows;


 
Jubilee Hwy West – Wehl St South – Margaret St – Bay Rd – Sturt St – left turn into Compton St
Jubilee Hwy East – Penola Rd – Commercial St – right turn into Compton St
Jubilee Hwy East – Penola Rd – Bay Rd – Sturt St – left turn into Compton St


 
Exit for delivery vehicles from the proposed development will occur in a forward motion from Ferrers St and
right turn into Commercial St East.  There is a need to remove a small number of on-street car parks on both
Compton St and Ferrers St to accommodate the turn movements of the design vehicle however the removal
of these parks is not seen as being detrimental to adjacent businesses as the parking surveys undertaken by
both the developer’s traffic consultants and also by council staff previously, has indicated a significant



mailto:Richard.Frimpong@gta.com.au

http://www.gta.com.au/

https://www.linkedin.com/company/gta-consultants

http://www.gta.com.au/

mailto:SWiseman@mountgambier.sa.gov.au
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percentage of vacant on-street car parking spaces.  In addition, the reinstatement of one existing invert on
Ferrers St will see the installation of possibly 2 additional on-street car parking spaces.


 
Overall, I am satisfied that the proposed development has provided reasonable access and egress of
delivery vehicles and this can be accommodated with only minor alterations to existing Council
Infrastructure.


 
The shortfall of 10 car parking spaces (when assessed against the development plan requirements) is seen
as incidental given the percentage of vacant parking spaces within the vicinity of the proposed site
development.


 
 


Whilst further information is required on the proposed stormwater disposal system for the development,
provided there is no increase in the impervious area, then stormwater should be able to be reasonably
contained and disposed of onsite.


 
regards
 
Daryl Morgan


Manager Engineering Design & Contracts


 


Civic Centre 10 Watson Terrace Mount Gambier


D  08 8721 2524 / T  08 8721 2555 / M  0418 810 523


PO Box 56 Mount Gambier SA 5290
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PARKING SPACES AS INDICATED


REMOVAL OF SIX (6) ON-STREET
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ITEM 5.5 - REMOVAL OF PARKING SPACES – ADDITIONAL PLAN FOR CLARIFICATION 
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Signage Workshop
Elected Member Briefing
28 October 2019
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Workshop Objectives
1. Minale Tatterfield signage “strategy” – what is it and what it is not
2. Where does this fit in Council priorities / Incorporation of signage 


into strategic planning
3. Work that has been done to date
4. Quick wins
5. Wayfinding and Signage Plan
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1. Minale Tattefield report


• Minale Tatterfield were commissioned to prepare a signage report 
• The report focusses on the Visitor Economy and servicing
• The focus is narrow and does not provide the detail that would be 
required for a masterplan


• No implementation plan or costings


04







MOUNTGAMBIER.SA.GOV.AU


2. Inclusion in strategic planning
• Signage is a cross‐cutting project affecting multiple Council services
• Strategy is a single issue document providing half the information 
needed to deliver


• Not identified as a clear strategic priority anywhere except with a 
$300k budget allocation


• Endorsed signage family is not the one in the strategy
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3. Work done to date
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• Consultant report was endorsed 
• Precinct activation plan endorsed for ‘Blue Lake Precinct’ and the ‘Umpherston
Precinct’ with the following focus:


• Signage, wayfinding, WiFi and QR codes that incorporate historical and 
indigenous content to aid tourism and general access


• Family of signs was reviewed, revised and agreed upon by Council using our current 
logo as a guide


• An Inventory and audit of existing signs has been done
• Some signs have been removed, some required cleaning and refurbishment and 
this has been completed (for example the limestone signs near the Blue Lake)
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4. Possible quick wins
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• Replace signs removed in the crater lakes precinct


• Focus on crater lakes and Umpherston as the areas with the largest 
number of visitors
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4. Commission implementation package


• Master plan
• Implementation plan
• Costing
• To commence the process will require whole of city approach 
requiring needs to be identified, mapped , linked and supported by 
the development of policies and procedures
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4. Commission implementation package (Cont.)
To create a framework for implementation will require:
• consideration of the degree of digital content considered useful and affordable
• consideration of specific indigenous content for places of significance
• the spaces/locations and content where interpretive signs are placed
• agreement on where and when to use particular sizes of signs
• policy for commercial directional signage
• linkages to street furniture placement (seating and bins)
• sign visibility and viewing angles for:
• Pedestrians 
• Cars
• Disability needs


• existing sign poles and structures that could be used or reused 
• reduction of clutter by consolidation of signage and removal of redundant signs
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Any questions?
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On Site Inspection  


11.30a.m. Wednesday 9th October, 2019 


1 & 2/47 Kurrajong Street, Mount Gambier 


With Ian Matters, the occupier, Heather Reilly, Environmental Health Officer, and 
Tracy Tzioutziouklaris, Manager Development Services  


Heather and myself met with Ian Matters on site at 1 & 2/ 47 Kurrajong Street.  The purpose 
of this meeting was to get an update as to how Ian was going with a clean up of the property 
in response to the Notice issued pursuant to the South Australian Public Health Act. 


Heather mainly talked to Ian, whilst I looked around. 


When asked Ian confirmed that he had removed a couple of cars form the property as well 
as had removed items from within the building.  Access could be obtained to the inside of 
unit 1, but access had been blocked to unit 2 to prevent access to this part of the building. 


Ian also confirmed that he was working to remove additional cars from the property.  He also 
confirmed that the owner of the property also stores items on site, such as the rolls of carpet 
within the building which he is intending to use elsewhere 


When asked Mr Matters confirmed that no one lives on the subject property.  I raised that to 
store items on a residential property where no one was living would be a change in land use 
that required approval from Council.  Mr Matters was unaware of this.  I confirmed that I 
would confirm this in writing, 


At the time of the inspection I observed the following: 


• A car parked at the front of the property which was full of shopping bags and papers. 
(This was the car currently being driven) 


• A car parked in the driveway area, adjacent to the southern property boundary, which 
was full of shopping bags, paper and books. 


• Another four cars parked in the rear yard area, again the cars were full of shopping 
bags, paper, books and numerous items. 


Located immediately adjacent to the southern wall of the building was various items 
including an old car seat, juice bottle, shopping bags, plastic bags and an assortment of 
other small items. 


In the rear yard area there were: 


• Car tyres 
• Various car parts 
• Juice containers 
• Drums 
• Car battery 
• Dink crates 
• Boxes 
• Pieces of timber 







• 2 x Grass catcher from a lawn mower 
• 44L drum 
• Car tyre rim 
• Adjacent to the norther property boundary there were: 
• Car parts 
• Chairs 
• Boxes full of various items 
• A 44 L drum 
• A car seat 
• Smaller drums 
• Paper is various condition, including rotting 


Inside unit 1 the following was observed: 


• Furniture in poor condition 
• Rolls of carpet. Some with visible mould 
• Plastic shopping bags 
• Shopping bags 
• A stove 
• A car door 
• General rubbish 
• Numerous examples of rat faeces 


Access was unable to obtained to the second unit, but the following was clearly visible 
through the window: 


• Numerous banana/fruit & vegetable boxes piled high 


Two car tyres were observed located on the south eastern and south western corners of the 
roof.  It is assumed that these car tyres are there to stop the corrugated iron banging in the 
wind, as the banging of iron has been the subject of earlier complaints. 


The following photos were taken at the on site inspection. 


 


 


 


Tracy TZIOUTZIOUKLARIS 
MANAGER DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 


 


 







 


 























 























 























 















 








ATTACHMENT 1 – COMMUNITY AND RECREATION HUB DRAWINGS 
 


 
Site Location Plan 







 
Site Plan  







 
North elevation 
 


 
East elevation 


  







 


 
South elevation 
 


 
West elevation 
 







 
Ground Floor Plan 







 
First Floor Plan 







 
Landscaping Plan (draft) 








ATTACHMENT 2 – INCLUSIONS & EXCLUSIONS 
 
The following comprises the list shared with Elected Members at the confidential briefing on 22nd 
October 2019. It should be read in conjunction with the development summary provided in the 
Background section of the main report. The list is not exclusive, but was presented as follows: 
 
INCLUDED ELEMENTS 
• Enhanced splashpad & associated equipment 
• Timber solution to pool hall, hybrid to courts 
• Hydronic flooring 
• Electronic heating and cooling 
• Solar 
• Public art 
• Second commercial kitchen 
• Lighting gantry and associated entertainment package 
• Seating for spectators (to enable sporting codes compliance) 
• Tables and chairs and additional storage 
• Sporting Code compliance – lighting, flooring, starting blocks, etc. 
• Timber flooring show courts and Rebound Ace flooring in other courts 
• Three phase power and ability to plug in emergency generation 
• Keep existing sub-station and add in extra sub-station 
• Car parking lighting to contemporary standards 
• Service road addition 
 
ASSOCIATED ELEMENTS 
• 50m pool refurbishment 
• Sensory garden 
• Tennis upgrade 
• Tenancy displacement costs 
 
NOT CURRENTLY INCLUDED ELEMENTS 
• Sinkhole works 
• Electronic sponsorship signage (to meet expectations of all users) 
• PLEC works (costs awaited from them) 
• Display cabinets (integrated into design) 
• External toilet block 
• Drop in platform to 25m pool to enable LTS 
• Touch pads for swimming 
 








ATTACHMENT 1 
 


TABLE 1 – MODELLED OPERATING COSTS 


Capital 
Spend 


(including 
allowances 


Depreciation 
expense 


Interest 
expense 


Total 
depreciation 


Net Profit After Tax with Labour Cost Saving % 


0% -5% -10% -15% -20% 


$39,100 -$786 -$292 -$1,079 -$1,809 -$1,708 -$1,606 -$1,504 -$1,402 


$42,000 -$845 -$359 -$1,204 -$1,934 -$1,833 -$1,731 -$1,629 -$1,527 


$45,000 -$905 -$428 -$1,333 -$2,064 -$1,962 -$1,860 -$1,758 -$1,656 


$50,000 -$1,006 -$543 -$1,549 -$2,279 -$2,177 -$2,076 -$1,974 -$1,872 


 Wholly in-
sourced 


[N.b. These indicate the potential labour cost savings as the 
level of out-sourcing increases]. 


 








COMMUNITY AND RECREATION HUB 
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Council 


Regional Sport and Recreation Centre 
Committee


Presiding Member: Cr Ben Hood 
[All Elected Members sit on this Committee] 


Governance 


Operations 


Project Manager 


Site Superintendent 


Architects / Engineers 
DesignInc & Co-op Studios & 


supporting teams 


Head Contractor 
TBC 


Cost Consultants 
Rider Levett Bucknall (RLB) 


Finance 
Internal  


Contract Superintendent 








Grant Avenue 
Mount Gambier SA 5290 


11 July 2019 


Reference: BLGC 001/2019/20 


Mr. A Meddle 
Chief Executive Officer 
City of Mount Gambier 
10 Watson Terrace 
MOUNT GAMBlER SA 5290 


Dear Sir, 


Report from the Blue Lake Golf Club on Required Key Performance Indicators 
(KPI) 
In accordance with the requirements of Council, the management of the Blue Lake Golf Club 
hereunder provide our report on the first quarter of operation under self-management, of the Blue 
Lake Golf Course (BLGC). 


Given the nature of this report, which includes both plans and financial information we request 
that, for commercial purposes, the information contained within this report be held in the strictest 
confidence and for Council eyes only. 


Firstly; we would like to thank the City of Mount Gambier for affording the members of the BLGC the 
opportunity to take on the management of this community facility; and entrusting our membership 
with not only the preservation of the asset, but also potentially our intended expansion which will 
truly value add to the community. 


It would be an understatement to say that the first quarter hasn't been without its challenges; as 
would be expected when taking over a valuable asset such as this from virtually scratch; and with 
little, or no assistance from the previous caretaker. It is to the members credit that the club has 
been able to get where it now is when you consider the position which the QEPT placed us 
in. Especially when they were running at over $300,000 a year in the red for the last couple of 
years(nearly $1 million over spent in past 5 years), and: 


1. We have started from scratch with little guidance or help (even though QEPT were going 
to pass on info to help) 
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2. Finding a Green Keeper and keeping the course in good condition 
3. Spray Records missing 
4. Chemical Register Missing and then incomplete 
5. Watering system tampered with and information not forth coming and missing 
6. Key machinery sold off that was apparently surplus to our needs (spray unit, 4 WD ute 


(couldn't access areas of course) 
7. Non servicing of machinery for past years 
8. Uncompleted Hand over Schedule of maintenance on QEPT's part (Burley's have 


finished all theirs and then some) 


The opportunity has bought the club closer together, and with our dedicated team, members and 
community support, we can enthusiastically say all have relished the challenge to the extent that 
participation at the course has, given recent times, never been higher. 


With regards to our commitment to Council we can report that we have not only met our required 
KPI's; but that we have exceeded them to the extent that most of our annual KPI's have already 
been met. 


Achievements in our first three (3) months; since the inception of the lease include: 


1. Record Membership numbers 
2. Over 60 inducted members to help on course. Inductions carried out by qualified WH & 


S officer with records of inductions retained. 
3. Reinstated work for the dole program 
4. Appointed a new Greens Keeper, Daniel Christian, who is not only approachable and 


diligent, but has also shown that he is a 'good fit' for the BLGC 
5. Our new treasurer, Jayne Bonney, has been engaged by the BLGC to fulfil our 


commitment to making the BLGC a fully operational, sustainable and full-time 
community asset; and brings a wealth of knowledge to our club 


It would be unrealistic to state that everything has been 'plain sailing' during our first three months, 
and although we have had numerous challenge's we have been able to call on the necessary 
expertise to overcome most difficulties. Special mention, in this regard, needs to be made to the 
following: 


1. The Burley Family. As lessee has opened to the door to a variety of events and 
opportunities which the club was previously not been able to 'tap' into (lacked the 
required autonomy), and also provides general course management expertise. 


2. MottFinnis and Co Accounting. For overlooking our Asset Management Strategy and 
assisting in the development of our financial business plan 


3. Daryl Sellar from Living Turf offering his expert advice 
4. The support of the community, members and local businesses that are willing and able 


to assist us in achieving our goals. 


All of the above has led to a greater engagement and ownership by not only the members, but also 
the general community as a whole. 


We now hereby enclose the following information and documents to support our meeting of the 
required KPI's: 


1. Detailed Asset Management Plan (AMP) 
2. Business Plan 
3. Fully audited financial statements as at the 30th June 2019 
4. Profit and loss accounts for the first quarter of operation 
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5. Minutes of meeting 


Contained within the documents is our vision for the future direction of the club, with the overall 
goal of providing a multifaceted facility for both the community and the local tourism industry. We 
take the view that the BLGC has the ability to provide this type of facility to further the economic 
development of our great city, but in stating this we also recognize that financial assistance will be 
required along the way. This financial assistance would not necessarily be for the running of the 
facility; but rather for the proposed capital value add of the overall community asset as set out in 
the AMP. 


We look forward to the opportunity to not only discuss this report, but also discussing further the 
environment that we believe can be created for both the community and tourism; and the future 
self-sustainability of the Blue Lake Golf Club. 


We also would like to extend an open invitation to Council members to view the facilities and 
course so that they can see first hand the general condition of the course and infrastructure. 


Yours Faithfully 


Stephen Smith 
Blue Lake Golf Club 


Enclosures: 


1. Detailed Asset Management Plan 
2. Business Plan 
3. 2018-2019 Fully audited statements of account 
4. Profit and loss accounts for period 1 t  July 2019 to 30th September 2019 (1St 


Quarter) 
5. Minutes of Meeting: 


a. Committee meeting dated 1St July 2019 
b. Committee meeting dated 8th July 2019 
C. Annual General Meeting Dated 28th July 2019 
d. Committee meeting dated 5th August 2019 
e. Committee meeting dated 2nd September 2019 
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CASHFLOW SUMMARY 


2019/2020 EX GST 
Budget Actuals 


Income $ 
Golf Operations 290,000 91,899.93 
Course Operations 6,500 0.00 
Administration & Indirect Activities 170,680 57,716.44 
Total Income 467,180 149,616.37 


Expense 
Golf Operations 58,400 7,115.44 
Course Operations 217,512 24,706.32 
Administration & Indirect Activities 169,515 48,630.86 
Asset Replacement Expenditure 20,000 0.00 
Total Expense 465,427 80,452.62 


Total Surplus/(Deficit) 1,754 69,163.75 
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Enclosure 4 to Report 


GOLF OPERATIONS 


2019/2020 EXGST 
Budget Actuals 


Income $ 
Green Fees 95,000 14,489.09 
Subscriptions 145,000 64,458.96 
Competition Fees 50,000 12,951.88 
Total Income 290,000 91,899.93 


Expense 
Affiliation Fees 11,000 0.00 
Program & Scorecard Printing 3,500 0.00 
MiClub Gold Expenses Upfront 18,900 0.00 
Regular Prizes 25,000 7,115.44 
Total Expense 58,400 7,115.44 


Total Profit/(Loss) 231,600 84,784.49 
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COURSE OPERATION 


2019/2020 
Budget Actuals 


Income $ 
Fuel Tax Rebate 5,500 0 
Course Sundry Income 1,000 0 
Total Income 6,500 0 


Expense 
Electricity 15,000 792.45 
Fuel & Oils 17,000 3545.58 
General Maintenance 6,000 
Labour 90,000 11763.87 
Machinery Repairs 35,305 1240.91 
Motor Vehicle 3,500 235.29 
Safety & Protective Equipment 2,400 479 
Sand,Loam, Fertilizer, Chemical 35,000 5360.74 
Superannuation 8,550 782.57 
Volunteer Gratuity 1,800 505.91 
Workcover 2,957 0 
Total Expense 217,512 24706.32 


Total Profit/(Loss) (211,012) -24706.3 
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ADMINISTRATION & INDIRECT ACTIVITIES 


2019/2020 Ex GST 
Budget Actuals 


Income $ 
Bank Interest 480 199.77 
Bingo Ticket Sales 3,000 3,477.55 
Buggy Shed Fees 4,000 4,254.51 
Fundraising 15,000 0.00 
Lease of Bar & Bistro 40,000 835.85 
Locker Fees 2,000 63.64 
City of Mt Gambier 75,000 25,000.00 
Sponsorship 30,000 23,454.55 
Sundry 1,200 430.57 
Total Income 170,680 57,716.44 


Expense 
Accounting & Audit 4,000 13.19 
Accounting Software 1,080 0.00 
Advertising 4,800 2,278.69 
Bingo Ticket Expenses 960 3,028.19 
Cleaning Contract 3,000 0.00 
Clubhouse Expenses 
Electricity 4,000 1,614.97 
Repairs & Maintenance 3,000 1,069.11 


Council Rates 4,400 1,106.26 
Fundraising 4,800 0.00 
Insurance 12,500 5,080.66 
IT Hardware 2,000 456.81 
Management Fee 100,000 22,727.27 
Lease 475 495.00 
Legal Expenses 2,000 3,274.22 
MiClub P05 Upfront 10,000 0.00 
Rubbish Disposal 4,800 865.01 
Security Monitoring 1,200 178.91 
Stationery 2,000 922.10 
Telephone 2,000 163.62 
Water Rates 2,500 508.02 
Roll over expenses from 18/19 0 4,848.83 
Total Expense 169,515 48,630.86 


Total Profit/(Loss) 1,165 9,085.58 
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M l  N RYES 


Date: 01/07/2019 
Time: 5.30pm 


In Attendance 
Beryl Mahoney, Greg Cooper, Gary Stevens, Shane Fenwick, Geoff Munt, Bill Burley, Peter Sealey, 
David Johnson, Cohn Tester and Tony Steen. 


Absent 
Josh Gale, Steve Smith, Rhonda Ferguson, Sue Agars and Adam Jones. 


CONGRATULATIOS ON OUR FIRST DAY !!!! 


Approval of Minutes 
Minutes from last meeting were tabled and accepted 


Passed Gary Stevens 2nd Greg Cooper 


Business Arising From Minutes 


GS - List of jobs to be done 


Sublease for Bill being prepared by lawyers and to be approved by council. 


SF - AGM needs advertising in Border watch in July 


BLGC AGM 2pm on 28th of July 


To start with 


2 Person Ambrose lOam register for 10.30 tee off 


1pm lunch 
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GS - Rates reduction for golf course via council. To get course part reduced with sub lease of 
building still to pay rates. 


GS - Monthly payments from Council - Give Bank details etc. 


John Finnis finishing updated Business plan by end of month 


GS - Phone Green triangle - 1 phone number in - 3 lines out 


GS / S S -  Insurance sorted $15,000 or just under pay monthly 


GS - Andy Hinton keen to help on course next 3 months casual rates. 


TS - Navara Ute available via Steel line club needs to pay rego. 


TS - John Kamp inductions Ok not him to induct. 


GS - P.R to show a couple how to cut greens GC & CT 


GS - Work for the Dole to continue 15 hours a week 2 workers Graham (clean up no machines) and 
Brian rough cutter and fairways. 


8.30 - 2.30 Mondays and Tuesdays 


8.30 - 12.30 Wednesdays 


Rough Cutting- sort volunteers and machine via council when available 


BB - PR to help for a week cutting greens at no cost to club. Us to give him 10 vouchers to hit with 
son. 


AJ - End of year reports 


SF - Life Member Letter. Only pay$100 (had been paying $300 with trust) 


GS - buggy shed to be paid out $2700 ish via QEPT 


Lease with council done 


Lease with Bill memorandum of understanding to operate until lease finalized. 


Matt Chesterman to help with Green Keeper 


2 resumes received to interview 


Cheap labour ASICS. 


PS - Machinery register list right 


Look at replacement machinery 


Volunteers to clean after use!! 


9.30 Sunday Mens Pennants here 60ish people. Need to reset course BB, blower greens and 
surrounds TS, wiper sniper GC 
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Captains Report 


One week to go in pennants, only A l  men can make finals. 


Need to reset for Sunday 


Do we have slope rating for white tees? No - GM 


After Sunday next comp. AGM 28th July 


Need to sort alert for getting people off course after Saturday storm. Duty of care BLGC 


Hutt for shelter 


Bill Moved a motion to blow Siren when Lightning and Thunder to delay play 


2nd Cohn Tester 


Presidents Report 


Thank you from Rhonda, sorry can't be there tonight in hospital in Adelaide. Looking forward to 
future. 


Handicapper Report 
GM - Re-measure course Mick or Trevor callis 


Measurement to betaken off scorecard 


Membership update golf link til 31st July 2020 


Full membership easy 


Monthly and 6 month to be told invalid if fail to pay. 


General Business 
GS - Money received with no Ref: $65 and $750 membership 


Jayne (secretary) needs contact list. 


BB - Sponsorship to be set 


GM - needs 2 cans paint 


Moved Bill 2nd Tony 
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Ladies Report 


BM - Nil to report 


2nd Shane 3rd Bill 4th Tony 5th Gary © 


BM - ladies to clean buggy shed 


General Business 


GS - Lots print out from Gary 


Money spent already some not in budget for startup costs around $10,000 


Lawyers, Liquor License, extra Insurance, till, contractors and payments. To readjust business plan 
and incorporate costs. 


Bank doesn't have online signatories available - suggested remove dual signatories so secretary 
Jayne Bonney can pay online. Jayne Bonney to be added as signatory on bank account. 


Require minutes to be taken to bank and change. 


Moved Tony 211d Peter passed. 


Membership update $9,000 in bank with $16,000 to go in Approximately $25,000. 


Jayne Bonney to go to bank with lOOpts of ID 


BB - Till here with comps. Print out, fees, driving range, 9 hole/18 hole, reciprocal, golf meal deal, 
weather report etc. 


PS - Future works infrastructure (old master plan from QEPT when he was in charge) 


Help with approvals from council and Heritage 


Layout with details 


Notes to support master plan 


Help with funding 


See Steve Smith to work in to gether 


Thank you from Peter for every ones efforts and including him in the Clubs plight. 
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DJ - email 6 month members 


Need to know who's in buggy shed 


Minimum 6 month membership to have cart space 


Lease agreements ref: AJ 


GC - Andy Hinton Black spot in greens? 


*to be investigated ask PR or agronomist, maybe John Lillicrap. 


Spray unit or get someone to spray green keeper to sort. 


I S  - BLGC Cards QEPT gave couple of hundred use for now. Sign in sheet? 


SF - Spray unit 


Update web site 


Committee's structure all good will email once typed up. 


BB - Signage sorted 


Flyer for club being looked at and revamped 


Double spread border watch, come try, short course 


Next Meeting 
8 /07 /2019  5.30pm, Blue Lake Golf Links 


Motion to adjourn was made at 7.50pm and was passed unanimously. 


5 


Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 







CoMMIrT& 


MtNRTS 


Date: 08/07/2019 
Time: 5.30pm 


In Attendance 
Rhonda Ferguson, Helen Myers, Beryl Mahoney, Greg Cooper, Gary Stevens, Shane Fenwick, Bill 
Burley, Peter Sealey, Josh Gale, Cohn Tester and Tony Steen. 


Absent 
Geoff Munt, David Johnson, Steve Smith, Sue Agars and Adam Jones. 


Peter Report on course and chemical shed 
Peter checked out Machinery/ Green keeper shed with Peter Sealey 


Findings 


Chemical shed MSD's removed for fire safety - need to be on hand but cannot store in shed (no 
point if they are in the fire) legally need to be able to access them. 


Spoke about operational procedure for chemical shed and our obligations 


Will put signage up for MSD's 


Dangerous Substance Register is due for renewal November. 


Suggested a Lawyers registered letter to previous green keeper and QEPT for our chemical 
Register with all spray records. Legal requirement to be kept last 7 years. 


Also recommended to assist greens we get Bio Turf to do a soil and water test ($132 receive back 
in 3 weeks) 


Peter is a licensed Green keeper and willing to help in interim (holidays 25th July till 17th 
September. Spray licensed till end 2020. 


Greens need spraying 


Mallets l I t  $120 
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Tirrum 200sc Spray when wet 


Look out for Phisarym. 


Spray 14 - 21 day time again for African black beetle. Bury down 6inches to a foot under the thatch 
and need to re-spray. 


Holes need to be moved. 


Spoke about coring September Core (Hugh Ryan, Peterborough) 


50mm x 50mm 1/2" or 100mm x 100mm needs more sanding 


Verti drain before end of March 


Last coring was September and 15th January prior to that. 


Club Secretary update -Jayne 
1st aid boxes audited by safety supplies 


Chemical MSD's 


Credit applications to suppliers 


AGM adds border watch $67.80 for 3 days 


Board room sign 


Booklet 


Revenue SA rates waived 


Insurance payments 


Troy Bells office grants 


MYO B 


115 members so far 


Life member addresses requested 


Power SA Green Keeper/ pump sheds Origin Energy 15% cheaper. Direct Debit 1 year contract 


Internet check out Optus - Harry 


Access face book, website 


Pass word to the sprinkler system changed 
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General Business 
Applications for green keeper, we have two worth looking into. 


Simon JeIf from Switzerland 


Spoke well has been 210 at a couple of courses 


Has Australian citizenship and would be available November 


Think this is the guy for us still to speak to Daniel Christian 


Bill to speak to Peter irl filling in until then. 


Andy available for 3 months also. 


Inductions Peter. R and Sue. A for machinery with volunteers 


Spray for black beetle cost $230 


Offer Kennedy's 12 month work they will also monitor greens over 12 months. 


Moved a motion Bill Burley 2nd Beryl Mahoney 


PS - Machinery shed - log book replacement 


Maintenance upkeep Course Management Committee to over see 


Need rough cutter 


RE - Work for dole 4 workers 25hrs a week No paid supervisor 


Start once full time green keeper 


Andy to move holes 


JB - Communication key for a green keeper 


Letter to members 


Patience first12 months 


Course condition 


Volunteers 


GK - ute fan belt and muffler need fixing 


Fuel use 1/2 tank this week on rough cutter 
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Keys to be kept on course 


GS - Wilson security keys - Jayne 


BB- Sunday abandon course 9.30 duty of care plus 60 people would have damaged too much. 


Carpets have been cleaned 


Kitchen up date to comply sinks, cupboards and storeroom to cost Bill and Wendy 


Meals closed for 2 weeks 


Membership coming in well 


Tills sorted and working well 


New members coming in 


Sponsor ship going out 


Fundraising bi-annual dinner 


Celebrity ambrose day 


Annual Quiz night with 1St prize limo and dinner for 8 


Trivia night with a twist 


Heading in right direction 


Border watch spread needs doing 


Council - working committee to catch up 


Next Meeting 
15/07 /2019  5.30pm, Blue Lake Golf Links 


Motion to adjourn was made at 750pm and was passed unanimously. 
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INCORPORATED 


Sunday 28 July 2019 
2pm Blue Lake Golf Club - Grant Ave, Moorak SA 5291 


MEETING MINUTES 


Present: 
Life Members: Rhonda Ferguson, Russell Lingham 
Members: Adrian Wallace, Barry Humphries, David Johnston, David Atkins, John Robertson, Brian Dunn, Adam 
Jones, Cohn Rex, Cohn Stafford, Roger Gale, Martin Markiewicz, Trevor Little, Fred Knight, Josh Gale, D. McKenzie, 
Roy Montgomery, Victor Smith, Brenton Speck, Kevin Howell, Kevin Mansell, Mario Mancuso, David Lock, Garry Fox, 
Geoff Munt, Carol Melhuish, Bill Melhuish, Bev Pascoe, Cheryl Hill, Lee-anne Medhurst, Di Allen, Lyn Annand, Fay 
Price, Cyril Price, Sue Agars, Fiona Punton, Steve Dwyer, Lucy Richards, Phil Richards, Wayne Dunford, Marlene 
Lingham, Janine Dunn, Geraldine Scott, Beryl Mahoney, Doug Prettyjohn, Helen Stratford, Shane Fenwick, Gary 
Stevens, Geoff Muller, Jayne Bonney, Bill Burley, Ross McMahon, Mark Ferguson 


Meeting Opened: 


1. Welcome and introduction Rhonda Ferguson 
Rhonda welcomed members to the meeting 


2. Apologies Rhonda Ferguson 
Helen Myers, Lynda Nannings, Peter Sealey, Greg Cooper, Don Annand, Gavin Sparrow, Carol Megan, Nancy 
Whitehead, Stephen Smith, Pat Fallas, Di Perryman, Annette Ford, Leslie McPherson, Allan Stewart, Bruce 
Grubb, Adam Dunn, Brian Vawser, Chris Bowd 


3. Confirmation of Quorum Rhonda Ferguson 
Confirmed quorum achieved - 54 Present 


4. Confirmation of minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting minutes being true and correct. 
Moved : Col Stratford 
Seconded: Gary Stevens 


S. Presidents Report Rhonda Ferguson 
Rhonda presented the presidents report for the 2018/2019 Financial Year 
Seconded: Fred Knight 


6. Captains Report Bill Burley 
Bill presented the captains report for the 2018/2019 Financial Year 
Seconded: Russell Lingham 


7. Treasurers Report Adam Jones 
Profit & Loss statement presented for the 2018/2019 Financial Year 
Seconded: Dave Atkins 
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8. Ladies Report Beryl Mahoney 
Beryl presented the Ladies report for the 2018/2019 Financial Year 
Seconded: Marlene Lingham 


9. Election of Officers Bill Burley 
10. POSITION NOMINATION NOMINATED BY SECONDED BY 


President Rhonda Ferguson Gary Stevens Shane Fenwick 
Vice-President Gary Stevens Beryl Mahoney Geraldine Scott 
Secretary Josh Gale Stephen Smith Tim Smith 
Treasurer Jayne Bonney Shane Fenwick Bill Burley 
Captain Adam Jones Gary Stevens Bill Burley 
Vice-Captain Greg Cooper Gary Stevens 


- 
Shane Fenwick 


Handicapper Geoff Munt Rhonda Ferguson Bruce Titchbon 
Assist Handicapper David Johnston Stephen Smith Tim Smith 
Ladies Representative Beryl Mahoney Bill Burley Gary Stevens 
Committee Greg Cooper Gary Stevens Shane Fenwick 


Shane Fenwick Bill Burley Beryl Mahoney 
Tony Steen Gary Stevens Shane Fenwick 
Bill Burley Rhonda Ferguson Gary Stevens 
Cohn Stratford Helen Stratford Gary Stevens 
Geoff Muller Rhonda Ferguson Gary Stevens 


11. Appointment of Auditor Rhonda Ferguson 
Auditor appointed for 2019/2020 Financial Year - Mott Finnis & Co 


Moved: Bill Burley 
Seconded: Cohn Rex 


12. General Business Rhonda Ferguson 
A. A special meeting to take place Sunday 18 1h August for amendments to the constitution 


13. Next Annual General Meeting to be held July 2020 
Date TBC 


14. Meeting Closed: 2.40pm 
Rhonda Ferguson thanked members for their attendance. 


Other Announcements: 


Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 







BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB - PRESIDENTS REPORT 


A warm welcome to all members of the Blue Lake Golf Club for our 2019 AGM. 


This past 12 months has certainly been different with many things happening, especially when the 
Queen Elizabeth Park Trust dropped a bombshell on the club committee. Stating that they were not 
renewing their lease with the Mount Gambier City Council due to financial difficulties, having 
overspent on wages & the course. We were given 3 weeks to decide if we as a club wanted to take it 
on. After many hours of meetings& constructing business plans, we were able to inform the QEPT. 
That we would deal with the council and go for a 5 year lease, which is lyr  + 4yrs renewable each 
year. The club has offered Bill & Wendy Burley the same time structure, for the bistro, bar & golf 
shop. 


As of the 1st July the Blue Lake Golf Club is leasing off the Mount Gambier City Council. 
The working committee is in the process of interviewing applicants for a head greenskeeper. The 
Club would like to thank Peter Roughana & Andrew Hinton for coming to our assistance of keeping 
the greens mowed. 


In coming weeks all committee's will be set up, so don't feel disheartened if you haven't been 
contacted. Please don't feel annoyed as the weather improves & functions are organized more 
members will be required to help. 


A big thank you to all our Tee Block sponsors & Major event sponsors without your financial support 
the club would not be able to keep the course in good condition. A big thank you also to my 
committee for your help during the past year, it has been greatly 
appreciated. 


All positions on the main committee are vacant, with some of the members nominating to continue 
on the committee for the coming year. To help keep the club stay high up in the surrounding district 
& prove to a lot of negative people that we as a club can make it work & I look forward to working 
with them. 


Good health & good golfing for the coming year. 


Rhonda Ferguson - Blue Lake Golf Club Inc, President 
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Captains report 2019/20 


The past season for the Blue Lake Golf Club has been a rewarding one in the form of 
members numbers playing with entries in all midweek and weekend competitions growing 
to their highest since the clubs humble beginnings. 


Highlights from the season began with two of  our club teams going onto to play in state final 
of Volkswagon Scramble in Adelaide. 


Another big highlight was seeing Marc Dalton take out back to back Wayne Scutter 
Memorial Invitationals after a long run of visiting clubs domination one of  our most highly 
decorated golfers in Dalton has helped make this event a very sort after local tournament. 
Our Club Championship once again saw some great numbers take part and in B grade it was 
Adam Jones who etched his name in the clubs history along with up and coming Junior 
golfer Callum Harvey who took out a close match in C grade. 


A grade saw a magnificent piece of sportsmanship played out as a freak work injury couldn't 
allow Anthony Williams to play the final against Trevor Little on the scheduled day of  play. 
Little's gesture was to wait until Willians hand has recovered and fit for the final which 
eventually was played and saw Williams win in overtime and continue his domination since 
joining the club. 


A new event this year was the Celebrity Ambrose which raised money for charity and 
moving forward into 2020 I would hope to make this event a major fundraiser for the Blue 
Lake Golf Club which will assist with much needed funds for the future. 


Our pennant season this year all be it an unsuccessful one we as a club were well 
represented in all grades and players who took part can hold their heads up high even 
though we weren't winning each week they turned up on a regular basis. 


Last but certainly not least I would like to thank our handicapper Geoff Munt and his able 
assistant David Johnston as without them our handicapping and new member enrolment 
would not get done and to all that have helped with events and cleaning up of  course 
leading up to major events a huge Thankyou from me. 


CLUB CAPTAIN 
BILL BURLEY 
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Blue Lake Ladies Golf Club President's Report 


The Blue Lake ladies have had another successful year. Our ladies membership remains at 32 and 4 
Life Members, with an average of  22 - 25 playing each Wednesday up until June when several of  our 
members head to warmer climates. We have appreciated two groups now being able to hit of f  the 
10th Tee on our Wednesday competition days, coming into lunch together makes for a better social 
day. 


We have promoted come and try Golf Clinics to encourage more ladies to play. Bill and Helen had 10 


- 12 come and have lessons over a 6 week period, unfortunately we haven't seen an increase at our 
Wednesday golf, but several do play as social golfers, we continue to work hard at attracting ladies 


to  play golf. 


This year we have used the new Orange Short Course on a couple of  occasions and hope to 


encourage some of our new golfers to come along and give it a try. 


Congratulations to our Club Champion A Grade winner Josie Ashby and B Grade winner Lyn Annand 
and our Handicap winners A Grade Sue Agars and B Grade Lyn Annand. 


Our two ladies Pennants Teams had great success winning the Finals o f  Division 2 & Division 3.There 


were a few champagnes back at the Club after our win. Blue Lake Golf Ladies have represented the 
club at most District Golf Clubs Open Days. 


Leanne Medhurst and Helen Myers ventured across the border to Hamilton and won the prestigious 
Hamilton Rose Bowl, and Leanne, Helen and Annette Ford won the Cudmore Bowl in Naracoorte. At 


our own Club Open Day on May 30th we tried a new format, an Ambrose with 73 women in the field, 


it was deemed a very successful day with teams attending from SA and Victoria. We thank the men 
who arrived very early to  clean up the course for us. 


We held our annual "Pink Golf Day" fundraiser in March, everyone got into the spirit of  the day by 


wearing pink, a total of  $800.00 was donated to the local Breast Cancer Group. 


We have tried to self-fund many o f  our events and we thank the following sponsors for making this 
possible, Noel Barr, up Jip Rock wines, South Aussie Hotel, Café Belgiorno, Collins Court Butchers, 
Links Bar & Bistro, Sorrentos Café, She's Apples, Metro Bakery, Bev Pascoe, Grant & Di Perryman, 
Aquifer tours, and Life Members Rhonda Ferguson, Judy Collins and Pat Fallas. 


Club members also participated in the Southern Ports Golf week. Social occasions have been well 
attended with a weekend in Port Fairy becoming an annual event. We have continued to support the 
Kmart Christmas Wishing Tree. 


The ladies committee have tidied up the change rooms and continue to sweep out the buggy shed 
and tidy gardens around the Club House. We thank Bill and his team for their continued support of 
Ladies golf. 


It has been a challenging last few months for the golf club, I congratulate the working party on the 
work they have done to see the club go forward in a positive way. 


Beryl Mahoney - President Ladies Committee 
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Date: 05/08/2019 
Time: 5.30pm 


In Attendance 
Josh Gale, David Johnston, Bill Burley, Geoff Munt, Gary Stevens, Shane Fenwick, Jayne Bonney, 
Cohn Stratford and Beryl Mahoney 


Absent 
Greg Cooper, Adam Jones, Tony Steen, Rhonda Ferguson and Geoff Muller 


Peter Roughana - Course Report 


Peter Roughana was given the time to address the committee on some issues and observations 
that he's witness since helping out as greenkeepers. 


Peter put forward a report firstly showing the total area of all the greens, a list of all the machineries, 
filters and dead stock. Peter has also asked for written confirmation from the BLGC for us to go 
ahead with 100 x 100 coring of the greens instead of the usually 50 x 50. He believes that will help 
in breaking up the hard layer below the surface. Verti-draining will cost $880+GST for .8 of a 
hectare and the sand will cost $1754 +GST. Hue Ryan will cost $500 for travel; we will need to time 
it in with other golf clubs to break up the travel cost. 


Peter also suggested moving on the longest running machinery that we have. The longer that we 
hold on to these items, the less value well get from them. His thoughts were that the greens mower 
should be first priority followed by rough cutter than fairway mower. 


Peter finished off with a list of jobs for us as a committee to look through. 


Approval of Minutes 


Minutes from last meeting were tabled and accepted. Geoff moved the approval with Beryl 
seconding. 
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Business Rising and Actions from Minutes 
Jayne - Is to write a letter of thanks, to Trevor Calliss for his help in remarking the blue and red 
markers. 


Committee - To ask Peter Sealey if he wishes to join the Golf Committee. 


Committee - To approach Peter Roughana on his report and give instructions on which tasks we'd 
like him to complete. 


Geoff - To get Zieck joined as an administrator of Onegolf 


Jayne - Moving $40,000 into a third separate account as a nest egg for the committee. 


Committee - Get a soil sample sent 


Committee - Give Peter a membership to our golf club for all his hard work. 


Bill - To call Kennedy Spraying on getting the cape weeds and cloverleaf sprayed. 


Bill - Is to ask Daryl from Living Turf, on getting a spray regime done for us. 


Committee - List of all buggy shed users and who is paid and not paid. 


President's Report 
Gary on the behalf of Rhonda while she's absent made mention that the spray records from the 
chemical shed have been finally given back to us. 


Rhonda ask to make mention while she was away that she'd like to nominate Peter Sealey to join 
the Committee. The Committee decided that until it finds out from Peter if he'd like to be nominated, 
that we'll wait until then to decide. 


Geoff seconded the report. 


Handicapper's Report 
Geoff started his report by commenting on the successful start to the Handicap Championship with 
a great number participating. He'd also mention the reimbursement from Golf SE of $300 for the 
short course implementation. 


Trevor Calliss and Geoff went around the golf course and re measured all the Blue and Red Tee 
markers. Geoff has asked for all blocks to remain uncovered so they can be properly utilised and 
also asked for a letter of thanks be written to Trevor for his help. Jayne put her hand up to write the 
letter. 


82 cards are being put in on average over the winter period, Onegolf records has us at 165 
members, 133 men and 32 ladies including 20 paid up public members. 


Wayne Dunsford is finishing up his training of Onegolf. Zieck Dalton has also approached Geoff 
about his interest in becoming an administrator for Onegolf. Geoff moved that we make Zieck join 
up as another administrator of Onegolf. Beryl seconded the motion. 


David Johnston seconded the handicappers report. 
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Treasurer's Report 
Jayne made her first treasurers report; she suggested that we move $40,000 from our old account 
into a third separate account, to use as a nest egg. Gary put forwarded a motion that we move 
$40,000 into a third and separate account. Shane seconded the motion. 


Also the removal of Adam Jones from the clubs bank accounts 


Gary Stevens Moved the transfer of $40,000 & removal of Adam Jones from Accounts 


Shane Fenwick seconded the transfer of $40,000 & removal of Adam Jones from Accounts 


Captain's Report 
No Captains report was given. 


Ladies Report 
Beryl started her report by mentioning that the Ladies Competition is averaging 15 players on 
Wednesday's. The ladies are also busy cleaning and sweeping out the buggy shed and have also 
organised a time after the next Wednesday Competition to have Sue Agars run an induction for 
members to help out in the future as volunteers. 


Geoff Munt seconded the report. 


Committees Report 
SF - At this stage the Greenkeeper's search is looking doubtful as Simon Jeif has yet to get back to 
us. Believes we need to look forward again in search of another greenkeepers option and is going 
back to talk to Matt Chesterman about steps moving forward from here and to also take another 
interview with Daniel Christian. 


Shane also brought up sub committees. Suggested we should have nominations from the 
committee members to run the subcommittees. The following members have put up their hands up 
to run these committees. 


There are 5 sub committees 


Management Committee - Shane, Rhonda, Stephen, Gary, Tony and Peter 


Course Management - David, Bill, Stephen and Rhonda 


Sponsorship and Media - Jayne, Bill, Cohn and Tony 


Match Committee - Sue, Geoff, Adam 


Ladies Committee - Sue and Beryl 


Bill moved these nominations with Cohn seconding. 


DJ - Just wanted to check that there were not going to be any repercussions from getting Andy to 
take the waste oil from us. 
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BM - Has asked that the volunteers have a set time of Monday's as it is the safest and easiest day 
to have members out on course. Signs and texts to members needed to let all individuals know. 


BB - Bill raised several points from Peter's report. 


For the Verti Draining and Coring of the greens Bill moved a motion that we get in contact with Hue 
Ryan to get this done on the 1st or 2nd week of September. Gary seconded the motion. 


For the Soil sample we need to get this done. Gary moved and Shane seconded the motion. 


Bill moved a motion that we give Peter a Golf membership for all his hard work, Beryl seconded the 
Motion. 


Also raised was whether we should give keys to Kennedy spraying for the Chemical Shed the 
committee decided that we shouldn't do this. 


Bill also asked that we look into getting the spraying of the cape weeds and cloverleaf done as soon 
as possible before they start seeding. Gary moved the motion that we get Kennedy Spraying to do 
the spraying. Josh seconded the motion. 


Would like a list of current buggy shed users and an up to date standing of who has paid and not 
paid. 


Bill also liked to state a big thank you to Allan Scott for fixing the leak to the 8th hole toilet block, 
Cohn Stratford and Jayne Bonney for tying up the golf course and spraying around the tee signs. 


Going around the golf course Bill has noticed that players are not filling in their divots and fixing 
their plug marks. He's also noticed that we need to change the tee markers and golf holes more 
regularly as well. 


We need someone to clean out the filters to our water sprinklers out on the course. 


Lastly, Bill also asked if we should get Daryl from Living Turf to write up a spray regime for us to use 
and to also look into our watering system. 


Next Meeting 
02 /09 /2019  5.30pm, Blue Lake Golf Links 


Motion to adjourn was made at 8.15pm and was passed unanimously. 
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Date: 02/09/2019 
Time: 5.30pm 


In Attendance 
Josh Gale, David Johnston, Geoff Munt, Gary Stevens, Shane Fenwick, Colin Stratford and Beryl 
Mahoney, Greg Cooper, Adam Jones, Peter Sealey, Tony Steen and Rhonda Ferguson 


Absent 
Bill Burley, Geoff Muller and Jayne Bonney 


Approval of Minutes 
Gary Stevens moved that the minutes from last meeting be tabled and accepted. Cohn Stratford 
seconded the motion. 


Business Rising and Actions from Minutes 
Jayne - Is to write a letter of thanks to Trevor Cahliss for his help in remarking the blue and red 
markers. 


Committee - Get a soil sample organised 


Committee - Provide Peter a membership to our golf club for all his hard work. 


Bill - Is to ask Daryl from Living Turf about getting a spray regime organised. 


Committee - List of all buggy shed users and who has paid and not paid. 


Josh - Is to write a letter of thanks to Stephen Smith on his hard work with the Asset Report. 


Rhonda - To organise the calendars 


Rhonda - Organise which fallen trees from most needed to less are to be cut and for volunteers to 
be organised to help pick up the pieces afterwards. 


Jayne/Shane - To remove the sponsorship part in the sponsorship/social committee as it's more 
related to the course management committee. 
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Committee - Shane Fenwick will organise the Management Committee 


Geoff Munt will organise the Match Committee, 


Rhonda will organise the Course Management Committee 


Beryl will organise the Social Committee and Ladies Committee. 


President's Report 
Rhonda Ferguson moved a motion that Peter Sealey be nominated to join the committee. Gary 
seconded the motion. 


Handicapper's Report 
Geoff started his report by commenting on the membership numbers from Onegolf, 174 financial 
members are now signed up. 10 members are sponsorship members, 5 are life members, ijunior 
member and 24 paid public members. Also reported was Russell Lingham win in the 2018/19 
Eclectic Cup. Gary Stevens seconded the report. 


Treasurer's Report 
No Treasurers Report was given, Gary Stevens just made mention of the totals in our bank 
accounts. 


Business Account $54,946.57 and the Business Online account $87,298.45. 


Captain's Report 
Finals of the Handicap Championships are on this weekend. The club is paying for the lunches for 
players and caddies after the completion of the games. Greg Cooper seconded the report. 


Ladies Report 
Beryl started her report with the sudden passing of long serving and life member Marleen Lingham. 
65 members turned up and performed a guard of honor, which just shows her standing at the club. 
Rest in Peace Marleen. 


The Ladies have also been busy cleaning the trophies in the cabinet and planting new flowers in the 
garden beds around the 10th tee block. Lastly Beryl made mention how 13 ladies turned up on the 
Saturday to play which was a great number to see with a new player, Gemma Winterborn, joining up. 
Peter Sealey seconded the report. 
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Working Committee Report 
Gary opened up on what the Working Committee has been up to with Stephen Smith putting in a 
huge amount of work on the Asset Management plan which has been put forward to Council. The 
Working Committee has also been busy tying the Asset Plan in with the Business Plan as part of the 
Council's KPI's. The lease for Bill Burley has started being processed between Bill, the Council and 
the Working Committee. Josh is to write a letter on behalf of the committee to thank Stephen on all 
his hard work writing up the Asset Plan. 


Committees Report 
SF - Shane brought up the pay level for the new Heads greenkeeper Daniel Christian. Shane 
motioned that we put forward his salary at a total of $63,000 with no overtime. Adam seconded the 
motion. 


Shane also brought up the subcommittees and the need to start organising them into action. Greg 
moved a motion that the sponsorship part in the sponsorship/social committee be removed as it's 
more related to the course management committee. Beryl seconded that motion. Beryl also asked 
if the subcommittees be better defined by their roles and functions which Shane and Jayne are to 
organise. 


So moving forward, 


Shane Fenwick will organise the Management Committee 


Geoff Munt will organise the Match Committee, 


Rhonda will organise the Course Management Committee and 


Beryl will organise the Social Committee and Ladies Committee. 


TS - Tony brought up tree removal and how Steve Von Duve is available to help cut down some of 
the fallen trees for free. This will help out the club as quotes for tree removal were around $2000. 
Committee to ear mark trees for removal from most urgent to lest and will need to make sure Steve 
has his chainsaw license and is inducted into the golf course. Rhonda is to contact Steve when the 
time is right for action and to organise volunteers to help pick up and remove the cuttings. Ken 
Milsop has also mentioned that he has a chainsaw license and is available Thursday and Friday's. 


Tony also brought up calendars for social notifications. Rhonda is to organise this as well. Lastly 
Tony brought up some quotes on some second hand used rough cutters believing that until more 
data is collected whether it's financially beneficial for the club to be spending money on two rough 
cutters. 


RF - Rhonda has also looked into second hand rough cutters and has found one in Adelaide, its a 
$12,000 Kubota rough cutter with 60 inch decks and is in good condition. Beryl moved that Todd 
Williams, who was a former greenkeeper, go and have a look at it in Adelaide and report back. Gary 
Stevens was asked to contact Todd and ask if that's ok. 


Next Meeting 
14/10 /2019 530pm,  Blue Lake Golf Links 
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Motion to adjourn was made at 7.30pm and was passed unanimously. 
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This document has been prepared in confidence for the Committee and Members of the Blue Lake 
Golf Club Inc. and the City of Mount Gambier. It is not intended for dissemination to the public. 
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1. BACKGROUND 


The city of Mount Gambler and surrounding areas services over 30,000 residents' and receives 
many visitors to the area. Projections are that visitor numbers will increase in the ensuring 
years2. An aging, longer living population base will have more time for leisure activities such as 
golf. 


In the 2018-2019 membership year the BLGC had 205 members. 


The Blue Lake Golf Club (BLGC) has grounds and facilities located in the crater lakes tourism 
precinct of Mount Gambier. These facilities are in good order and have been referred to as the 
"best greens in the area". 


The golf links utilised by the members were previously provided to the club by the Queen 
Elizabeth Park Trust (QEPT), an incorporated body who, in turn, leased the land from the City of 
Mount Gambier. 


The QEPT had financial responsibility for the golf course and its maintenance and was the 
owner of the building infrastructure. To finance this, the QEPT leased a portion of the 
administration building for the operation of a bar, bistro and golf shop by a private business 
venture owned by Bill and Wendy Burley. Golf Club members generated funds to the QEPT by 
way of green fees. 


The Burley's also provided additional services such as public fees collection, tourism and events 
promotion and maintenance of some area's. 


In early 2019, the QEPT informed the City of Mount Gambier about concerns regarding its 
ongoing financial viability due to the unsustainability of grounds maintenance and other costs 
associated with running the golf course4. 


This document outlines a proposal for the BLGC to undertake responsibility for the entire golf 
links facility by way of direct lease from the City of Mount Gambier. 


The business plan allows for the continuing benefits provided by the Burley's as sub lessees and 
operators of the bar, bistro and golf shop. The golf club will have financial responsibility for the 
golf course, its infrastructure and the associated maintenance. 


Australian Bureau of Statistics, 2016 Census data 
2 


Tourism Research Australia, Regional tourism forecasts 2016 
"QEPT Background Information" retrieved 27 August 2019 https://s3-ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/cmg-public-assets/general- 


images/Q.EPT-Backround-Information,pdf 
"Council encourages transparency for stakeholders" retrieved 27 August 2019 


https ://www. m ou ntga m bier. sa .gov. au/news/council -encou rages-transpa rency-for-goIfcou rse-sta kehold ers 
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2. OBJECTIVES 


The goal of the Committee and Members of the Blue Lake Golf Club is to preserve and enhance 
the community venue. To achieve this outcome the following objectives have been developed. 


2.1. Increase membership to 280 paying members within 2 years 


2.2. Continue to provide high grade golf facilities to Mount Gambier residents and visitors 


2.3. Provide facilities that do not just meet competition needs but that offer social and fun 
experiences 


2.4. Engage current and future membership more in the operations and maintenance of the 
facilities through better social experiences 


2.5. Create a sustainable model that will be self funding within a 5 year time frame 


2.6. Create an establishment that is sympathetic to the environment which will enhance the 
surrounding Crater Lakes precinct 
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3. SWOT ANALYSIS 


3.1. STRENGTHS 
• Ambience and quality of existing facilities and greens 


• Golf is a sport open to everybody with no age or other restrictions 


• Location 


- Large population base from which to draw members 


- High amounts of vehicle and pedestrian traffic from residents and tourists 
enjoying other facilities in craters precinct 


• Committee and members of Blue Lake Golf Club 


• Experience and knowledge of Bill & Wendy Burley and their willingness to 
continue working with club in expanded role 


3.2. WEAKNESSES 
• The Course has been identified as high maintenance for the following reasons 


- Part of the course is located over an old rubbish dump site 


- Soil types, prevailing vegetation and tree species 


3.3. OPPORTUNITIES 
• Promotion of amenities for use by Mt Gambier residents and visitors for leisure 


activities and dining outside of participation on golf 


• Promotion of club and increased participation in golf through coaching, come 
and try events, competitions etc. 


• Funding and grant applications to meet costs associated with capital 
development and work to reduce ongoing maintenance of course 


3.4. THREATS 
• Costs associated with maintenance of course and capital expenditure to meet 


club objectives 


• General competition for an individual's time, attention and discretionary funds 
from other recreational activities 
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4. ACTIONS 


4.1. A committee consisting of 14 members will be established and assisted by the BLGC 
Golf Operations Management. Committee members will be allocated to smaller sub- 
committees to monitor 


• Fundraising and financial control 


• Course maintenance, development and improvement 


• Membership and competitions 


• Social activities 


4.2. The BLGC to appoint a Golf Operations Manager to oversee all operations of the BLGC. 
This position to report to the committee monthly. 


4.3. Investigate grants and funding opportunities to enable the development of a long 
term strategy to reduce golf course expenses relating to golf course maintenance by 
returning non playing grassed areas to native vegetation, weed control etc. etc. 


4.4. Liaise with other local club committees to identify any cost savings or benefits which 
can be applied to the BLGC course to reduce costs or increase income. 


4.5. Increase communication between committee and members, players, grounds keeping 
staff, administration staff and lessees to improve interactions and ensure wants and 
needs of all stakeholders are in line with the club objectives. 


4.6. A 5 year plan to be set up to transition the BLGC to a successful member controlled 
entity. In the first 6— 12 months it will be important for the City of Mount Gambier to 
be closely involved and provide assistance towards a successful transition. 


4.7. BLGC to appoint a part time bookkeeper, in conjunction with Golf Operations 
Management, to set up a full financial reporting system that would be initially 
overseen by the club's Golf Operations Management. The accounts could be 
monitored by an external accountant to verify and authenticate. Quarterly accounts 
could be provided to City of Mount Gambier. 


4.8. The BLGC has entered into a 1 year lease, with an annual right of renewal for the 
following 4 years at an amount in line with the City of Mount Gambier's R200 policy. 
This lease will allow the club to lay the foundations for long term planning and 
development. 


A sublet is to be arranged of the bistro/bar/golf shop area to the existing lessee under 
strict guidelines relating to operating hours, maintenance and presentation. Lease 
price and term to be negotiated. 
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S. STAFFING 


5.1. Golf Operations Management (including club treasurer role) to be provided by Bill 
Burley for an annual fee of $100,000 (md GST) (Appendix 1) 


5.2. One full time green keeper/course superintendent (Appendix 2) 


5.3. Other works as required by contractors or casual staff 


5.4. Volunteer BLGC Members 


5.5. Jobactive work for the dole participants 


www.jobs.gov.au/work-dole 
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6. CASH FLOW FORECASTS 


6.1 CASHFLOW SUMMARY 


2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Income $ $ $ $ $ 


Golf Operations 290,000 309,000 335,000 351,750 369,338 
Course Operations 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500 
Administration & Indirect Activities 170,680 173,380 155,580 132,130 138,693 
Total Income 467,180 488,880 497,080 490,380 514,530 


Expense 
Golf Operations 58,400 39,500 42,500 43,445 44,310 
Course Operations 217,512 215,691 230,920 234,228 225,414 
Administration & Indirect Activities 169,515 164,415 168,005 166,799 170,691 
Asset Replacement Expenditure 20,000 58,000 94,000 0 0 
Capital Expansion Projects7 175,000 97,000 155,000 250,000 39,000 
Total Expense 640,427 574,606 690,425 694,472 479,416 


Total Surplus/(Deficit) (173,247) (85,726) (193,345) (204,092) 35,114 


6.2 GRAPH OF 5 YEAR CASHFLOW FORECAST 


720000 


670000 /1 
620000 N / \ 
570000 - T o t a l  Income 


- T o t a l  Expense 


520000 


470000 


420000 
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 


6 
See BLGC Asset Management Plan 
See BLGC Asset Management Plan 
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6.3 GOLF OPERATIONS 


2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Income $ $ $ $ $ 
Green Fees 95,000 107,000 119,000 124,950 131,198 
Subscriptions 145,000 150,000 160,000 168,000 176,400 
Competition Fees 50,000 52,000 56,000 58,800 61,740 
Total Income 290,000 309,000 335,000 351,750 369,338 


Expense 
Affiliation Fees 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 
Program & Scorecard Printing 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,605 3,605 
MiClub Gold Expenses Upfront 18,900 0 0 0 0 
Regular Prizes 25,000 25,000 28,000 28,840 29,705 
Total Expense 58,400 39,500 42,500 43,445 44,310 


Total Profit/(Loss) 231,600 269,500 292,500 308,305 325,027 
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6.4 COURSE OPERATION 


2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Income $ $ $ $ $ 
Fuel Tax Rebate 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 
Course Sundry Income 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Total Income 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500 


Expense 
Electricity 15,000 16,000 17,000 17,500 18,000 
Fuel & Oils 17,000 17,000 17,000 17,000 17,000 
General Maintenance 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 
Labour 90,000 95,000 92,000 94,760 97,603 
Machinery Repairs 35,305 25,845 42,458 41,153 27,133 
Motor Vehicle9 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 
Safety & Protective Equipment 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 
Sand,Loam, Fertilizer, Chemical1° 35,000 36,000 37,000 38,000 39,500 
Superannuation'1 81550 9,025 8,740 9,002 9,272 
Volunteer Gratuity 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 
Workcover 21957 3,121 3,022 3,113 3,206 
Total Expense 217,512 215,691 230,920 234,228 225,414 


Total Profit/(Loss) (211,012) (209,191) (224,420) (227,728) (218,914) 


8 Labour to be limited to one full time green keeper, the balance of labour requirements to be covered by contractors and casual staff 
Limit Use 


°° Monitor Use of fertilizer and sprays 
on gross wages per Super Guarantee legislation 
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6.5 ADMINISTRATION & INDIRECT ACTIVITIES 


2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Income $ $ $ $ $ 
Bank Interest 480 480 480 480 480 
Bingo Ticket Sales 3,000 4,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 
Buggy Shed Fees12 4,000 4,500 5,000 5,250 5,513 
Fundraising 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 
Lease of Bar & Bistro 13 40,000 41,200 42,400 43,600 44,900 
Locker Fees 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,100 2,100 
City of Mt Gambier Contribution 14 75,000 75,000 50,000 0 0 
Sponsorship15 30,000 30,000 35,000 40,000 45,000 
Mini Putt Putt 0 0 0 20,000 20,000 
Sundry 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 
Total Income 170,680 173,380 155,580 132,130 138,693 


Expense 
Accounting & Audit 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 
Accounting Software 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 
Advertising 4,800 7,200 7,200 7,200 7,200 
Bingo Ticket Expenses 960 960 960 960 960 
Cleaning Contract" 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 
Clubhouse Expenses 
Electricity17 4,000 4,000 4,000 1,000 1,000 
Repairs & Maintenance 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 


Council Rates 4,400 4,400 4,400 4,400 4,400 
Fundraising 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 
Insurance'8 12,500 13,000 13,500 14,000 14,500 
IT Hardware 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Management Fee" 100,000 103,000 106,090 109,273 112,551 
Lease 475 475 475 475 475 
Legal Expenses 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 
MiClub P05 Upfront 10,000 0 0 0 0 
Rubbish Disposal 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 
Security Monitoring 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,236 1,273 
Stationery 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Telephone 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Water Rates 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,575 2,652 
Total Expense 169,515 164,415 168,005 166,799 170,691 


Total Profit/(Loss) 1,165 8,965 (12,425) (34,669) (31,999) 


12 Increase buggy shed fees 
13 Indexed to CPI (3%). Lease would increase if capital expansion plans were approved to cover as these plans would give increased benefit to the lessee 
1 4 1 0  be confirmed after further submissions 
15 Develop new sponsorship packages to  offer 
16 Majority of cleaning covered by bistro lessee 
17 


Decrease in 2023 due to solar panel installation per BLGC Asset Management Plan 
18 


Per JLT Policies in place with $500 increase factored in year on year 
19 Indexed to CPI (3%) 
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7. APPENDICES 


APPENDIX 1— ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES OF GOLF OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT 


Role Title Golf Operations Management 


Role Summary To oversee all operations of the Blue Lake Golf Club 


Role Type Full-time 


Role Location Blue Lake Public Golf Links, Mount Gambier 


Reports to Blue Lake Golf Club Committee 


Responsibilities and Duties 


- As a representative of the BLGC Committee with responsibility for the club's day to day 
operations, this position is responsible for 


• Promotion of the BLGC and ensuring exceptional customer service at the Golf 
Links and related facilities 


• Develop and oversee an innovative tournament schedule and golf activities 
program that services all customer segments 


• Responsibility for the overall management and conduct for the Junior Golfers 
programme 


• Liaising with the City of Mount Gambier on behalf of the BLGC with regard to the 
lease and other matters as required 


• Management of the bar, bistro and golf shop as lessees (see below) 


• Staff procedures (see below) 


• Purchasing and Financial procedures (see below) 


• Monthly reporting to the BLGC committee focussing on customers, operations, 
revenue growth, cost containment and continuous improvement 


• Attend BLGC committee meetings quarterly 


• Provide information to the BLGC and its sub committees when requested 


• Assist in the development and maintenance of the budget of the BLGC and 
report to the committee including monthly/annual Profit and Loss reports 


• Oversee purchasing for the BLGC 


• Overseeing the membership of the BLGC 


• Collection of green fees 


• Coordination of tee sheets and monthly reports 


• Supervision of golf cart maintenance 


• Maintenance of OHS&W in relation to BLGC staff and volunteers 


• Maintenance of a current and working knowledge of the rules of Golf 
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Management of the bar, bistro and golf shop as lessees, including 


• Overseeing and enforcing the golf shop operations policies, procedures, controls 
and fee structures to ensure safekeeping of assets, inventory and resources 


• Oversee responsibility for golf shop retail operation including merchandising and 
inventory 


• Provision of a custom fitting and club repair service 


• Coordinates all food and beverage requirements, including on course, functions 
and outside events 


• Maintenance and provision of EFTPOS facility 


- Oversee and assist the activities of the 


• Volunteer programme and its partcipants 


• Jobactive work for the dole programme 


- Develop, support and maintain 


• Fundraising and sponsorship programmes 


• Programmes for the future growth of the BLGC 


Oversee and liaise with Grounds Superintendent/Greenkeeper with regard to 


• Capital improvements 


• Machinery maintenance 


• Purchasing for grounds and machinery maintenance 


Staff Procedures 


- Be responsible for the provision of secretarial services to the club 


- Empowerment of employees to enable provision of excellent customer service 


- Develop structures and procedures to promote and improve service performance 


- Liaise with the BLGC committee regarding staff issues 


- Maintain all staff time sheets 


- Submit leave applications to the BLGC committee for authorisation at least 14 days prior 
to leave commencement 


- Control all daily work roles for the staff and volunteers of the BLGC 


- Be responsible for the training and induction of roles undertaken by greens staff and 
volunteers 


- Report all incidents to the BLGC committee as soon as possible with associated incident 
reports 


- Maintain all OHS & W for all staff members 
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- Any other reports requested to be forwarded to the BLGC committee 


Purchasing and Financial Procedures 


- Maintain the BLGC course budget for account auditing and report to the BLGC 
committee 


- Maintain all purchase invoices on a monthly basis for account auditing 


- Maintain yearly machinery report and submit to the BLGC committee 


Communication 


- All communication to go through the BLGC president or their proxy 


- Any changes to work practices to be emailed to the BLGC committee 
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APPENDIX 2 - ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES OF GOLF COURSE SUPERINTENDENT/GREENKEEPER 


Position Title Golf Course Superintendent/Greenkeeper 


Position Summary To prepare, present and maintain the BLGC golf course on a year round 
basis 


Position Type Full-time 


Position Location Blue Lake Public Golf Links, Mount Gambier 


Reports to BLGC Golf Operations Manager 


Responsibilities and Duties 


- Tee marker rotation 


- Bunker maintenance 


- Pin rotation (leaving a clean hole with no circle around cup) Tuesdays and Fridays, the 
exception being tournament preparation 


- Mowing 


• Greens 


• For competition rounds (Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Saturday) 


• Tournaments (see tournament preparation) 


• Veterans competitions 


• Fairways at least once per week 


• Tees and rough as required 


- Undertake course irrigation as required 


- Use correct marker stakes for all hazards and ground area's under repair 


- Maintain herbicide, fungicide and pesticide programmes as required 


- Use tournament flags for all club events and tournaments 


- Undertake annual greens renovation 


- Sanding of greens and tees as required 


Tournament Preparation 


- Tournaments conducted by the BLGC include Spring, Autumn, Pennant, Club 
championships and any other special events as determined by the Captain of the BLGC 


- Greens to be mowed and pin positions on all holes changed everyday of competition 


- Liaise with the Captain of the BLGC on all tournament needs 


Staff Operations 


- Liaise with the Golf Operations Manager regarding all ground keeping staff issues 


- Provide reports as required to the Golf Operations Manager on Friday each week 
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- Maintain timesheets for all ground keeping staff and volunteers and return reports and 
timesheets to the Manager every Friday afternoon 


- All leave applications are to be forwarded to the Golf Operations Manager for 
authorisation at least 14 days prior to commencement of leave 


- Attend Greens and staff meetings as required by the Golf Operations Manager and the 
committee of the BLGC 


- Control all daily work roles and responsibilities of Green staff and volunteers working on 
the golf course 


- Be responsible for the training of all Green staff and volunteers 


- Any incident20 is to be reported to the Golf Operations Manager with appropriate 
reports as soon as possible 


- Maintain OHS & W procedures and practices including notification and preparation of 
incident reports, investigation of OHS & W injuries and updating procedures and work 
methods to improve safety and prevent OHS & W injury occurrence 


- Attend Course Superintendent Trade Days as required 


Machinery Procedures 


- All machinery to be cleaned and maintained daily with usage 


- Machinery maintenance reports to be completed daily and forwarded to the Golf 
Operations Manager weekly 


- Maintain irrigation systems 


Security 


- All external gates to be securely locked overnight 


- Fuel bowser is to be locked when not in use 


- Maintenance shed, pump shed and greens office are to be kept locked when no one is 
in attendance 


Purchasing and financial procedures 


- Maintain course budget where provided 


- Stocktake report to be emailed to the Golf Operations Manager as required 


- Purchasing to be conducted in accordance with the BLGC Manual of Authority and using 
purchase orders 


- Annual machinery report to be presented to the Golf Operations Manager 


- Invoices are to be matched to purchase orders and forwarded to the office weekly 


20 Incidents include property damage, damage to plant and equipment, workplace injuries, and any incidents involving patrons of the golf 


course or neighbouring properties 


Page 16 of 17 
Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 







Capital works 


Works of a capital nature shall not be carried out by the Course Superintendent without 
the written permission and instruction from the Golf Operations Manager or in their 
absence the BLGC President. 


Communication 


- All communications are to be emailed to the Golf Operations Manager 


- Any changes or updates to regular work practices are to be communicated to the Golf 
Operations Manager by email 


Practice fairway 


- Tee block positions and moving of same of practice fairway shall be the responsibility of 
the Greens Superintendent 


Page 17 of 17 
Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 







BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC. 


STATEGIC ASSET 


MANAGEMENT PLAN 


2019-2024 


PREPARED BY STEPHEN SMITH 


Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 







ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN STRATEGY 


r LQ 


!.Eiu.iU (1a.fnbIer SA 


6~0,LF 0~~.A 


I' 11-711, 
W~ 


I. 


F. ,ll 


0910. I. 
Prepared by Stephen Smith 
FOR THE BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB 


Scanned by Administrator on 3111012019 16 43 07 







CONTENTS 
ExecutiveSummary.........................................................................................................................2 


1.1 What the Blue Lake Golf Club will provide ................................................................................2 


1.2 Business Model ........................................................................................................................2 


1.3 Measuring our performance.....................................................................................................2 


1.4 Plans for the Future..................................................................................................................2 


1.5 Asset Values.............................................................................................................................2 


1.5.1 Forecast Capital Expenditure on Assets.............................................................................3 


1.6 Conclusions..............................................................................................................................6 


2 Background .....................................................................................................................................7 


3 Introduction ....................................................................................................................................7 


3.1 Background ..............................................................................................................................7 


3.2 Business Model ........................................................................................................................7 


3.3 Measuring our performance.....................................................................................................7 


3.4 Goals and Objectives of  Asset Management.............................................................................8 


3.5 Vision, Mission and Values .......................................................................................................8 


3.5.1 Our Vision.........................................................................................................................8 


3.5.2 Strategic Management Plan Goals and Strategies .............................................................9 


3.5.3 Plan Framework ...............................................................................................................9 


3.5.4 Risk Management Plan ...................................................................................................14 


3.5.5 Routine Management Plan .............................................................................................14 


3.5.6 Creation/Acquisition/Upgrade Plan ................................................................................21 


3.5.7 FINANCIAL SUMMARY ....................................................................................................22 


3.5.8 PLAN IMPROVEMENT AND MONITORING .......................................................................28 


3.5.9 REFERENCES ...................................................................................................................30 


3.5.10 APPENDIXES ...................................................................................................................30 


Page 1 of 30 


Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 







1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


1.1 WHAT THE BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB WILL PROVIDE 
The Blue Lake Golf Club (BLGC) by entering into a lease arrangement with the City of Mount Gambier for 
the management of the current public golf course, is committed to providing a community-based venue 
which provides value to the community whilst at the same time preserves and maintains the current 
arrangement of the Blue Lake Golf Links area. 


1.2 BUSINESS MODEL 
The BLGC, in conjunction with this Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP), is required to incorporate 
current and forecast expenditure on the asset; and integrate this information into a Live working 
business plan. This SAMP is required to define, over a five-year period: 


1. Operational and reoccurring expenditure on a yearly basis 
2. Expected replacement of asset equipment and infrastructure 
3. Proposed capital expenditure on future asset inclusions 


1.3 MEASURING OUR PERFORMANCE 
The success of the BLGC is dependent on meeting Key Performance Indicators (KPI's) as defined by the 
City of Mount Gambier. These KPI's are defined as: 


1. The golf course is to be maintained in an equal to, or better condition to the general condition 
pre-lease. 


2. Demonstration of sound fiscal management and solvency 
3. Club membership is not only maintained, but also increased 
4. The club to continue to provide with focus on family/community outcomes, and this is 


demonstrated through increased participation at events; and increased participation by 
community members 


5. The BLGC is to demonstrate the documentation and compliance with minimum risk and safety 
standards, and that the course is maintained in a safe condition for all users. 


6. The BLGC maintain a 5-star rating membership with the Office of Recreation and Sport Star/Club 
program (or equivalent club rating system). 


1.4 PLANS FOR THE FUTURE 
The SAMP will also outline the BLGC's vision over the next five years for the venue. This will include 
capital investment in order to not just preserve the asset but also to enhance the community venue. 
This enhancement will ensure provision of an additional pathway to the region's tourism strategy, whilst 
at the same time enhancing the Crater Lakes Heritage Area. 


1.5 ASSET VALUES 
The replacement asset value, as at the 150 July 2019, is $2,528,140.00 
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1.5.1 Forecast Capital Expenditure on Assets 


1.5.1.1 Renewal 
The assets, and in particular the major plant and machinery need to  keep the course in top condition, 
have not been adequately serviced or maintained to an acceptable standard. For example, some pieces 
of  machinery have not been serviced for over nine months; despite continued use on the course 
infrastructure. 


Based on assessment o f  Remaining Useful life o f  the visible components o f  the assets, the forecast total 
for  renewal cost for the next 5 years in relation t o  replacing existing assets is shown in the table below. 


Ser Description Est. Cost F/V 
1 Kubota Rough Cutter $ 20,000.00 2019/2020 
2 Toro Greensmower 3150-P Roller Machine $ 18,000.00 2020/2021 
3 Toro Reelmaster 6700-D Fairway Mower $ 40,000.00 2020/2021 
4 Toro Greensmower 3150-P Grooming $ 28,000.00 2021/2022 


Machine 
5 Toro Greensmower 3250-D Greens Mower $38,000.00 2021/2022 
6 Toyota Utility $28,000.00 2021/2022 
7 


Total $172,000.00 


1.5.1.2 New or Upgraded Asset Capital Expenditure 
The forecast total cost for the next five (5) years in relation to  building or upgrading existing assets is as 
shown in table below: 


Capital Works Projects: 


Ser Description Est. Cost Priority 
1 Driving Range $ 95,000.00 1 
2 Greenkeepers amenities $ 68,000.00 1 
3 Solar to  Pump sheds $ 11,000.00 2 
4 Putt Putt Course $ 141,000.00 3 
5 Family room space with playground $ 219,000.00 4 
6 Entertainment Viewing Deck $ 31,000.00 4 
7 Extend Buggy Shed $ 40,000.00 2 
8 5th Tee Canopy shelter structure $ 9,000.00 5 
9 Toilet block t o  15th hole $ 30,000.00 5 
10 Improve Course drainage $22,000.00 2 
11 Revegetation o f  unused course areas $ 24,000.00 2 
12 Solar to  Clubhouse $ 14,000.00 3 
13 Tree Removals $ 12,000.00 1 


Total $716,000.00 
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1.5.1.3 Asset Maintenance 
Maintenance expenditures have been examined and appear t o  be in keeping with good practice. Given 
that the assets, which have been gifted from the previous owner, have not been accurately described, 


nor recorded in sufficient detail a considered appraisal has been carried out. 


1.5.1.3.1 General Asset Maintenance. Below are the expected general asset maintenance 
expenditure over the next 5 years. 


Maintenance o f  General Assets Expenditure 
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1.5.1.3.2 General Course Maintenance. Below is the table for general course maintenance and 


expenses which includes chemicals, fertilizers, annual coring, sand and loam, and minor 
sundry items. 
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1.5.1.3.3 Summary of Planned Maintenance 
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1.6 CoNcLusioNs 


The Blue Lake Golf Links asset infrastructure has been observed, valued (where possible) and modelled 
for its financial needs over the coming 5 years, this in turn being linked to the BLGC's separate five (5) 
year financial plan. The BLGC has active and informed operational and administrative personnel and 
practices in place, ensuring that appropriate infrastructure operation, maintenance and improvement 
procedures and plans are in existence, with appropriate funding being accounted for in budgetary 
allocations. The full committee of the BLGC, including additional members, are also involved in 
improvements to the AMP which will come from ongoing updating and more detailed assessment of 
individual components of infrastructure over time, and application of the combined knowledge, 
systems, unit costs, lives and practices from within the group. 


Given the general condition of the assets it is expected that the BLGC, in conjunction with the proposed 
renewal, replacement and capital works program, will require further funding in order to achieve a true 
"community venue" over the forecast 5 years of this plan. The BLGC is to not only required to increase 
the potential for revenue raising events at the venue, but is also to continue liaison with the Council to 
ascertain and develop plans for the proposed capital works program. 
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2 BACKGROUND 
With effect the 1" July 2019 the Blue Lake Golf Club (BLGC) have entered into a lease arrangement with 
the City of Mount Gambier to retain and maintain the Blue Lake Golf Links as a viable and self-sustaining 
community asset. 


In accordance with the specific lease requirements the BLGC is to create a Strategic Asset Management 
Plan (SAMP); which will not only become a working document for the club, but also provide a necessary 
forecasting tool on a financial basis for the success of the club. 


In line with these requirements the business model for the BLGC is required to include for the following: 


1. Projected financial status over the next five years 
2. Include for maintenance and replacement costs for all assets covered under this plan 
3. Provide forecast of proposed capital works projects to enhance the community asset 


3 INTRODUCTION 


3.1 BACKGROUND 
This asset management plan is to demonstrate responsible management of assets (and services 
provided from assets), compliance with regulatory requirements, and to communicate funding needed 
to provide both the required and enhanced proposed levels of service. The asset management plan is 
linked with Council's asset management policies, asset management operational and maintenance 
practices, and the following associated planning documents: 


1. Council Asset Management Policy (Refer Appendix B.) 
2. City of Mount Gambier Development Plan -Consolidated 216t April 2016 


3.2 BUSINESS MODEL 
The BLGC, in conjunction with this Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP), is required to incorporate 
all current and forecast expenditure on the asset; and integrate this information into a Live working 
business plan. This SAMP is required to define, over a five-year period: 


4. Operational and reoccurring expenditure on a yearly basis 
5. Expected replacement of asset equipment and infrastructure 
6. Proposed capital expenditure on future asset inclusions 


3.3 MEASURING OUR PERFORMANCE 
The success of the BLGC is dependent on meeting Key Performance Indicators (KPI's) as defined by the 
City of Mount Gambier. These KPI's are defined as: 


7. The golf course is to be maintained in an equal to, or better condition to the general condition 
pre-lease. 


8. Demonstration of sound fiscal management and solvency (Refer Business Plan for financial KPI's) 
9. Club membership is not only maintained, but also increased 
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10. The club to continue to provide with focus on family/community outcomes, and this is 
demonstrated through increased participation at events; and increased participation by 
community members 


11. The BLGC is to demonstrate the documentation and compliance with minimum risk and safety 
standards, and that the course is maintained in a safe condition for all users. 


12. The BLGC maintain a 5-star rating membership with the Office of Recreation and Sport Star/Club 
program (or equivalent club rating system). 


3.4 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES OF ASSET MANAGEMENT 
The Blue Lake Golf Lings exists to provide services to its community. Some of these services are provided 
by infrastructure assets. The BLGC has acquired these assets by 'lease', construction by BLGC members 
and by donation of assets by others to meet increased levels of service. The BLGC's goal in managing 
infrastructure assets is to meet the required level of service in the most cost-effective manner for 
present and future consumers. The key elements of infrastructure asset management are: 


1. Taking a life cycle approach, 
2. Developing cost-effective management strategies for the longterm, 
3. Providing a defined level of service and monitoring performance, 
4. Managing risks associated with asset failures, 
5. Sustainable use of physical resources, 
6. Continuous improvement in asset management practices. 


3.5 VISION, MISSION AND VALUES 


3.5.1 Our Vision 
A sustainable, progressive and viable public golf course committed to building the vitality and 
community inclusiveness in a quality environment. 


3.5.1.1 Our Mission 
As a community-based business, the BLGC aims to provide leadership and prudent management for its 
community and visitors; and to work with them to identify community needs and improve services 
within the confines of the golf course infrastructure. 


3.5.1.2 Values and Principles 
The values and principles which guide the BLGC, and which are reflected in the Strategic Asset 
management Plan can be summarized as follows: 


1. We will maintain the blue lake golf course and deliver quality services. 
2. We will facilitate a growing and sustainable community-based venue in order to ensure the long 


term survival and prosperity of the venue. 
3. We will promote inclusiveness within the community 
4. Will promote a stable and cohesive BLGC 
5. We will maintain excellent relationships with the community through open communication and 


consultation 
6. Will preserve and enhance our built environment and heritage 
7. We will ensure the long term financial security of the Blue Lake Golf Links through excellent 


forward planning and management 
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3.5.2 Strategic Management Plan Goals and Strategies 


3.5.2.1 Goals 
Goal 1: 


"To provide and maintain the Blue Lake Golf Links as a community asset for its residents and 
visitors" 


Goal 2: 


"To ensure the importance of the built and natural environment are both recognized and protected 
for the enjoyment of current and future generations through planned development and 
management" 


Goal 3: 


"To promote the Crater Lakes State Heritage Area from not only a community perspective, but also 
from a tourism prospective. 


3.5.3 Plan Framework 
The SAM is to set out the parameters and responsibilities for the maintenance and preservation of the 
asset. A road map for preparing an asset management plan is shown below. 
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Road Map f o r  preparing an Asset Management Plan 
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Figure 1 -Road  M a p  f o r  Preparing and Asset Management  Plan 


In addition, the framework is to detail how the KPI's are to be met. Key elements of the asset 
management plan are: 


1. Levels of service 
2. Future demand - how this will impact on future service delivery and how this is to be met. 
3. Life cycle management - how the BLGC will manage its existing and future assets to provide the 


required services 
4. Financial summary - what funds are required to provide the required services 
5. Monitoring - how the plan will be monitored to ensure it is meeting the BLGC's objectives 
6. Asset Management Improvement Plan 


3.5.3.1 Levels of Service 
This plan has been prepared on the assumption that current service standards are not adequate to meet 
the expectations of a growing community. Essentially the levels of service for a growing local economy 
will need to be increased to include for a greater variety of patron. This increased level of service will 
need to be inclusive and cater for a larger contingent of visitors and tourists who visit our region. 
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These increased expectations and levels of service will require significant costing analysis in order to 
ascertain a reasonably financially sustainable position. That position will then determine the priority for 
service delivery. The BLGC administration continues to be active in developing mechanisms to 
comprehensively record the range and levels of its asset services, and the cost of providing the services 
to the established levels of service. This will then provide the BLGC with solid decision making data to 
analyze the impact of various scenarios on BLGC's long term financial position where services are 
increased or decreased. 


Service Levels are defined in three ways: 


3.5.3.1.1.1 Legislative Requirements. The BLGC has to meet many legislative requirements including 
Australian and State regulations. These include. 


Legislation Requirement 
Local Government Act Sets out role, purpose, responsibilities and powers of local 


governments including the preparation of a long term financial 
plan supported by asset management plans for sustainable 
service delivery 


Development Act 1993 Defines and regulates Significant Tree damaging activity as 
development. 


Disability Discrimination Act 1992 Sets out standards to ensure that new infrastructure is designed 
and constructed to provide safe and equitable access to those 
with a disability 


Australian Accounting Standards Sets out the financial reporting standards relating for the 
valuation and depreciation of Councils infrastructure assets. 


Environment Protection Act 1993 Sets out the requirements to sustainably protect the 
environment during both the construction and life of the asset. 


3.5.3.1.1.2 Community Levels of service. These relate to the service outcomes that the community 
wants in terms of safety, quality, reliability, responsiveness, cost effectiveness and 
legislative compliance. Community levels of service measures used in this asset 
management plan are: 


a. Quality How good is the service 
b. Function Does it meet user needs 
c. Safety Is the service safe 


3.5.3.1.1.3 Technical Levels of Service. Supporting the community service levels are also technical 
measures of performance. These technical measures relate to the allocation of resources to 
service activities that the BLGC undertakes to best achieve the desired community 
outcomes. The technical measures also include all statutory compliance and in addition: 


d. Maintenance activities necessary to retain assets in proper working order, to achieve 
their design life without premature failure or unplanned interruption to the service (e.g. 
pump servicing, building maintenance, septic tank desludging, routine replacement of 
consumable items, timely preventative repairs); 


e. Renewal - t h e  activities that return the service capability of an asset up to that which it 
had originally (e.g. renewal of a pump, replacement of valves, relaying of a drain, 
replacement of a storage tank); 
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f. Upgrade - t h e  activities to provide a higher level of service with a new service that did 
not exist previously (e.g. an enhanced driving range, putt putt golf course and 
community building spaces). 


3.5.3.2 Future Demand Forecast 


3.5.3.2.1 Customer Research and Expectations 
Factors affecting demand include population change, changes in demographics, seasonal factors, 
consumer preferences and expectations, economic factors, environmental awareness, competition with 
other golf courses in the region etc. The view taken in the preparation of this plan is that there will be 
minimal shifts either upwards or downwards in current population levels. Should this change over time 
then the asset management plan will need to be updated. 


3.5.3.2.2 Changes in Technology 
The BLGC is required to actively seek out, and where fiscally/prudent responsible to do so, and 
implement strategies which include for changes in technology. 


3.5.3.2.3 Demand Management Plan 
The BLGC is to actively seek opinion from the community at large with the aim of determining future 
requirements which will enhance the community asset and ensure its longevity. 


3.5.3.2.4 New Assets with Growth 
Growth is defined within this plan as not only the maintenance of existing assets within the precinct, but 
also the creation of new assets within the available spaces 


The BLGC has identified, through anecdotal and both visitor and community consultation, that the 
community venue (Blue Lake Golf Links) needs to be more than just a golf course where both golfers and 
non-golfers alike can play. 


Needs analysis, through experience, have determined that the community venue needs to ensure that 
inclusiveness and visitor participation are placed at the forefront to the long term viability of the venue, 
whilst at the same time providing a range of community activities which not only increase participation, 
but also enhance the Crater Lakes Heritage Area. 


The following new assets, including redevelopment of existing assets, have been determined as a 
priority for the BLGC in order to achieve this goal in the medium term: 


3.5.3.2.4.1 Priority 1: 
a. Tree Removal and replanting program 
b. Active revegetation program for those areas of the course not required for general play, 


and which will reduce the cost of general maintenance of the course. 
c. Redevelopment of the existing driving range to cater for all golfers and non golfers by 


increasing the length of the range, providing all weather protection for the user, and 
creation of activities throughout the range proper. 


d. The upgrade of the greenkeepers amenities and associated machinery shed 
infrastructure. 


3.5.3.2.4.2 Priority 2: 
e. Improve course drainage 
f. Solar PV System to water pumps 
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g. Extend golf buggy shed 


3.5.3.2.4.3 Priority 3: 
h. The creation of an 18 hole putt putt course with both active supervision and a natural 


blending into the natural environment. 
i. Solar PV System to clubhouse 


3.5.3.2.4.4 Priority 4: 
j. Extensions to the existing clubhouse building to include for a small playground, indoor 


supervised family space and entertainment deck. 


3.5.3.2.4.5 Priority 5: 
k. Construction of toilet infrastructure to the current back nine of the course 
I. 5th Tee Canopy shelter structure 


3.5.3.3 Lifecycle Management Plan 


3.5.3.3.1 Background data 


3.5.3.3.1.1 Physical parameters 
This asset management plan encompasses both leased areas and includes both above ground and below 
ground infrastructure. 


3.5.3.3.1.2 Asset Capacity and Performance 
The current infrastructure assets have performed adequately in the past. 


3.5.3.3.1.3 Asset Condition 
The general condition of assets within the leased areas varies as the development of the golf course has 
occurred over an extended period of time. For example; the back nine holes of the course was the 
original golf course prior to the year 2000, where after the new front nine and clubhouse were 
constructed. This new construction included the installation of a corrugated galvanised tunnel under 
Grant Avenue to enable access to the newly constructed nine holes. 


The underground infrastructure including water sprinkler systems (and associated pump infrastructure) 
therefore have been installed almost 15 years apart; and with a project lifespan of 25 years the lifecycle 
costs over the life of this asset plan (5 years) will result in minor repairs and servicing carried out with no 
large capital replacement cost. 


The plant and equipment used to maintain the course are also in varying conditions with some items of 
equipment being serviced on an irregular basis and others not having been serviced for over 10 months. 


See Asset Renewal/Replacement for further details on Machinery. 


3.5.3.4 Asset Valuations 
The value of assets recorded in the asset register as at 1" July 2019 covered by this asset management 
plan is shown below. It is unknown when assets were last re-valued at fair value for financial purposes. 


1. Current Replacement Cost $ 2,518,140.00 
2. Depreciable Amount $ 994,678.00 
3. Depreciated Replacement Cost $ 302,427.00 
4. Annual Depreciation Expense $ 50,911.00 
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3.5.4 Risk Management Plan 
An assessment of risks associated with service delivery from infrastructure assets has identified critical 
risks that will result in public injury, loss or reduction in service from infrastructure assets, or a 'financial 
shock' to the organisation. The risk assessment processidentifies credible risks, the likelihood of the 
risk event occurring, the consequences should the event occur, develops a risk rating, evaluates the risk 
and develops a risk treatment plan for nonacceptable risks. 


Critical risks, being those assessed as 'Very High' - requiring immediate corrective action and 'High' - 
requiring prioritised corrective action identified in the Infrastructure Risk Management Plan, together 
with the estimated residual risk after the selected treatment plan is operational are summarised in the 
table below. These risks are reported to club management. 


Critical Risks and Treatment Plan 


Likelihood Consequence of 
Asset at Risk What Can Happen of Occurrence Level of Risk Risk Treatment Plan 


Occurrence 
Plant and trees on Overgrowth of the Likely Minor Medium Ensure that the program 
course plants or trees can maintenance schedule for 


lead to injury by pruning is at suitable intervals, 
people walking into and to an appropriate standard 
branches 


Plant and trees on Limbs can fall from Likely Minor Medium Ensure the program maintenance 
course trees injuring schedule for pruning is at suitable 


people and causing intervals 
damage to course 
infrastructure Select tree species that minimise 


the likelihood of falling limbs 
Plant and trees on Tree roots can Almost Moderate High Utilize appropriate landscaping 
course cause trip hazards Certain techniques to reduce or eliminate 


to the course users exposed root systems 
Course Fairways and Improper watering Possible Minor Low Ensure watering is undertaken to 
Tees can lead to injuries schedule. 


due to poor playing 
surface Audit watering systems annually 


and check weekly. 
Clubhouse Injury sustained Possible Moderate Medium Course staff and members to 
surrounding paving from trip hazards in report hazard when identified. 
and carpark areas pavement Hazard to be made safe until 


maintenance can be carried out 
to rectify the hazard 


3.5.5 Routine Management Plan 
Routine maintenance is the regular on-going work that is necessary to keep assets operating, including 
instances where portions of the asset fail and need immediate repair to make the asset operational 
again. 


3.5.5.1 Operations and Maintenance Plan 
Operations activities affect service levels including quality and function through grass mowing 
frequency, intensity and spacing of cleaning and opening hours of the clubhouse building and other 
facilities. 


There is very limited information which is available on actual past operations expenditure, and therefore 
"best estimate" information has been included in the financial modelling for this Asset Management 
Plan. Maintenance includes all actions necessary for retaining an asset as near as practicable to an 
appropriate service condition including regular ongoing day-to-day work necessary to keep assets 
operating, e.g. course remedial works but excluding rehabilitation or renewal. Maintenance may be 


Page 14 of 30 


Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 







classified into reactive, preventative and planned maintenance works; and also include for the general 
maintenance of plant and equipment assets. 


3.5.5.1.1 General Asset Maintenance. Below is the expected general asset maintenance expenditure 
over the next 5 years. 


Maintenance o f  General Assets Expenditure 
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3.5.5.1.2 Reactive maintenance is unplanned repair work carried out in response to service requests 
and management/supervisory directions. Given the current condition of the course, and 
expected issues which may arise, a forecast $6,000.00 per financial year has been identified 
as required. 


3.5.5.1.3 Planned maintenance (General Course Maintenance) is repair work that is identified and 
managed through a scheduled maintenance program. These scheduled activities include 
inspection, assessing the condition against failure/breakdown experience, prioritising, 
scheduling, actioning the work and reporting what was done to develop a maintenance 
history and improve maintenance and service delivery performance. Below is the table for 
general course maintenance and expenses which includes chemicals, fertilizers, annual 
coring, sand and loam, and minor sundry items. 
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3.5.5.2 Overall Maintenance Expenditure 
Prior to the lease of the BLGC there is an extremely limited amount of information, which has been 
provided, on actual past maintenance expenditure. Based on the information which is currently 
available the planned maintenance has been broken down into a number of areas including general 
asset maintenance, annual course maintenance, and necessary reactive maintenance (reactive 
maintenance has been added into this section due to now known discovery on the BLGC. Set out below 
is a graph showing the overall planned maintenance for the full five (5) year period. 
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The introduced preventative maintenance appears in each financial year; however, it is expected that 
regular updating of this AMP will determine whether further, or indeed less, expenditure is required 
over the five (5) year period. In relation to the above graph it needs to be recognised that the asset 
maintenance figure includes for the required upgrade to greenkeeper amenities and associated areas. 


Planned maintenance work is currently 92.6% of total maintenance expenditure. Maintenance 
expenditure levels are considered to be adequate to meet projected service levels, which may be less 
than or equal to current service levels. Where maintenance expenditure levels are such that will result 
in a lesser level of service, the service consequences and service risks have been identified and service 
consequences highlighted in this AMP. 


Assessment and prioritization of reactive maintenance is undertaken by the Course Manager and Golf 
Course staff using experience and judgement. 


3.5.5.3 Operations and Maintenance Strategies 
The BLGC will operate and maintain assets to provide the defined level of service to approved budgets in 
the most cost-efficient manner. The operation and maintenance activities include: 


3.5.5.3.1 Scheduling operations activities to deliver the defined level of service in the most efficient 
manner, 


3.5.5.3.2 Undertaking maintenance activities through a planned maintenance system to reduce 
maintenance costs and improve maintenance outcomes. 


3.5.5.3.3 Review current and required skills base and implement workforce training and development 
to meet required operations and maintenance needs, 


3.5.5.3.4 Review asset utilization to identify under utilized assets and appropriate remedies, and over 
utilized assets and customer demand management options, 


3.5.5.3.5 Maintain a current hierarchy of critical assets and required operations and maintenance 
activities, 


3.5.5.3.6 Develop and regularly review appropriate emergency response capability, 


3.5.5.3.7 Review management of operations and maintenance activities to ensure the BLGC is 
obtaining best value for resources used. 


3.5.5.4 Critical Assets 
Critical assets are those assets which have a high consequence of failure but not necessarily a high 
likelihood of failure. By identifying critical assets and critical failure modes, the BLGC can target and 
refine investigative activities, maintenance plans and capital expenditure plans at the appropriate time. 


Operations and maintenances activities may be targeted to mitigate critical assets failure and maintain 
service levels. These activities may include increased inspection frequency, higher maintenance 
intervention levels, etc. Critical assets failure modes and required operations and maintenance activities 
are detailed in the following Table. 


Page 17 o f  30 


Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 







Critical Asset Critical Failure Mode Operations and Maintenance 
Activities 


Tree pruning and removal Structural integrity assessment Annual inspection program 


Course access obstruction 
Water Infrastructure Fairway and green failure Ongoing maintenance and 


condition inspections 
Course conditioning machinery Inoperable machinery leading to Ongoing maintenance and 


poor course maintenance and condition inspections 
conditioning 


3.5.5.5 Standards and specifications 
Maintenance work is carried out in accordance with the following Standards and Specifications: 


1. Work, Health and Safety Act 2012 
2. Development Act 1993 
3. A900 -Asset Management Policy (City of Mount Gambier) 


3.5.5.6 Summary of  Future Maintenance Expenditures 
Refer Figure 2 for summary of future maintenance expenditures 


Refer to the Business Plan for operational expenditures including fuel, oils, and chemicals. 


Deferred maintenance, i.e. works that are identified for maintenance and unable to be funded are to be 
included in the risk assessment and analysis in the infrastructure risk management plan. Maintenance is 
funded from the operating budget where available. 


3.5.5.7 Renewal/Replacement Plan 
Renewal and replacement expenditure is major work which does not increase the asset's design 
capacity but restores, rehabilitates, replaces or renews an existing asset to its original or lesser required 
service potential. Work over and above restoring an asset to original service potential is 
upgrade/expansion or new works expenditure. 


3.5.5.7.1 Renewal plan 
Assets requiring renewal/replacement are identified from one of two methods provided in the 
'Expenditure Template'. 


3.5.5.7.1.1 Method 1 uses Asset Register data to project the renewal costs using acquisition year and 
useful life to determine the renewal year, or 


3.5.5.7.1.2 Method 2 uses a combination of average network renewals plus defect repairs in the 
Renewal Plan and Defect Repair Plan worksheets on the 'Expenditure template'. 


Method 1 was used for this asset management plan. 


The useful lives of assets used to develop projected asset renewal expenditures are shown in the 
following Table. Asset useful lives were last reviewed om 30th August 2019. 
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Ser Description Est. Cost F/V 
1 Kubota Rough Cutter $ 20,000.00 2019/2020 
2 Toro Greensmower 3150-P Roller Machine $ 18,000.00 2020/2021 
3 Toro Reelmaster 6700-D Fairway Mower $ 40,000.00 2020/2021 
4 Toro Greensmower 3150-P Grooming $ 28,000.00 2021/2022 


Machine 
5 Toro Greensmower 3250-D Greens Mower $38,000.00 2021/2022 
6 Toyota Utility $28,000.00 2021/2022 
7 


Total $172,000.00 


3.5.5.7.2 Renewal and Replacement Strategies 
The BLGC will plan capital renewal and replacement projects to meet level of service objectives and 
minimize infrastructure service risks by: 


3.5.5.7.2.1 Planning and scheduling renewal projects to deliver the defined level of service in the most 
efficient manner, 


3.5.5.7.2.2 Undertaking project scoping for all capital renewal and replacement projects to identify: 
a. the service delivery 'deficiency', present risk and optimum time for 


renewal/replacement, 
b. the project objectives to rectify the deficiency, 
c. the range of options, estimated capital and life cycle costs for each option that 


could address the service deficiency, 
d. and evaluate the options against evaluation criteria adopted by the 


organization, and 
e. select the best option to be included in capital renewal programs. Using 'low 


cost' renewal methods (cost of renewal is less than replacement) wherever 
possible, 


f. Maintain a current infrastructure risk register for assets and service risks 
associated with providing services from infrastructure assets and reporting Very 
High and High risks and residual risks after treatment to management and 
Council, 


g. Review current and required skills base and implement workforce training and 
development to meet required construction and renewal needs, 


h. Maintain a current hierarchy of critical assets and capital renewal treatments 
and timings required, 


i. Review management of capital renewal and replacement activities to ensure the 
BLGC is obtaining best value for resources used. 


3.5.5.7.3 Renewal ranking criteria. Asset renewal and replacement is typically undertaken to either: 


3.5.5.7.3.1 Ensure the reliability of the existing infrastructure to deliver the service it was constructed 
to facilitate (e.g. replacing a section of underground water pipework), or 


3.5.5.7.3.2 To ensure the infrastructure is of sufficient quality to meet the service requirements (e.g. 
the pipework is capable of delivering the required quantities of water to course assets) 
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It is possible to get some indication of capital renewal and replacement priorities by identifying assets or 
asset groups that: 


j. Have a high consequence of failure, 
k. Have a high utilization and subsequent impact on users would be greatest, 
I. The total value represents the greatest net value to the BLGC, 
m. Have the highest average age relative to their expected lives, 
n. Are identified in the AM Plan as key cost factors, 
o. Have high operational or maintenance costs, and 
p. Where replacement with modern equivalent assets would yield material 


savings. 
q. The ranking criteria used to determine priority of identified renewal and 


replacement proposals is detailed in the below Table. 


Renewal and Replacement Priority Ranking Criteria 


Criteria Weighting 
Condition Rating 80% 


3.5.5.7,4 Summary of future renewal and replacement expenditure 
Projected future renewal and replacement expenditures are forecast to increase over time as the asset 
stock both ages and grows. The expenditure is summarized below. 


Summary o f  Renewal/Replacement 
100000 


90000 


80000 


70000 


60000 6) 


50000 
C 


' 40000 


L U  30000 


20000 


10000 


ii 


F/V 2019-2020 F/V 2020-2021 F/V 2021-2022 F/V 2022-2023 F/V 2023-2024 


Expend i tu re  b y  F/V 


The future renewal and projected year of works in the above have been calculated on the current useful 
lives of all main plant and equipment asset types. This information varies considerably to the projected 
funding requirements by administration, which forms the future funding requests within the Long Term 
Financial Plan. The BLGC are planning the replacement of irrigation and other structural assets that may 


Page 20 of 30 


Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 







not have achieved their assigned/ registered useful lives. The two main irrigation systems are believed 
to fall outside this AMP as their expected life exceeds the five years of the plan. 


The Improvement Strategies recognizes the need to identify each asset independently within the 
valuation data. This will result in spreading the works across the 5 year period by having better 
recognition of individual useful lives. 


Deferred renewal and replacement, i.e. those assets identified for renewal and/or replacement and not 
scheduled in capital works programs are to be included in the risk analysis process in the risk 
management plan. 


Renewals and replacement expenditure in the BLGC's proposed capital works program will be 
accommodated in the long term financial plan. 


3.5.6 Creation/Acquisition/Upgrade Plan 
New works are those works that create a new asset that did not previously exist, or works which 
upgrade or improve an existing asset beyond its existing capacity. They may result from membership 
growth, social or environmental needs. Assets may also be acquired at no cost to the BLGC from other 
sources. 


3.5.6.1 Selection criteria 
New assets and upgrade/expansion of existing assets are identified from various sources such as 
community requests (identified needs), proposals identified by strategic plans or partnerships with 
other organizations. Proposals are inspected to verify need and to develop a preliminary renewal 
estimate. Verified proposals are ranked by priority and available funds and scheduled in future works 
programs. 


3.5.6.2 Capital Investment Strategies 
The organization will plan capital upgrade and new projects to meet level of service objectives by: 


1. Planning and scheduling capital upgrade and new projects to deliver the defined level of service 
in the most efficient manner, 


2. Undertake project scoping for all capital upgrade/new projects to identify: 
a. the service delivery 'deficiency', present risk and required timeline for delivery of the 


upgrade/new asset, 
b. the project objectives to rectify the deficiency including value management for major 


projects, 
c. the range of options, estimated capital and life cycle costs for each option that could 


address the service deficiency, 
d. management of risks associated with alternative options, 
e. and evaluate the options against evaluation criteria adopted by Council, and 
f. select the best option to be included in capital upgrade/new programs, 


Review current and required skills base and implement training and development to meet 
required construction and project management needs, 


Review management of capital project management activities to ensure Council is obtaining best value 
for resources used. 


Standards and specifications for new assets and for upgrade/expansion of existing assets are the same 
as those for renewal 
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3.5.6.3 Summary of future upgrade/new assets expenditure 
Projected upgrade/new asset expenditures are summarized below. 


Ser Description Est. Cost Priority 
1 Driving Range $ 95,000.00 1 
2 Greenkeepers amenities $ 68,000.00 1 
3 Solar to Pump sheds $ 11,000.00 2 
4 Putt Putt Course $ 141,000.00 3 
5 Family room space with playground $ 219,000.00 4 
6 Entertainment Viewing Deck $ 31,000.00 4 
7 Extend Buggy Shed $ 40,000.00 2 
8 5 thTee Canopy shelter structure $ 9,000.00 5 
9 Toilet block to 15th hole $ 30,000.00 5 
10 Improve Course drainage $ 22,000.00 2 
11 Revegetation of unused course areas $ 24,000.00 2 
12 Solar to Clubhouse $ 14,000.00 3 
13 Tree Removals $ 12,000.00 1 


Total $716,000.00 


Due to knowledge of external funding opportunities it is difficult to plan further beyond the initial 5 
years period. 


3.5.7 FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
This section contains the financial requirements resulting from all the information presented in the 
previous sections of this asset management plan. The financial projections will be improved as further 
information becomes available on desired levels of service and current and projected future asset 
performance. Financials attached. 


3.5.7.1 Financial Statements and Projections 
The financial projections are shown below for projected operating maintenance and capital expenditure 
(renewal and upgrade/expansion/new assets). Note that all costs are shown in real values. 
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3.5.7.1.1 Golf Operations 


2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Income $ $ $ $ $ 
Green Fees 95,000 107,000 119,000 124,950 131,198 
Subscriptions 145,000 150,000 160,000 168,000 176,400 
Competition Fees 50,000 52,000 56,000 58,800 61,740 
Total Income 290,000 309,000 335,000 351,750 369,338 


Expense 
Affiliation Fees 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 
Program & Scorecard Printing 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,605 3,605 
MiClub Gold Expenses Upfront 18,900 0 0 0 0 
Regular Prizes 25,000 25,000 28,000 28,840 29,705 
Total Expense 58,400 39,500 42,500 43,445 44,310 


Total Profit/(Loss) 231,600 269,500 292,500 308,305 325,027 


3.5.7.1.2 Course Operation 


2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Income $ $ $ $ $ 
Fuel Tax Rebate 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 
Course Sundry Income 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Total Income 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500 


Expense 
Electricity 15,000 16,000 17,000 17,500 18,000 
Fuel & Oils 17,000 17,000 17,000 17,000 17,000 
General Maintenance 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 
Labour 90,000 95,000 92,000 94,760 97,603 
Machinery Repairs 35,305 25,845 42,458 41,153 27,133 
Motor  Vehicle 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 
Safety & Protective Equipment 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 
Sand,Loam, Fertilizer, Chemical 35,000 36,000 37,000 38,000 39,500 
Superannuation 8,550 9,025 8,740 9,002 9,272 
Volunteer Gratuity 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 
Workcover 2,957 3,121 3,022 3,113 3,206 
Total Expense 217,512 215,691 230,920 234,228 225,414 


Total Profit/(Loss) (211,012) (209,191) (224,420) (227,728) (218,914) 
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3.5.7.1.3 Administration and Indirect Activities 


2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Income $ $ $ $ $ 
Bank Interest 480 480 480 480 480 
Bingo Ticket Sales 3,000 4,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 
Buggy Shed Fees 4,000 4,500 5,000 5,250 5,513 
Fundraising 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 
Lease o f  Bar & Bistro 40,000 41,200 42,400 43,600 44,900 
Locker Fees 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,100 2,100 
City o f  M t  Gambier 75,000 75,000 50,000 0 0 
Sponsorship 30,000 30,000 35,000 40,000 45,000 
Mini Putt Putt 0 0 0 20,000 20,000 
Sundry 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 
Total Income 170,680 173,380 155,580 132,130 138,693 


Expense 
Accounting & Audit 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 
Accounting Software 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 
Advertising 4,800 7,200 7,200 7,200 7,200 
Bingo Ticket Expenses 960 960 960 960 960 
Cleaning Contract 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 
Clubhouse Expenses 


Electricity 4,000 4,000 4,000 1,000 1,000 
Repairs & Maintenance 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 


Council Rates 4,400 4,400 4,400 4,400 4,400 
Fundraising 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 
Insurance 12,500 13,000 13,500 14,000 14,500 
IT Hardware 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Management Fee 100,000 103,000 106,090 109,273 112,551 
Lease 475 475 475 475 475 
Legal Expenses 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 
MiClub POS Upfront 10,000 0 0 0 0 
Rubbish Disposal 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 
Security Monitoring 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,236 1,273 
Stationery 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Telephone 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Water Rates 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,575 2,652 
Total Expense 169,515 164,415 168,005 166,799 170,691 


Total Profit/(Loss) 1,165 8,965 (12,425) (34,669) (31,999) 
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3.5.7.1.4 Cashflow Summary 


2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Income $ $ $ $ $ 
Golf Operations 290,000 309,000 335,000 351,750 369,338 
Course Operations 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500 
Administration & Indirect Activities 170,680 173,380 155,580 132,130 138,693 
Total Income 467,180 488,880 497,080 490,380 514,530 


Expense 
Golf Operations 58,400 39,500 42,500 43,445 44,310 
Course Operations 217,512 215,691 230,920 234,228 225,414 
Administration & Indirect Activities 169,515 164,415 168,005 166,799 170,691 
Asset Replacement Expenditure 20,000 58,000 94,000 0 0 
Capital Expansion Projects 175,000 97,000 155,000 250,000 39,000 
Total Expense 640,427 574,606 690,425 694,472 479,416 


Total Surplus/(Deficit) (173,247) (85,726) (193,345) (204,092) 35,114 


5 Year Cashflow Forecast 
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5 Year Forecast by Activity 
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3.5.7.1.5 Sustainability of service delivery 
There are four key indicators for service delivery sustainability that have been considered in the analysis 
of the services provided by this asset category, these being the asset renewal funding ratio, long term 
life cycle costs/expenditures and medium term projected/budgeted expenditures over a 5 year planning 
period. 


3.5.7.1.6 Asset Renewal Funding Ratio 
5 Year surplus (Operating activities only, no funds generated from possible capital expansion included) 


$226,706.00/$172,000.00 x 100 = 131.80 % 


3.5.7.1.7 Medium Term —5 year financial planning period 


3.5.7.1.7.1 The average cost (5 years) of projected maintenance, Asset Renewal and Capital Expansion 
is $255,078.00 


3.5.7.1.7.2 The average funding (5 years) available for projected maintenance, Asset Renewal and 
Capital Expansion is $130,819.00 


3.5.7.1.7.3 5 Year funding shortfall is $621,294.00 


3.5.7.1.7.4 % of expected expenditure provided by club is 51.29 % 


3.5.7.1.8 Asset management financial indicators 
Providing services from course infrastructure in a sustainable manner requires the matching and 
managing of service levels, risks, projected expenditures and financing to achieve a financial indicator of 
approximately 1.0 for the first years of the asset management plan and ideally over the 5 year life of the 
Financial Plan. 


Providing services in a sustainable manner will require matching of projected asset renewal and 
replacement expenditure to meet agreed service levels with the corresponding capital works program 
accommodated in the longterm financial plan. 


A gap between projected asset renewal/replacement indicates that further work is required on 
reviewing service levels in the AM Plan (including possibly revising the AM Plan) before finalizing the 
asset management plan to manage required service levels and funding to eliminate any funding gap. 
We will manage the 'gap' by developing this asset management plan to provide guidance on future 
service levels and resources required to provide these services, and review future services, service levels 
and costs with the golf course stakeholders. 


3.5.7.1.9 Funding Strategy 
After reviewing service levels, as appropriate to ensure ongoing financial sustainability projected 
expenditures identified in this AMP will be accommodated in the BLGC's 5 year financial plan. 


3.5.7.1.10 Valuation Forecasts 
Asset values are forecast to increase as additional assets are added to the asset stock from construction 
and acquisition by the BLGC and from assets constructed by others and donated to the BLGC. 


Depreciation expense values are forecast in line with asset values. 
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The depreciated replacement cost will vary over the forecast period depending on the rates of addition 
of new assets, disposal of old assets and consumption and renewal of existing assets. Forecast of the 
assets' depreciated replacement cost is shown sub para 3.5.3.4. 


3.5.7.1.11 Key Assumptions made in Financial Forecasts 
This section details the key assumptions made in presenting the information contained in this asset 
management plan and in preparing forecasts of required operating and capital expenditure and asset 
values, depreciation expense and carrying amount estimates. It is presented to enable readers to gain 
an understanding of the levels of confidence in the data behind the financial forecasts. 


Key assumptions made in this asset management plan and risks that these may change are shown in the 
below table 


Key Assumptions made in A M  Plan and Risks of  Change 


Key Assumptions Risks of Change to Assumption 
Useful Lives may change pending future revision of current Major effect of valuation and depreciation modelling 
captured data and the associated deterioration of asset 
type. 


3.5.7.1.12 Forecast Reliability and Confidence 
The expenditure and valuations projections in this AM Plan are based on best available data. Currency 
and accuracy of data is critical to effective asset and financial management. 


3.5.8 PLAN IMPROVEMENT AND MONITORING 


3.5.8.1 Status o f  Asset Management Practices 


3.5.8.1.1 Accounting and financial systems 
Assets are recorded at fair value in the following classifications: 


1. Buildings 
2. Infrastructure 
3. Plant & Equipment 
4. Furniture & Fittings 


3.5.8.1.2 Accountabilities for financial systems 
To ensure that the BLGC's most valuable asset classes such as Buildings and Infrastructure are recorded 
accurately at fair value, and to ensure each asset class is routinely inspected for condition at least every 
4 years, with interval year inspections performed by course staff. This then forms part of the external 
audit performed by External Auditors. 


3.5.8.1.3 Accounting standards and regulations. The BLGC will comply with the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board (AASB) regulations and standards current at the time of examination. 


3.5.8.1.4 Capital/maintenance threshold 
There is no capital threshold in practice. At the moment, capital amounts are recognized on a case by 
case basis using professional judgement. 
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How and when maintenance is performed on an asset is not a finance function-this is a matter for the 
course manager and the committee of the BLGC to decide. 


3.5.8.1.5 Required changes to accounting financial systems arising from this AM Plan 
None 


3.5.8.1.6 Asset management system 
Nil 


3.5.8.1.7 Asset registers 
Buildings 


Plant and equipment 


Course infrastructure 


3.5.8.1.8 Linkage from asset management to financial system 
There is no direct link between the asset and financial management systems 


3.5.8.1.9 Accountabilities for asset management system and data maintenance 
Names and titles TBA 


3.5.8.1.10 Required changes to asset management system arising from this AM Plan 
The BLGC will focus on reviewing useful lives through evidence based survey work. 


3.5.8.1.11 Improvement Plan 
The asset management improvement plan generated from this asset management plan is shown in the 
below table. 


Improvement Plan 


Task 
No 


Task Responsibility Resources Required Timeline 


1 Establish an internal Asset Management User 
Group that will meet quarterly to plan, 
implement, and review strategies and Asset Planning Sub-committee TBA 
operations that will collectively advance Asset 
Management within the BLGC. The committee 
will include (but not be limited to) the Couse 
Manager, Secretary, and Course sub-committee 
chairperson 


2 Review and Establish Useful Lives for assets Asset Planning Sub-committee TBA 
classes 


3 Review and establish data structure with regard Finance Treasurer/Secretary/Accountant TBA 
to valuation and financial reporting practices 


3.5.8.1.12 Monitoring and Review Procedures 
This asset management plan will be reviewed during annual budget planning processes and amended to 
recognize any material changes in service levels and/or resources available to provide those services as a 
result of budget decisions. The AM Plan will be updated annually to ensure it represents the current 
service level, asset values, projected operations, maintenance, capital renewal and replacement, capital 
upgrade/new and asset disposal expenditures and projected expenditure values incorporated into the 
BLGC's 5 year financial plan. The AM Plan has a life of 5 years and is due for complete revision and 
updating within 5 years 
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3.5.8.1.13 Performance Measures 
The effectiveness of the asset management plan can be measured in the following ways: 


1. The degree to which the required projected expenditures identified in this asset 
management plan are incorporated into the BLGC's financial plan, 


2. The degree to which 1-5 year detailed works programs, budgets, business plans and 
organizational structures take into account the works program trends provided by the 
asset management plan, 


3. The degree to which the existing and projected service levels and service consequences 
(what we cannot do), risks and residual risks are incorporated into the BLGC's Strategic 
Plan and associated plans, 


3.5.9 REFERENCES 
TBA 


3.5.10 APPENDIXES 
A. Blue Lake Golf Club Asset Register 
B. A90 -Council Asset Management Policy 
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Blue Lake Golf Club Asset Register Appendix A. 
To AMP 


BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB 
OPERATIONAL AND REOCCURRING MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE 


Initial Planned Maintenance $ Value Comments 
Asset 


. 
Acquistion Date Replacement 


Identifier 
Description Quantity Location (if known) 


Capital 
Value as at 2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 


Outlay 


1.1 Clubhouse Building 1 Clubhouse Grant Avenue 28/12/2000 370,000 950,000 1200 1800 2100 2300 3000 External paint year 5 


1.2 Carpark Surface Clubhouse Grant Avenue 28/12/2000 Unknown 58,000 300 320 340 340 400 Patching generally as required 


1 3 
Good condition - cleaning only as 


Clubhouse payers Clubhouse Grant Avenue 28/12/2006 13,837 26,380 0 0 01 0 0 required by self help 


1.4 Front Gates Clubhouse Grant Avenue 13/12/2000 1,552 6,435 0 275 0 0 0 Painting by self help 


1.5 
Good condition - cleaning only as 


Payers -Clubhouse entrance Clubhouse Grant Avenue 5/08/2014 1,713 3,122 0 0 0 0 0 required by self help 


1 6  
Upgraded to  code/standards April 


Fire systems Clubhouse Grant Avenue 13/12/2000 2,982 3,800 01 01 0 0 0 2019 


1.7 Clubhouse building Clubhouse Grant Avenue 31/12/2000 To Be Deleted 
1.8 Kitchen Cupboards and Shelving Kitchen 
1.9 IGas tank bollards Carpark Building entrance 25/01/2001 178 700 0 0 0 0 0 


1.10 Car Park Floodlight Clubhouse Grant Avenue 26/07/2001 367 1,114 40 40 40 40 40 
1.11 Carpark lighting Clubhouse Grant Avenue 15/06/2009 37,994 46,000 0 160 160 160 
1.12 Water softener Clubhouse Grant Avenue 31/12/2007 1,610 1,700 60 60 68 68 68 


1.13 Bitumen for buggy shed Clubhouse Grant Avenue 29/12/2008 8,705 9,236 0 320 320 320 400 
1.14 Aluminium Bench seats Course 30/06/2011 1,175 1,890 0 0 0 
1.15 Golfcourse benches Clubhouse Grant Avenue 12/02/2013 1,077 1,680 0 140 160 0 
1.16 ISprig Bar Clubhouse Grant Avenue 30/06/2014 18,972 21,222 0 0 0 0 
1.17 Sprig Bar painting and windows Clubhouse Grant Avenue 22/07/2014 4,632 5,900 0 0 360 0 0 
1.18 lAlarm system Clubhouse Grant Avenue 11/01/2001 1,573 1,830 360 360 360 360 360 
1.19 jAjr conditioner Function Room /Bistro 26/06/2000 22,000 31,200 300 300 300 300 400 One motor replaced April 2019 


BLGC Office/ Board Room 
1.20 Ergonomic Chair - Wortley Office/ Board Room 15/03/2016 495 500 0 0 0 0 0 
1.21 Computer Bits computer Office/ Board Room 31/01/2012 1,162 1,800 0 1800 01 0 0 
1.22 Paper shredder Office/ Board Room 9/07/2013 180 195 0 0 0 0 0 
1.23 Boardroom table Office/ Board Room 19/10/2000 864 1,075 0 0 0 0 0 
1.24 Email air-conditioner Office! Board Room Office/ Board Room 10/04/2001 2,459 3,100 0 150 0 150 
1.25 Safe Office/ Board Room Unknown Unknown 750 0 0 0 0 0 
1.26 Fan Office/ Board Room Unknown 100 45 0 0 0 0 
1.27 Phone Office/ Board Room Unknown - - 0 0 0 0 0 
1.28 Modem Office/ Board Room Unknown Unknown - 0 0 0 0 
1.29 Irrigation Controller - Computer System Rainbird Office! Board Room 16/04/2013 3,002 4,165 0 95 0 115 0 


Clubhouse 
1.30 Carpets Throughout complex 1/12/2000 Unknown 19,500 0 0 13000 6000 0 Maintained by Burleys 


1.31 Email air-conditioner 1 Prosbop 10/04/2001 2,459 2.600 1 01 180 0 0 0 
1.32 IGolf Links Sign 1 outside 28/06/2001 100 135 ol 01 0 0 0 
1.33 Car Park Floodlight 1 1by tree 26/07/2001 367 400 01 8011 0 0 0 
1.35 Boardroom Blinds Boardroom 13/06/2002 227 308 01 01 0 0 0 
1.42 Water softener 1 Clubhouse 31/12/2007 1,610 1,710 Is this double up of asset number 1.12 
1.43 Freezer 1 Kitchen Unknown Unknown 
1.44 Cupboards Kitchen Unknown Unknown Is this the same as asset number 1.8 
1.45 Pro Shop Counter 1 Pro shop Unknown Unknown 5,000 0 0 01 0 0 
1.46 Hot Water Services 1 Kitchen & bathrooms Unknown Unknown 2,500 0 150 0 0 2100 
1.47 Hewlett Packard Cash Register - Point o f  sale 1 Pro shop 16/01/2012 4,357 - 0 0 0 0 0 


1.47a 2nd Cash Register 1 Pro shop 1/07/2019 500 500 500 0 0 0 0 
1.48 Printer 1 Pro shop Unknown Unknown 500 75 75 75 751 75 Consumables only 


bist 
1.49 Fire Extingishers (Various) 6 ro, hallway, Kitchen, All replaced brand new extingishers 


oronshon 1/04/2019 Unknown 375 260 260 260 260 260 Aoril 2019. Insoection/test only 
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1.50 1 Mens Toilets - Toilets, showers, urinal and bandbasins Clubhouse Unknown Unknown Deleted as part o f  clubhouse asset 
1.51 Overhead canopy & Extracter Fans Kitchen - above stove Unknown Unknown 23,000 D D D 0 
1.52 Mulitcooker - deep fryer 1 Kitchen Unknown Unknown 12,000 01 D D 0 
1.53 Bar and Cupboards 3 Bar Unknown Unknown 18,000 01 D D 0 D 
1.54 Ladies Toilets - Toilets, showers, cupboards and h ndbasins Clubhouse Unknown Unknown Deleted as part o f  clubhouse asset 
1.55 Grey Filing Cabinet Managers office Unknown Unknown 160 D D 01 D D 
1.56 Paper Towel Dispensers 5 Toilets, Bar, Kitchen, staff toi Unknown Unknown 200 0 30 0 30 D 
1.57 Lecturn 1 Store Hallway Unknown Unknown 475 0 D 0 D D 
1.58 Sound Systems Bistro/Bar Unknown Unknown 1,200 0 D 0 D D 
1.59 Email air-conditioner Bar 1 Bar 10/04/2001 2,459 2,800 0 160 160 160 160 


1.60 Blinds Managers office Unknown 600 0 0 0 0 0 Excluding door blind owned by burleys 


Golf Course 
1.61 Bore and casing 1 Back Nine 21/02/1995 7,753 9,200 0 0 390 0 0 
1.62 Boundary Fence Front nine 1 19/06/2000 3,915 6,500 200 0 200 0 0 
1.63 Fcr :c  : ' - 1  1 Back nine 14/03/2002 1,453 2,500 0 0 0 0 0 
1.64 Fencing back 9 ? Back nine 25/09/1990 1,650 9,000 0 300 300 200 0 
1.65 lrr:ga:ion equ.prne"t Back nine 25/10/1995 5,819 Is this now redundant 
1.66 - c : , : n  piping Back Nine 18/07/1995 35,210 Is this now redundant 
1.67 JCJ xoinning n: l i '  f i te -  ? 21/05/1998 2,251 1 - 1.68 Septic System Clubhouse entrance 30/09/2015 32,470 35,800 200 200 200 200 200 
1.69 
1.70 IC 


Machinery Shed/Greenkeeper Amenities 
1.71 Machinery Shed 1 _  Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 275000 1800 1200 1400 1500 1500 Needs Major Works 
1.72 67000 Toro Fairway Mower 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 60000 1400 1400 14001 1400 1400 2957hrs 
1.73 Abbott and Ashby Bench Grinder 1 Machinery Shed Unknown UnknownJ 210 0 0 50 0 0 
1.74 Arc Welder 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 350 0 0 0 0 0 Champion 160 twin Arc welder 


1 7 5  1 
Unit currently unserviceable and 


Arlec Electric Heater Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 200 200 0 0 0 0 requiring replacement 
1.76 JAtom Edger 1 


- 
Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 550 20 20 20 20 20 


1.77 Austech Battery Charger 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 250 0 0 0 0 0 
1.78 Axle Stands 2 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 60 0 01 0 0 0 
1.79 Backlapping Paste 3 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknowni 100 25 25 25 25 25 opened containers 
1.80 Bar Fridge 1 -  Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 285 0 0 0 0 0 
1.81 Bosch Electric Grinder 4' Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 110 10 10 10 10 10 
1.82 Brooms 


- - 
Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 100 0 30 0 0 


1.83 IChemical Masks 2 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 140 45 45 45 45 5 
1.84 Compressor 


- - 
Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 450 30 30 301 35 35 GF Model ACID 3050 V 3HP 


1.85 Crow Bar 
- - 


Machinery Shed Unknown 35 3 0 0 0 
1.86 Dell Computer 


- - - 
Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 200 0 0 2000 0 condition unknown 


1.87 Finger Tech Fingerprint Scanner 
- - 


Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 35 0 0 0 
1.88 First Aid Kit 


- - 
Machinery Shed Unknown 55 55 10 10 10 10 1 


1.89 Franklin Submersible Motor  
- - 


Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 600 0 50 0 so 0 condition unknown 
1.90 IFurakowa Frontend Loader 


- - 
Machinery Shed 1/04/2002 Unknown 38000 2500 600 400 600 400 repairs required 


1.91 GME 2way Radio 
- - 


Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 0 
1.94 Hard Hats 4 Machinery Shed Unknown 60 70 0 70 
1.95 Hole Cutters 3 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 240 0 120 0 
1.96 Hole Remover! Setter 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 180 0 0 0 
1.97 Husquarna 3231 Line Trimmer 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 540 65 65 80 801 901condition unknown 
1.98 Irwin Bench & vice 1 Machinery Shed Unknown 210 225 01 0 0 0 


$13,000 cost is for 2nd Rough Cutter, 
1.99 Kobota Mower F3690 1 Machinery Shed 31/07/2016 18364 26000 13000 2400 2400 13000 2400 and then replacement o f  one in 4th 
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1.100 M2R Motorbike Helmet 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 160 0 0 0 0 


1.101 Machine Filters Various 13 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 440 0 0 0 0 


1.102 Masport OlympicSOO Reel Mower 1 Machinery Shed 27/01/2016 1800 566 170 170 170 170 170 


1.103 Massport Push Mower 1 Machinery Shed 27/01/2016 955 300 35 35 35 35 35 


1.104 Mc Naught Grease Gun 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 38 0 0 0 0 0 


1.105 Measuring Wheel 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 65 0 0 0 0 


1.106 IMobile Hose Reel & Hose 1 _  Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 1600 0 75 65 0 


1.108 Outdoor - Chemical Shower & eyewash 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 2300 365 0 0 Outlay required for compliance 


1.109 Picks 2 _  Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 60 0 0 0 0 


1.110 Poles & Flags - Various 50 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 425 0 0 


1.111 Pro Lift Trolly Jack 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 85 0 0 0 
1.112 Projecta Battery Charger 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 13S 0 0 0 


1.113 Rainbird Eagle 900 Sprinkler 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknownj 1200 200 0 0 0 
1.114 IRakes 15 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 410 25 25 25 25 25 
1.116 Rover Push Mower 1 _  Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 650 45 45 45 45 45 
1.117 Rubber Boots - Various 3 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 60 0 0 0 0 
1.118 Russel Hobbs Kettle 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 55 0 0 0 0 
1.119 Scott Bonnar TriMower 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 55 55 55 55 55 55 4852.1 hours, needs tyres 
1.120 Selecta High Pressure Hand Guns _ 2  Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 140 0 40 0 0 50 
1.121 Sharp Microwave 1 Machinery Shed Unknown unknownj 250 0 0 3001 0 0 
1.122 ISidchrome Tool Kit 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 450 0 0 0 0 0 
1.123 Stanley Screw Driver Set 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 35 5 5 5 5 5 
1.124 Stihl BOSS Hand Blower 1 Machinery Shed 27/01/2016 818 965 0 0 0 0 0 condition unknown 


1.125 Stihl 83600 Backpack Blower 1 Machinery Shed Unknown 420 489 25 25 25 25 25 
1.126 Stihl FS55RC Line Trimmer 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 250 40 40 40 40 40 
1.127 Stihl FS85R Line Trimmer 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 400 40 40 40 40 40 


1.128 
Stihl KM94RC Pole Saw 


1 
Machinery Shed 27/01/2016 14251 448 0 801 0 80 0 chainsaw, hedge trimmer, extension 


1.129 Stihl MS170 Chainsaw 1 Machinery Shed 9/12/2014 8151 950 100 100 100 100 100 
1.130 Stihl M5251 Chainsaw 1 Machinery Shed 19/2011 818 950 100 100 100 100 100 
1.131 Stihl MS311 Chainsaw 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 1300 100 100 100 100 100 
1.132 Storage Cabinets 6 Machinery Shed Unknown 1200 0 0 0 0 0 
1.133 Superspreader 1 Machinery Shed 30/03/1993 590 800 0 0 0 0 0 location unknown 


1.134 Table & Chairs 10 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 490 0 0 01 0 0 
1.135 ITee Block Markers - Various Qty Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 380 0 0 0 0 0 
1.136 Toro 3wheel Bunker Rake 1 Machinery Shed 26/11/1999 7001 3000 250 250 250 250 250 
1.137 Toro Flex 800 Sprinkler 6 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknownj 400 0 0 0 0 0 
1.138 Toro Roller Head 3 Machinery Shed 6/03/2017 2273 765 150 150 175 175 180 
1.139 Toro Sidewinder Mower 3100 1 Machinery Shed 30/06/2015 40455 20000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2366hrs 


1.140 Toro Triflex Mower 04357-23000 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 14950 3000 3000 3000 3000 3000 4808hrs 


1.141 Toro Trifles Mower 04357-290000 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 14950 2000 2000 20001 2500 2500 3109hrs 


1.142 IToroTriFlex Mower 4384 1 MachineryShed Unknown 14800 16800 1000 1000 1000 1200 1200 2738hrs 


1.143 Toyota Hilux 2wd WVZ 875 1 Machinery Shed 19/05/2015 17700 220001 600 600 600 600 600 185000km 


1.144 Trailer Tanker 1000 Litre 1 Machinery Shed 17/03/2015 6991 7200 50 50 50 50 50 
Turfcutter - Palmer multicore 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 3000 0 0 0 


1.145 Various -Shovel/ Spade 14 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 112 0 0 0 
1.146 Various Reel Heads 6 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 2500 300 300 300 300 300 condition unknown 


1.147 Verticutter Head 3 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 3200 100 1001 100 100 100 
1.148 lWestmix Sack Trolley 1 1 Machinery Shed Unknown Unknown 115 0 0 0 01 0 


Fuel Shed 
1.149 Fuel Shed 1 Back 9-Fuel  Shed Unknown Unknown 3000 0 0 0 0 0 
1.150 Fuel Tank _ 2  Back 9-Fuel  Shed Unknown Unknown 4000 0 0 0 0 0 
1.151 Buffalo turbine Blower 1 Back 9-Fuel  Shed Unknown Unknown 620 0 40 0 40 0 
1 .152 Karcher ks Pressure Cleaner 1 Back 9-Fuel  Shed Unknown IJnknnwn 400 0 40 0 0 0 
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1.153 Toolex Petrol Pressure Cleaner 1 1 Back 9 -  Fuel Shed Unknown Unknown 1400 50 50 50 50 50 
1.154 Spray Unit Cart 1 jBack9 - Fuel Shed Unknown Unknown 4500 0 0 0 0 0 1000 litre, Honda motor 


Chemical Shed - Front 9 
1.155 Chemical Shed 1 Front 9 Unknown Unknown 7000 0 0 0 0 0 
1.157 Backpack Sprayer 2 Front 9 Unknown Unknown 290 0 0 2901 0 0 
1.158 Hand Spreader 1 Front 9 24/12/2009 7001 820 0 0 0 0 0 
1.159 Wetting Agent Aplicator 2 Front 9 Unknown Unknown 300 0 100 100 100 100 


Pump Shed Front 9 
1.160 Pump Shed 1 Front 9 - Pumpshed 28/03/1996 453 820 0 0 0 0 0 
1.161 Submersible Pump & Bore 1 Front 9 -  Pumpshed Unknown Unknown 7000 350 400 450 500 550 
1.162 Varible Speed Drive 1 Front 9 -  Pumpshed Unknown Unknown 1400 01 0 1400 0 0 
1.163 Irrigation System Front 9 - Pumpshed Unknown 190000 220000 600 600 600 600 600 frontg + practice area approx 20yrs 


Pump Shed Back 9 (Craters lakes Side) 
1.164 Pump Shed Back 9- Pump shed Unknown 453 820 0 0 0 0 0 
1.165 Submersible Pump & Bore 1 Back 9- Pump shed Unknown Unknown 7000 350 400 450 500 550 
1.166 Varible Speed Drive 1 Back 9- Pump shed Unknown Unknown 1400 0 0 14001 0 
1.167 Irrigation System Back 9- Pump shed 30/06/2012 157042 180000 600 600 6001 600 600 back9 appros 6yrs 
1.168 Tables Bistro/Bar Unknown Unknown Unknown 
1.169 Delta Chairs Bistro/Bar Unknown Unknown Unknown 
1.170 ICamira Chairs I Bistro/Bar Unknown Unknown Unknown 
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1. INTRODUCTION 


This document sets out the policy of the City of Mount Gambier (Council) to: 


1.1 Ensure adequate provision is made for the long-term management of major Council 
infrastructure and assets by: 


1.1.1 Ensuring that Council's services and infrastructure are provided in a sustainable 
manner, with the appropriate levels of service to residents, visitors and the 
environment. 


1.1.2 Safeguarding Council assets including physical assets by implementing 
appropriate asset management strategies and financial resources for those 
assets. 


1.1.3 Creating awareness amongst employees and elected members of their 
responsibilities for the creation and management of sustainable assets. 


1.1.4 Meeting legislative requirements for asset management. 
1.1.5 Ensuring resources and operational capabilities are identified and responsibility 


for asset management is allocated. 
1.1.6 Demonstrating transparent and responsible asset management processes that 


align with demonstrated best practice. 
1.1.7 Ensuring an integrated approach across all business units in asset management 


service delivery. 
1.2 Set the guidelines for implementing consistent asset management practice and 


procedure throughout the City of Mount Gambier. 


2. SCOPE 


2.1 Council is custodian of approximately $247 million of assets comprising land, buildings, 
road infrastructure, footpaths, drainage infrastructure, plant and equipment, art and 
history collections, library books, technology and a regional landfill which have been built 
up progressively over many years. 


2.2 This policy applies to Council assets within the City of Mount Gambier that are owned 
managed and under the care, control and management of Council including Caroline 
and Orchard Road Landfills that are located within the District Council of Grant. Motor 
vehicles are governed under their own Council policy and as such the management 
thereof are excluded from the scope of this policy. 


2.3 This Policy applies to all Councillors and Council officers involved in the creation, 
operation, maintenance, upgrade, renewal and rationalisation of Council assets. This 
Policy also applies to all contracts applicable in these areas and officers responsible for 
the delivery of services that make use of Council assets. 


3. PRINCIPLES 


3.1 In accordance with Section 122 of the Local Government Act (SA) 1999 Council is 
required to have in place a consistent Asset Management Strategy enacted through the 
existence of regularly reviewed Infrastructure and Asset Management Plan(s). 
Therefore: 
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3.1.1 All relevant legislative requirements together with political, social and economic 
environments will be taken into account in asset management. 


3.1.2 Systematic asset management and appropriate asset management best 
practice throughout the Council will underpin the asset management planning 
and operational processes. 


3.1.3 Methodical reviews in accordance with the Asset Management Strategy will 
applied to all asset classes to ensure that the assets are managed, valued and 
depreciated in accordance with appropriate best practice and applicable 
Australian Standards. 


3.1.4 Asset renewals required to meet agreed service levels and identified in 
infrastructure and asset management plans and long term financial plan will be 
funded as a matter of priority in the annual budget plan estimates. 


3.1.5 Asset renewals will only be brought forward if they are included in the forecast 
ten year program approved in the relevant Asset Management Plan. The only 
exception is where there is a clearly documented and approved strategic and 
economic justification via a business case, annual project budget bid and/or by 
Council recommendation. 


3.1.6 Asset information that is created or changes as a result of creating, upgrading, 
renewing, receiving and/or disposing of assets owned by or in the custody of 
Council will flow in a timely fashion to appropriate Council asset management 
system(s). 


4. POLICY STATEMENT 


4.1 The Council exists to provide services to its community. Some of these services are 
provided by infrastructure assets including a number of non-current assets which have 
been created by Council or transferred to Council at no cost by developers and others to 
meet increased levels of service or to provide for new communities I expansion. 


4.2 Council's goal in managing infrastructure assets is to meet the defined level of service 
(as amended from time to time) in the most sustainable (including cost effective) manner 
for present and future generations. 


The key elements of infrastructure asset management are: 


4.2.1 Providing a defined level of service and monitoring performance; 


4.2.2 Managing the impact of growth through demand management and infrastructure 
investment; 


4.2.3 Taking a lifecycle approach to developing cost-effective management strategies 
for the long-term that meet the defined level of service; 


4.2.4 Identifying, assessing and appropriately controlling risks; and 


4.2.5 Having a long-term financial plan that identifies required, affordable expenditure 
and how defines how it will be financed. 
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5. KEY ACTIONS 


5.1 Council is committed to implementing a systematic asset management methodology in 
order to apply appropriate asset management best practices across all areas of Council. 
This includes ensuring that assets are planned, created, operated, maintained, renewed 
and disposed of in accordance with Council's priorities for service delivery. 


5.2 Asset management practices impact directly on the core business of Council and 
appropriate asset management is required to achieve Council's strategic service delivery 
objectives. 


5.3 A strategic approach to asset management will ensure that the Council delivers the 
highest appropriate level of service through its assets. This will provide positive impact 
on: 


5.3.1 Members of the public and staff; 
5.3.2 Council's financial position; 


5.3.3 The ability of Council to deliver the expected level of service and infrastructure; 
5.3.4 The political environment in which Council operates; and 
5.3.5 The legal responsibilities of Council. 


6. SERVICE LEVELS 


6.1 Service levels agreed through the budget process and defined in Infrastructure and Asset 
Management Plans will be funded as a matter of priority in the annual budget estimates. 


6.2 Future life cycle costs will be reported and considered in all decisions relating to new 
services and assets and upgrading of existing services and assets. 


6.3 An inspection or condition rating regime will be used as part of asset management to 
ensure agreed service levels are maintained and to identify asset renewal priorities. 


6.4 Future service levels will be determined in consultation with the community. 
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I •  
AVAILABILITY OF POLICY 


This Policy will be available for inspection at Council's principal office during ordinary business 


I 
hours and on the Council's website www.mountqambier.sa.gov.au 


Copies will also be provided to interested members of the community upon request, and upon 
payment of a fee in accordance with Council's Schedule of Fees and Charges. 


IF i le  Reference: AF11/1786 


Applicable Legislation: Local Government Act, 1999 Chapter 8 Part 1 


I Reference: 
Community Plan 2016-2020 Goal 2: Our Location 


IRelated Policies: C375 - Council Vehicles - Provision and 
Replacement of 


I E 5 0 0  - Provision of Council Resources to Support 
the Emergency Services in Emergencies 


Related Procedures: Nil 


Related Documents: Asset Management Strategy 


IDOCUMENT DETAILS 


IResponsibility: General Manager, Council Business Services 


Version: 1.0 


ILast revised date: 19 March 2019 


I 
Effective date: 19 March 2019 


Minute reference: Council Meeting 19 March 2019- Item 13.13 


Next review date: March 2021 


Document History 


IFirst Adopted By Council: March 2019 
Reviewed/Amended: 


I 
II 
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BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC 


ABN: 80 302 046 630 


STATEMENTS OF RECEIPTS & PAYMENTS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 
2019 


$ 
BANK BALANCES AT 1 JULY 2018 
PCCU Business Access 22506.47 
PCCU Online 23,342.13 
Cash at Bank at 1 July 2018 45,848.60 


RECEIPTS 
Buggy Shed Fees 4,140.00 
Coaching 885.00 
Fundraising 3,424.00 
Interest Received 387.12 
Membership Fees 33,358.00 
Sponsorships 16,150.70 
Sundry Income 2,778.93 
Tournament Fees 50,544.60 


111,668.35 
PAYMENTS 
Advertising 78.41 
Affiliation Fees 11,218.65 
Audit Fees 968.00 
Bank Fees 110.90 
Clubhouse Supplies 605.00 
Contracts 520.00 
Donations 800.00 
Electricity 3,756.08 
Fuel & Oils 1,830.40 
Fundraising Expenses 1,293.55 
General Maintenance 3,701.75 
Greens Maintenance 4,227.20 
Insurance 1,305.00 
Loan Payments 5,628.00 
Management Fees 8,320.00 
Mi Club Expenses 1,980.00 
Office Supplies 1,111.42 
Plant & Equipment 627.00 
Printing & Stationery 3,574.85 
QEPT Memberships 5,130.00 
Security 88.00 
Signwriting 5,661.10 
Sundry 192.00 
Tee Signs Contribution 3,564.00 
Tools & Replacements 659.20 
Trophies & Prizes 35,814.58 


102,765.09 


NET SURPLUS 8,903.26 


The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of 


MOTT FINNIS & CO 
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BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC 


ABN: 80 302 046 630 


STATEMENTS OF RECEIPTS & PAYMENTS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 


BANK BALANCES AT 30 JUNE 2019 
PCCU Business Access 47,537.35 
PCCU Online 7,214.51 


Cash at Bank at 30 June 2019 
54,751.86 


The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of 


MOTT FINNIS & CO 
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BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC 


ABN: 80 302 046 630 
INCOME STATEMENT 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 
2019 


$ 
INCOME 
Buggy Shed Fees 4140.00 
Coaching 885.00 
Fundraising 3,424.00 
Interest Received 387.12 
Membership Fees 33,358.00 
Sponsorships 16,150.70 
Sundry Income 2,778.93 
Tournament Fees 50,544.60 


111,668.35 
EXPENSES 
Advertising 78.41 
Affiliation Fees 11,218.65 
Audit Fees 968.00 
Bank Fees 110.90 
Clubhouse Supplies 605.00 
Contracts 520.00 
Depreciation 118.00 
Donations 800.00 
Electricity 3,756.08 
Fuel & Oils 1,830.40 
Fundraising Expenses 1,293.55 
General Maintenance 3,701.75 
Greens Maintenance 4,227.20 
Insurance 1,305.00 
Interest 227.49 
Management Fees 8,320.00 
Mi Club Expenses 1,980.00 
Office Supplies 1,111.42 
Printing & Stationery 3,574.85 
QEPT Memberships 5,130.00 
Security 88.00 
Signwriting 5,661.10 
Sundry 192.00 
Tee Signs Contribution 3,564.00 
Tools & Replacements 659.20 
Trophies & Prizes 35,814.58 


96,855.58 


NET PROFIT 14,812.77 
Retained earnings at the beginning of the financial year 37,666.39 


RETAINED EARNINGS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 52,479.16 


The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of 


MOlT FINNIS & CO 
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BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC 


ABN: 80 302 046 630 


BALANCE SHEET 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 


Note 2019 
$ 


CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 3 54,751.86 
Investments 4 509.00 


TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 55,260.86 


TOTAL ASSETS 55,260.86 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other non-current liabilities 5 2,781.70 


TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,781.70 


TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,781.70 


NET ASSETS 52,479.16 


EQUITY 


Retained earnings 52,479.16 


TOTAL EQUITY 52,479.16 


The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of 


MOlT FINNIS & CO 
Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 14 







BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC 


ABN: 80 302 046 630 


NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 


The financial statements cover the business of Blue Lake Golf Club Inc and have been prepared to meet 
the needs of stakeholders and to assist in the preparation of the tax return. 


Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 


I Basis of preparation 


The incorporated body is non-reporting since there are unlikely to be any users who would rely on the 
general purpose financial statements. 


The special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the significant 
accounting policies described below and do not comply with any Australian Accounting Standards unless 
otherwise stated. 


The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs 
modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial 
assets and financial liabilities. 


Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented 
below and are consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated. 


2 Summary of significant accounting policies 


Revenue and other income 


Other 


Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the entity is entitled to it. 


Cash and cash equivalents 


Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short- term investments 
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value. 


Property, plant and equipment 


Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment. 


Depreciation 


Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 
assets useful life to the company, commencing when the asset is ready for use. 


These notes should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of 
MOTT FINNIS & CO 
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BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC 


ABN: 80 302 046 630 


NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 
Note 2019 


$ 
3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 


PCCU - Business Access 47,537.35 
PCCU - Business Online 7,214.51 


54,751.86 


4 INVESTMENTS 


CURRENT 
Plant & Equipment 509.00 


509.00 


5 OTHER LIABILITIES 


NON-CURRENT 
Loan - QEPT (Buggy Shed Extension) 2,781.70 


2,781.70 


These notes should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of 
MOlT FINNIS & CO 
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BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC 


ABN: 80 302 046 630 


COMMITTEE'S DECLARATION 


The committee of the Blue Lake Golf Club Inc have determined that the incorporated body is not a reporting 
entity and that this special purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting 
policies described in Note 2 to the financial statements. 


The committee of the incorporated body declares that: 


The financial statements and notes present fairly the incorporated body's financial position as at 30 
June 2019 and its performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with the accounting 
policies described in Note 2 to the financial statements; 


2. In the committee's opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the incorporated body will be 
able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable. 


This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the committee. 


President (Signed) Treasurer (Signed) 


Date: Date: 


Scanned by Administrator on 31/10/2019 16 43 07 p . e 17 







BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC 


ABN: 80 302 046 630 


INDEPENDENT REVIEW REPORT 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 


We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of Receipts and Payments of the Blue Lake Golf Club Inc. as at 
30 June 2019. 


Treasurer's responsibility for the financial report 
The Treasurer of the Association is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial report that gives a 
true and fair view in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards and the South Australian 
Incorporations Act 1985. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that 
are reasonable in the circumstances. 


Assurance practitioner's responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the financial report based on our review. We conducted our 
review in accordance with Auditing Standard on Review Engagements ASRE 2410 Review of  a Financial Report 
Performed by an Assurance Practitioner who is the Auditor of  the Entity, in order to state whether, on the basis 
of the procedures described, anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the financial 
report is not presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards. 


ASRE 2410 requires us to comply with the requirements of the applicable code of professional conduct of an 
accounting body. 


A review of an annual financial report consists of making enquires, primarily of persons responsible for 
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and 
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters 
that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 


Independence 
In conducting our review, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian 
professional accounting bodies. 


Basis for Qualified Conclusion 
Receipts from cash donations and other cash fundraising activities are a significant source of revenue for the 
Blue Lake Golf Club Inc. The Blue Lake Golf Club Inc. has determined that it is impracticable to establish 
control over the collection of donations and other fundraising activity revenue prior to entry in its financial 
records. Accordingly, as the evidence available to us about revenue from these sources was limited, our 
review procedures for donations and other fundraising activity revenue had to be restricted to the amounts 
recorded in the financial records. We therefore are unable to express an opinion as to whether cash 
donations and other cash fundraising activity revenue obtained by the Blue Lake Golf Club are complete. 


Qualified Conclusion 
Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Conclusion paragraph, based 
on our review which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us believe that the 
financial report of the Blue Lake Golf Club Inc. as at 30 June 2019 does not present fairly, the financial position 
of the Blue Lake Golf Club Inc. and its financial performance and its cashflows for the year then ended in all 
material respects in accordance with the accounting policies. 
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BLUE LAKE GOLF CLUB INC 


ABN: 80 302 046 630 


INDEPENDENT REVIEW REPORT 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 


Basis of accounting 
Without modifying our conclusion, the financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the 
Treasurer's reporting responsibilities. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another 
purpose. 


-9/ Adrienne Cross 
CPA 9767646 


8 October 2019 
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1. INTRODUCTION 
 


(a) This document sets out the policy of the City of Mount Gambier (“Council”) for the 
management of trees situated on Council property as set out below:  


 
  (i) streets; and 
 
  (ii) parks, gardens, reserves and playgrounds. 
 
 (b)  It is the policy of Council that all streets be planted according to a defined street 


scaping plan and planting be aimed at beautifying the street as a whole, rather than 
individual properties.   


2. STREET TREES  


 
 (a) Council has resolved that, where applicable, to plant streets with the same species of 


tree, but the species may vary from one side of the street to the other.  
 
 (b) In some streets, it may be necessary to remove a small number of existing trees to try 


and maintain uniformity within a street.  
 
 (c) A list of tree species suitable for planting in the City has been adopted and is outlined 


in Section 7 of this Policy.  
 
 (d) The list provided will be reviewed annually so that preferred species may be added to 


the list.  
 
 (e) In selecting the type of tree suitable for a particular street, the following criteria should 


be taken into consideration:  
 
 (i) the character and amenity of the individual street;  
 
 (ii) the actual width of the footpath, or if a footpath width is less than 1.5 metres 


between the back of the kerb and the boundary, a tree not be planted; 
 
 (iii) the location of species as set out by individual utilities outlined in the species list 


in Section 7.  
 


 (f) On footways, Council permits the development of footpaths adjoining residential 
allotments through the planting of approved trees and or lawn by residents subject to:  


 
  (i) A clear trafficable pedestrian way of 1.5 metres width by 2.5 metres height being 


retained at all times along the footpath;  
 
  (ii) No vegetation (except lawn) to be planted within 6.0 metres of the intersection of 


the junction of two or more streets;  
 
  (iii) Planting being in accordance with an approved Streetscape Plan in accordance 


with 2(c).  
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(g) Notification to Residents:  


 
  (i) Where Council undertakes street tree plantings, whether the street has been 


selected by Council, or letters received from residents of a particular street, all 
residents will be informed in writing prior to the commencement of the plantings.  


 
  (ii) Council invite comment on the proposed plantings of trees within each individual 


street with comments to be received up to four (4) weeks from the date of issue, 
in accordance with Council's Public Consultation policy.  


 
  (iii) Council notify residents of Council's conditions and feedback of the consultation.  
 
  (iv) Should Council resolve not to adopt a particular street to be included in an annual 


street tree program due to popular demand from a majority of residents, those 
willing to have a tree planted will still be supplied with a tree.  


 
 (h) Notification to Authorities: 
 
  (i) Council invites comments on the proposed plantings of trees as outlined on the 


annual street tree program, with comments to be received up to four (4) weeks 
from the date of issue to the following authorities:  


  
 APA Group 
 SA Power Networks 
 SA Water  
 Telstra  


 
 (i) Council is to review previously planted streets and individual trees that have been 


vandalised and replaced with the species originally planted. If the specific cultivar is not 
available then replace with one that is of similar characteristics i.e. flower colour, size, 
shape etc.  


 
 (j) Where Council grants approval for the removal of a tree for the benefit of a resident, 


and the tree is in a healthy state, removal and where applicable replacement will be at 
the ratepayers expense. This may apply where a tree is located in an area where a 
resident wishes to remove a tree for a supplementary driveway.  


 
 (k) Council is frequently requested to remove street trees. The reasons for seeking the 


removal can vary considerably and each case is to be assessed on its merits.  
 


  (i) A resident may seek removal of a tree in writing to the General Manager City 
Infrastructure, stating their name, address, location of the tree and the reasons 
for the request for the removal of the tree.  


 


  (ii) For each request for removal of a street tree, an assessment of the tree is to be 
undertaken and a recommendation submitted to the General Manager City 
Infrastructure, or in his absence the Chief Executive Officer.  
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(iii) If the tree is diseased to the point that it is unlikely to recover, is too big for its 
location (based on size of tree in relation to footpath width, vehicle sight distance 
or power lines) or is causing or is likely to cause damage to adjoining property 
infrastructure the General Manager City Infrastructure, or in his absence the 
Chief Executive Officer, may grant approval to remove the tree.  


  
  (iv) Removal of a sound tree of appropriate size and location for reasons of 


appearance, overshadowing or dropping of foliage etc. is generally not supported 
and any recommendation to remove a tree on this basis is to be referred to 
Council for a final decision. 


 
  (v) This Policy does not apply to dead trees, which may be removed on the authority 


of either the General Manager City Infrastructure or Chief Executive Officer  
 


3. DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS WOOD  
 
 (a) Council, in the course of its normal maintenance function, quite often is involved in tree 


pruning and/or removal that results in a supply of surplus timber that is suitable for 
firewood.  


 
 (b) Council will make surplus wood available to local service clubs/organisations on the 


provision that the club/organisation be a "not for profit" club/organisation and that the 
club/organisation be responsible for all activities associated with the surplus wood (eg. 
cutting, splitting, loading and cartage).  


 
 (c) The surplus wood will be stored at a location specified by Council.  
 
 (d) Any wood accessed by a club/organisation in accordance with this policy must not be 


sold or used for private purposes. The intention of this policy is that such wood will be 
provided to needy families free of charge by the club/organisation, or the wood can be 
sold as a fund raising activity by the Club.  


 
 (e) Access to the wood to be on a "first in, first served" basis and applications to be made 


to Council, in writing, for access to surplus wood.  
 
 (f) The Chief Executive Officer and/or General Manager City Infrastructure to have the 


authority to allocate wood supplies in accordance with this policy.  
 
 (g) Any organisation participating in this activity must indemnify the Council against any 


actions that may result as a consequence of this policy. 
 


(h) The Chief Executive Officer and/or General Manager City Infrastructure to have the 
authority to allocate any surplus wood supplies not utilised by local service 
clubs/organisations under this policy, to be made available for sale to the public at the 
Mount Gambier Reuse Market. 


 
4.  RESERVES  
 
 (a) Botanic Park - Commemorative and Memorial Trees  
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  (i)  Approval is granted for service clubs to place plaques at the foot of each of the 
existing lemon scented gums at Botanic Park to commemorate deceased 
members of the Clubs from within Mount Gambier.  


 
  (ii)  Clubs to provide (or bear the cost) of the plaques, plinths, installation thereof, 


future maintenance and replacement of plaques etc.  
 
  (iii) Council will provide, as and when required, further advanced growth lemon 


scented gums as a boulevard to Botanic Park and as a perimeter planting to this 
entire area to which further commemorative plaques may be placed in the future. 


 
  (iv) An area be set aside at Botanic Park for the placement of suitable tree species 


which may be planted by persons, including a special plaque, in remembrance of 
other persons or groups. 


 
 (b) Hastings Cunningham Reserve - Memorials  
 
  (i) An area be set aside at Hastings Cunningham Reserve for the placement of 


suitable tree species, which may be planted by persons, including a special 
plaque, in remembrance of other persons or groups.  


 
 (c) Marist Park 
 
  (i)  An area of Marist Park, to the east side of the roadway from Shepherdson Road, be 


set aside to allow the planting of a tree and placement of a plaque by Rotary 
Exchange students to celebrate their time on Mount Gambier.  


 
5.  TRANSPORTATION, HANDLING AND DISPOSAL OF INFECTED OR DISEASED WOOD 


MATERIAL  
 
 (a) When pruning/removing trees with fungi/disease:  
 
  (i)  all infected or diseased prunings and felled trees should be destroyed by burning;  
 
  (ii) the material should not be mulched or carted to the greenwaste pile, but cut into 


manageable pieces and carted away to the designated burn site; 
 
  (iii) stumps should be ground out as soon as practicable after the tree is felled and 


the material carted away to the designated burning site; 
 
  (iv) establish the safest route to transport the material to the designated burning site 


to help minimize the spread of disease during transport.  
 
 (b) Sterilise pruning equipment if the disease is present, or suspected to be present, on 


the tree being pruned/felled.  
 
 (c) All remaining plant material such as chips and sawdust should be swept and removed 


from site and transported to the designated burning site.  
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 (d) Common symptoms of diseased trees include:  
 
  (i) leaf yellowing and death  
 
  (ii) fruit distortion  
 
  (iii) stem, root and flower rot  
  
  (iv) stem cankers  
  
  (v) dieback within a tree  
 
  (vi) leaf curl etc.  
  
 (e)  If in doubt about the health of a tree or the request to implement this policy, contact the 


Engineering Technical Officer.  
  
6.  PROPERTY OWNER VEGETATION  
 
 (a) Pursuant to Section 299(1) of the Local Government Act 1999, Council may issue 


notice to the owner or occupier of adjoining land to remove or cut back vegetation 
which has encroached onto any street, road or footpath.  


 
 (b) Should there be no response to this request within seven (7) days from the issue date 


of the notice, Council may undertake the work and seek to recover the expenses 
incurred for the relevant works. 


7. ADOPTED TREE SPECIES PLANTING SCHEDULE 


 


  


BOTANICAL NAME 
COMMON 


NAME 
SA 


POWER 
SA WATER  
SCHEDULE 


PLANT 
ORIGIN 


PLANT 
TYPE 


COMMENTS 


1 Acacia melanoxylon Blackwood   2 N E Grows Well, Good Structure 


2 Acer buergeranum 
Trident 
Maple 


    E D Grows Well, Moderate 


3 Acer Campestre  
Hedge 
Maple 


        Grows Slow 


4 Acer negundo Box Maple   2 E D Grows Well, Moderate 


5 Acer palmatum sp. 
Japanese 
Maple 


2       Grows slow 


6 Acer rubrum sp. 
Canadian 
Maple 


    E D Grows Well, Slow 


7 Acmena smithii Lillypilly     N E Grows Well, Moderate 


8 Betula pendula Silver Birch   2 E D Grows Well 


9 
Betula pendula 
'Dalecarlica' 


Cut Leaf 
Birch 


  2 E D Grows Well 


10 
Betula platyphylla var. 
Japonica 'Whitespire' 


Asian White 
Birch 


    E D Grows Well 


11 
Callistemon viminalis 
'Harkness' 


Gawler 
Hybrid 
Bottlebrush 


2 1 N E Grows Well 


12 Callistemon viminalis 
Weeping 
Bottlebrush 


2 1 N E Grows Well 
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13 


Carpinus betulus 'Frans 
Fontaine' 


Common 
Hornbeam 


    E D Moderate Growth 


14 
Cercis canadensis 
'Forest Pansy' 


Purple-leafed 
Eastern 
Redbud 


2   E D Grows Well, But Slow 


15 
Eucalyptus platypus 
var heterophylla 


Round Leaved 
Moort 


P 2 N E Grows Well 


16 
Eucalyptus leucoxylon 
subsp.'Euky Dwarf' 


Euky Dwarf 2 2 N D Grows Growth 


17 
Eucalyptus leucoxylon 
var. Megalocarpa 
'Rosea' 


Yellow Gum 2 2 N E Grows Well 


18 
Fraxinus ornus 
'Meczek' 


Flowering ash P 2 E D 
Grows Slow, But Outstanding 
Form & Structure 


19 Geijera parviflora 
Australian 
Willow 


2 1 N E Grows Vey Slow 


20 Geijera salicifolia Scrub Willow     N E Grows Very Slow 


21 
Gleditsia triacanthos 
var inermis 'Sunburst' 


Honey Locust   2 E D Grows Slow 


22 Hakea Laurina 
Pincusion 
Hakea 


2 1 N D 
Grows Well, Fast, Blows Over in 
Heavy Winds 


23 Hymenosporum flavum 
Native 
Frangipani 


  2 N E 
Grows Well In Some Areas, 
Slow 


24 Koelreuteria paniculata 
Golden Rain 
Tree 


2 2 E D Very Slow 


25 
Lagerstroemia indica 
sp 


Crepe Myrtle 2 1 E D Vey Slow, Grows Well 


26 Liridodendron tulipifera Tulip Tree   2 E D Grows Well 


27 
Liridodendron tulipifera 
'Fastigiatum' 


Upright Tulip 
Tree 


  2 E D Grows Well 


28 
Lophostemon 
confertus 


Brush Box     N D Grows Well 


29 Liquidamber styraciflua Liquidamber   2 E D Grows Slow 


30 
Malus ioensis 
'Purpurea' 


Crab Apple 2 1 E D Grows Well, Moderate 


31 Pistacia chinensis 
Chinese 
Pistachio 


  2 E D Unknown 


32 Platanus x acerifolia London Plane     E D Grows Slow 


33 
Prunus cerasifera 
'Nigra' 


Purple Leaf 
Cherryplum 


2 1 E D Grows Well, Moderate 


34 
Prunus fruticosa 
"Globasa" 


Designer 
Cherry 


  1 E D Grows Well, Moderate 


35 Prunus persica sp. 
Flowering 
Peach 


2 1 E D Attracts Leaf Curl, Very Slow 


36 
Prunus 'sekiyama'  
syn. 'Kanzan' 


Flowering 
Cherry 


2 1 E D Unknown 


37 Prunus serrulata 
Japanese 
Flowering 
Cherry 


  1 E D Unknown 


38 
Pyrus betufolia 
'Southworth Dancer' 


Southworth 
Dancer Pear 


  2 E D Grows Well, Fast 


39 
Pyrus calleryana 
'Aristocrat' 


Aristocrat Pear   2 E D Grows Well, Fast 


40 
Pyrus calleryana 
'Capital' 


Capital Pear   2 E D Grows Well, Fast 
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41 


Pyrus calleryana x 
betulaefolia 'Edgedell' 


Edgedell Pear 
  2 E D Grows Well, Fast 


42 
Pyrus calleryana 
'Glen's Form' 
Chanticleer 


Callery Pear   2 E D Grows Well, Fast 


43 
Pyrus salicifolia 
'Pendula' 


Willow Leaf 
Pear 


2 2 E D Grows Well, Fast 


44 Pyrus ussuriensis 
Manchurian 
Pear 


  2 E D Grows Well, Fast 


45 Quercus palustris Pinoak     E D Grows Slow 


46 Sophora japonica Pagoda Tree   2 E E/D Unknown 


47 Tilia Cordata Linden   2 E D   


48 
Tilia Cordata 
'Shamrock" 


Linden   2 E D   


48 
Ulmus glabra 
'Lutescens' 


Golden Elm     E D Grows Moderate 


49 Ulmus parvifolia Chines Elm     E D   


50 Ulmus parvifolia'Todd' Chines Elm     E D   


51 
Zelkova serrata 'Green 
Vase' 


Green Vase 
Japanese 
Zelkova 


    E D Grows Well, Slow 


  Trial Trees 


  
These trees only to be planted in large 
road reserves or nature strips 


(P) - Not listed but ok to plant under powerlines 


ETSA List 1  - Species with expected height between 2 and 3 metres 


ETSA List 2  - Species with expected height between 3 and 6 metres 


In South Australia a great deal of research has been done to determine the suitability of various trees for planting near sewers. Some of 
the results of this research have been incorporated into Regulation 24 of the Sewerage Act.  
This contains two schedules which list over 200 trees and shrubs, the planting of which in streets is controlled, but which may be planted 
on private property without the need to obtain prior approval from SA Water.  
 
Schedule 1 lists those which may be planted in streets but not closer than 2 
metres to any sewer or connection without written approval from SA Water.  
 
Schedule 2 lists those which may be planted in streets but not closer than 3.5 metres to 
any sewer or connection without written approval from SA Water.  
 
Provisionally Classified Schedule 2   
Any tree which is not listed in these schedules may not be planted in any street in any declared drainage area without the prior approval 
in writing of the South Australian Water Corporation.  
In addition to Schedule 1 and 2, approximately 400 trees and shrubs have been provisionally classified into the same two groups. The 
distinction between the trees listed in Schedule 1 and 2 and those which are only provisionally  
classified is that the latter may not be planted in streets or roads without the prior written 
approval of the South Australian Water Corporation for home gardens.  


The Schedules quoted are for guidance only as Regulations 24 does not apply to private property.  


In addition under Regulation 37 of the Waterworks Act, trees and shrubs must not be planted in a public street or road closer than one 
metre to any water main or service connection. Approval may be obtained by submitting.  


in writing details of proposed planting to the contact detailed above 


 
8. REVIEW & EVALUATION 
 


This Policy is scheduled for review by Council in September 2021, however, will be reviewed 
as required by any legislative changes which may occur. 
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9. AVAILABILITY OF POLICY 
 


This Policy will be available for inspection at Council’s principal office during ordinary 
business hours and on the Council’s website www.mountgambier.sa.gov.au.  Copies will also 
be provided to interested members of the community upon request, and upon payment of a 
fee in accordance with Council’s Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
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Goal 2: Our Location  
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Related Procedures:  


Related Documents: AF11/1259 
 


http://plantselector.botanicgardens.sa.gov.au/ 
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Thu 10/10/2019 8:38 AM 
 
Daryl Morgan DMorgan@mountgambier.sa.gov.au 
 
RE: ALDI and Retail 1 Mt Gambier - Removal of Exiting Street Parking 
 
If this is what is required according to their traffic engineers in order to allow safe access and egress 
form the site for larger delivery vehicles then this will require a parking resolution (with report) to be 
placed before council. The installation of parking restrictions can only be in-acted be a resolution of 
council.  
 
Someone from regulatory services along with our parking inspectors will need to prepare a report on 
this with the relevant parking resolutions etc. 
 
regards  
 


Daryl Morgan 


Manager Engineering Design & Contracts 


 


Civic Centre 10 Watson Terrace Mount Gambier 


D 08 8721 2524 / M 0418 810 523 


PO Box 56 Mount Gambier SA 5290 
 


 
Warning : this email is intended only for the addressee(s) and may contain information that is confidential, subject to legal 
privilege, or protected by copyright. If you have received this in error, please notify the sender by reply email and delete this 
email from your system. You are not permitted to use, reproduce or disclose the contents of this email. No representation is 
made that this email is free of viruses. Virus scanning is recommended and is the sole responsibility of the recipient. Thank 
you. 


 


From: Simon Wiseman  
Sent: Thursday, 10 October 2019 8:13 AM 
To: Daryl Morgan  
Subject: FW: ALDI and Retail 1 Mt Gambier - Removal of Exiting Street Parking 
 
DM, 
 
Your thoughts? 
 
 
 
From: Trent Burns [mailto:trent@nielsenarchitects.com.au]  
Sent: Wednesday, 9 October 2019 4:40 PM 
To: Simon Wiseman <SWiseman@mountgambier.sa.gov.au> 
Cc: Chris.Jeyapal@aldi.com.au; Paul Morris <Paul.Morris@gta.com.au>; Richard Frimpong 
<Richard.Frimpong@gta.com.au>; Rob Gagetti <rgagetti@ekistics.com.au> 
Subject: ALDI and Retail 1 Mt Gambier - Removal of Exiting Street Parking 
 
Good afternoon Simon, 
 
As we near the completion of the ALDI and Retail 1 development (Early Dec), we are looking to 
finalise the modifications to existing street parking to Compton Street and Ferrers Street.  
 
As per the attached, submitted Traffic Report provided during planning stage, we previously 
nominated for the removal of 3x car spaces to Compton Street, South of the proposed crossover. 
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Following a successful truck test and review of the greater road network, we are now proposing to 
enter the site from the North, with a right hand manoeuvre into site (refer Site Entry plan, 
attached). This will still result in the loss of 3x car spaces, however, only 2x car spaces to the South 
of the crossover and 1x car space to the North of the crossover. Can you please confirm if you have 
any issues with the latest proposal? I will instruct builder to complete works, following your 
confirmation, or otherwise. 
 
In addition, we previously provided a swept path within the traffic report that was not as per the 
FINAL approved site plan, with the crossover to Ferrers now situated further South. Can you please 
confirm approval for the removal for 6x car spaces to Ferrers street, as per the attached Site Exit 
plan? I note we do have opportunity to create some parking in front of the existing crossover as 
highlighted below. 
 


 
 
If you have any questions please don’t hesitate to call. 
 
Kind Regards, 
Trent Burns 
 


NIELSEN ARCHITECTS 
108 Mt Barker Road, Stirling, SA, 5152 


T 08 8339 1466 M 0433 180 737 
trent@nielsenarchitects.com.au 
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This email and any attachments may contain information that is confidential. If you have received this message in error, please notify the person sending this 
message by return email and delete the original message. Nielsen Architects does not accept any liability for damage caused by any virus or other interference 
associated with this email message or attachment. 
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